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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Sales

EBITDA

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
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Net assets attributable to the Companys

equity holders

Net borrowings to total equity ratio

Earnings per share in US cents

Dividends per share in HK cents

Net assets per share attributable to the Companys

equity holders in US dollars

Net assets total equity per share in US dollars

EBITDA
in id

hi

U5$ Mhillon

50
89

500
442

40

400

50 50

265

200

150

100

Id

2008 00 2006 2005 2004

Hotel Hong Kong Hotel Monlend China

Hotel Siingapore Hotel The Philippines

Hoed Malaysia Tholand Hotel Manegennenn

and Others Corporate Enpenses

Proportes

US9 M3Iion

4500

425 4185
4000

00

3000 2975

500
2630

Iii
2008 2007 2006 200 2004

Share of Profit of Associates

by Geographical Area

U5$ Million

00 99

80

64

60

20 1121911

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Mainland China

Singapore and Malayoa

Other Areas

CONSOLIDATED

2008 2007 2008/2007 2006 2005 2004

US$ Million US$ Million oChange US$ Million US$ Million US$ Million

1353

489

166

89

4251

1219

442

341

100

41 85

1100

lo

5l
ll

1003

350

202

76

2975

842

265

151

65

2630

726

223

114

58

21 65

3953 3882 2699 2381 1978

34.5%

5.76

24.00

20.5c

12.76

27.00

68c

550

110o

.000

7.97

23.00

33.0c

14

20.00

40.2c

4.85

9.00

1.37 1.35 1.05 0.94 0.82

.47 .45 1% .04 0.90

Total Equity Earnings Per Share

US enS

14

1.6
12

.9

5.6
614

485

1111
2008 007 2006 2005 2004

noon al High ights



CHAIRMANS STATEMENT 2008

On behalf of the Board am pleased to present the Annual Report of Shangri-La

Asia Limited covering the financial year
2008

The year
started on strong note with most hotels maintaining their

performance levels achieved through 2007 However from the second quarter

of the year the progressive deterioration in the world financial markets started

to affect the regional economies of Asia as well as decline in visitor arrivals

and travel spending in the region

Whilst Group revenue increased in 2008 to US$1353271000 2007

US$1219248000 net profit attributable to shareholders in 2008 declined

to US$ 65940000 2007 US$340863000 This was after providing for

minority interests as well as exceptional items losses of US$829 15000 which

comprised mainly of fair value year end adjustments on financial investment

and interest rate hedging commitments

Earnings per share declined to US5.76 cents per share 2007 US 2.76 cents

per share

final dividend of HK$0 10 per ordinary share has been proposed for FY2008

Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.14 per ordinary share the total

dividend for FY2008 will be HK$0.24 per ordinary share

The Group operated 60 hotels at the end of 2008 up from 57 hotels at the

end of 2007 with equity invested in 45 hotels and the remaining hotels

under management

We were extremely fortunate in early May to have avoided any casualties or

significant damage to hotel property
when fierce storms and floods swept through

parts of Myanmar and an earthquake erupted in Sichuan province Despite the

dangerous and demanding circumstances surrounding each disaster our hotel

management and staff continued to watch over the safety and provided comfort

and care to all our hotel guests as well as to the local community

In August Beijing celebrated its hosting of the Olympic Games Much

excitement and anticipation built up in the months preceding this event

However as result of strict visa issuance controls due to mounting public

security issues the budgeted foreign visitor arrivals and subsequent high hotel

room occupancies failed to materialize

The outlook in 2009 for the global economy and for the hotel industry remains

depressed However with uncertainty there lies opportunity The Group will

continue to focus on improving our product as well as service offerings whilst

prudently looking for new investment opportunities

The Group has opened four new hotels so far this year and has plans to open

another six hotels before the end of 2009

would like to thank the management and staff for their hard work and

dedication during the year and my fellow board members for their support and

guidance throughout

KUOK Khoon Ean

Chairman

17 March 2009

Chairrnans Statement 2008
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

Performance Review

The Groups main business comprises the ownership operation and

management of hotels It also has ownership interests in investment

properties i.e office properties service apartments and retail spaces

The Group also manages hotels for third party owners Hotel operations

continued to be the Groups main source of revenue and operating profits

The luxury hotel market in Asia in particular Mainland China continues to

be the Groups main focus

As at December 2008 the Group has equity interests in 45 operating

hotels 2007 44 comprising 23309 available guest rooms 2007 22.292
This includes the Portman Ritz Carlton Hotel Shanghai the Portman
and the Hotel JEN Hong Kong the Hotel jEN which were not managed

by the Group

Performance of the Groups hotels in the first quarter of 2008 started

off strong However beginning in the second quarter the effect of

the economic slow down in the United States of America USA the

increase in airfares caused by the high fuel prices the natural disasters

that struck Mainland China and the tightening uf visa rguldtior1s for visits

to Mainland China in the
run-up

to the Beijing Olympics resulted in

drop in occupancies at the Groups hotels in Mainland China Hong Kong

the Philippines and Singapore The last quarter witnessed unprecedented

volatility in the global financial markets With the USA and European

economies in recession and increasing global unemployment both luxury

leisure travel and business travel have declined substantially

The operating performance of the Groups investment properties showed

slight improvement across the board save for the serviced apartments in

Kuala Lumpur and Bangkok

ANALYSIS

aRevenues

Hotel Operation

On an unconsolidated basis room revenues accounted for over 54%

while food and beverage revenues accounted for over 39o of the total

revenues from hotel operation Room revenues at US$935.2 million

represented an year on year growth while food and beverage

revenues at US$677.3 million represented year on year growth

Room revenues increased due to the marginal growth in room yields

Revenue Per Available Room or RevPAR and the ffert of full

year operation of hotel rooms of new hotels/extensions which opened

for business in the
year 2007

Management ca Analysi



Key performance indicators of the Group on an unconsolidated basis are

Geographical analysis

Country

The Peoples Republic of China

Hong Kong

Mainland China

Singapore

The Philippines

Malaysia

Thailand

Fiji

Indonesia

Myanmar

Occupancy
10/

/0

Note The RevPAR of hotels under renovation has been computed by excluding the number of rooms under renovation

2008 2007

Weighted Average Weighted Average

Transient Transient

Room Rate RevPAR Occupancy Room Rate RevPAR

US$ US$ US$ US$

72 292 206 77 280 211

57 161 91 67 40 92

76 227 174 83 86 52

75 163 119 81 147 117

65 125 88 72 110 77

49 168 79 74 153 108

69 155 104 69 135 92

64 117 66 62 114 62

Subsidiaries and Associates 62 171 106 71 152 105

56 51 28 50 40 21

Mai genen Oiscu non Anai



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION ANALYSIS

Comments on performance by geography

The Peoples Republic of China

Hong Kong

Despite 6o increase in weighted average room rates the two Shangri-La

hotels recorded 2% decrease in weighted average RevPAR as

weighted average occupancy decreased by percentage points

Mainland China

In the aggregate the hotels recorded marginal decrease in RevPAR of

00 Weighted average occupancy was affected by the adverse weather

conditions in Southern China in the first quarter of 2008 the effect of

the earthquake in Sichuan in May and the reduction in foreign visitor

arrivals in the second quarter While some rebound in occupancies

was envisaged after the Olympics overall demand softened due to the

adverse global economic environment in the last quarter of the year

In addition occupancy was also affected by rooms renovation at the

Pudong Shangri La Shanghai and the increased number of rooms at

the Shangri La Hotel Qingdao with the opening on March 2008 of

additional 96 guest rooms and serviced apartments

Most hotels recorded an increase in room rates both due to general

increase in rates quoted in Renminbi and the effect of the appreciation

of the currency against the US dollar Combined revenues increased by

6o during the year

The Futian Shangri La Shenzhen which comprises 548 guest rooms and

53 serviced apartments opened for business on 23 October 2008

Singapore

Weighted average room rates increased by 22c as room rates quoted

in Singapore dollars continued to improve due to buoyant market

conditions and the effect of the currency appreciation against the US

dollar in the first three quarters of 2008 Combined revenues increased

by 1300

The Philippines

The performance of the Groups hotels continued to improve in line

with the overall economic environment of the country

Malaysia

Overall the Groups hotels and resorts benefited from strong

improvement in demand during the year Weighted average occupancy

decreased by percentage points mainly due to the renovation

programmes at the Shangri-La Hotel Kuala Lumpur which commenced

in April 2008 and the effect of the 90 room extension of Shangri Las

Rasa Ria Resort Kota Kinabalu the Rasa Ria Resort which opened

in late December 2007 However the RevPAR of the Rasa Ria Resort

which increased by 5c benefited from the contribution from the

newly commissioned rooms The RevPAR of Shangri Las Rasa Sayang

Resort Spa Penang increased by 23c with increased leisure arrivals

Thailand

The performance of the Shangri La Hotel Bangkok was affected by the

renovations of most outlets and function rooms and the negative effects

from the political turmoil in the last quarter of the year Occupancy

and RevPAR of the hotel decreased by IS percentage point and l0
respectively Overall weighted average RevPAR for the Groups hotels

decreased by 28c also affected by the newly opened Shangri La Hotel

Chiang Mai

i4 Maager scu Aaiys



Fiji Indonesia and Myanmar

Performance of the Groups hotels in these countries continued to

record year on year improvement supported by increases in their room

rates and RevPAR

Hotel Management

Except for the Hotel JEN and the Por-tman all the other 43 hotels

in which the Group has equity interests are managed by the Groups

management arm SLIM International Limited and its subsidiaries

SLIM In addition SLIM also had hotel management agreements in

respect of operating hotels 5477 available rooms owned by third

parties as at December 2008 Overall weighted average RevPAR and

room rates of these IS hotels increased by 100 and 5c respectively

SLIM recorded increase in revenues on consolidation

For managed hotels the room Traders Upper East Hotel Beijing in

Mainland China and the 336 room Shangri Las Far Eastern Plaza Hotel

Tainan in Taiwan opened for business in 2008 The room Shangri La

Hotel Vancouver in Canada opened for business on 24 January 2009

DevInpmnt work hrteIs in Macau has suspended temporarily

SLIM has also terminated the management contracts for hotel projects

in Urumqi Mainland China and Chicago due to the suspension of works

on these projects by the developers In March 2009 SLIM signed new

hotel management agreement for the 301 room Traders Hotel Abu

Dhabi which will be opened for business in mid 2009

Property Rentals

Most of the properties recorded double digit increment in yields for

their retail and office space save for the retail space in the Shanghai

Kerry Centre and the retail and office space in the Chao Phya Tower

in Bangkok which recorded increases of 4c 4% and 9c respectively

Notably the office tower at the Shangri La Centre Chengdu in Mainland

China which opened for business in August 2007 recorded an increase

in yields of 433c

In terms of serviced apartments save for the yields in the Shanghai

Centre increased by 6c Changchtin remained flat Kiala Lumpir

decreased by 4o and Bangkok decreased by 27o all the properties

recorded double digit increase in yields

Maag nert Disc ac Aeaiy



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION ANALYSIS

Sales analysis

2008 2007 Change

US$ million US$ millionSubsidiaries

Hotel Operations

Hong Kong 233.0 230.3 I0o

Mainland China 506.3 416.8 100

Singapore
176.6 156.6 300

The Philippines 153.5 149.1

Malaysia Thailand Fiji and

Yangon 211.3

1280.7

206.3

159.1 00o

Hotel Management 92.4 80.7 5%

Properties

Mainland China Singapore

Malaysia and Thailand 36.3 27.7 0o

Less Elimination 56.1 4t3.3

Total sales for subsidiaries 1353.3 19.2 10o

bConsolidated Profits

At the subsidiary level the gross profit margin of the hotels was

marginally lower by less than percentage point as result of increase

in food costs and labour costs while the
gross profit margin for the

properties increased by around percentage point As result of the

increase in revenues of the hotels and properties EBITDA earnings

before interest tax depreciation amortization and non operatifig

items increased by 10o EBITDA is net of the pre opening expenses of

US$35.6 million 2007 US$22 million

In terms of the associates share of profit after tax and before non

operating items increased by 36c mainly contributed by the improved

results of the investment properties In 2008 net charge for share of

non operating items is US$4 million There was net credit of US$39.6

million for non operating items in 2007 which included the share

of associates taxation for the reversal of provision for deferred tax

liabilities of US$30.3 million due to reduction of income tax rate in

Mainland China from 33c to 25c effective January 2008

Consolidated profits of the Group for the year were favourably

affected by the increase in exchange gains of US$50.6 million due to

appreciation of the Renminbi and other Asian currencies against the US

dollar in the first three quarters Interest expenses after capitalization of

all subsidiaries decreased by US$14.2 million following reduction in

banl borrowings in the first half of 2008 consequent to the rights issue

in September 2007 and the reduction in borrowing rates Income tax

expenses for subsidiaries in 2007 included credit of US$9.9 million for

the reversal of provision for deferred tax liabilities due to reduction of

inLome ta.c rate in Mainland China

Marag rert Dsc An lys



EBITDA of the Group and Reconciliation to Operating Profit

Less

Depreciation

Amortization of leasehold land

and land use rights

Amortization of trademark and

wbsite development

Net foreign exchange

transaction gains

Expenses on share options granted

For the
year ended December

Losses on disposal of property

plant and equipment and

partial replacement of

investment properties

Discarding of property plant

and equipment due to

renovation of hotels

Add Other losses/gains

Net fair value losses/gains on

investment properties

Losses/gains on financial assets

held for trading

Fair value losses on interest-rate

swap contracts

Gains on disposal of partial

interests in subsidiaries

Interest income

Dividend income

Tax refund on reinvestment of

dividend from subsidiary

and an associate

Waiver of debt by

non controlling shareholder

Fair value gains on loans from

non controlling shareholders

Penalty on relinquishment of

rights to
acquire project sites

Other non operating gains

For the
year ended 31 December 2008 2007 Change

US$ million US$ million

Hotel Operations

Hong Kong 97.0 95.6 lOo

Mainland China 198.7 167.9

Singapore 67.7 59.1 l5
The Philippines 44.8 44.2 10o

Malaysia Thailand Fiji

and Yangon 70.8 74.6 50

Hotel Management 30.4 7.8 100

Properties

Mainland China Singapore

Malaysia and Thailand 20.7 .7 7700

Less Corporate expenses

EBITDA

41 .3 28.8
442488.8

2.5 2.4

9.9 0.7

0.9 59.1

33.4 21.1

61.1 10.4

7.7

0.9

166.8 134.9

11.2 8.3

1.2 0.9

9.1

10.3

0.9

50.6

0.5

32.8

2.5

3.2

4.7

1.3 10.7

0.6

3.2 5.0

Operating profit before finance

costs 163.2 373.3

i.geirert Di ii so AraJ



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION ANALYSIS

Corporate Debt and Financial Conditions

During the year the Group executed new 5-year term unsecured bank

Han agreements aggregating to equivalent US$354.9 milIicn 5.S-year

term unsecured bank loan agreement of equivalent US$29 million and

year term unsecured bank loan agreement of equivalent US$1 3.6 million

subsidiary has also contracted month term working capital loan

agreement of equivalent US$3.7 million

The Group has also extended matured HK$300 million approximately

US$38.7 million unsecured bilateral bank loan agreement for another year

The Group has not encountered any difficulty when drawing down loans

from committed banking facilities None of the banking facilities were

cancelled by the banks during or after the close of the financial year

The net borrowings total of bank loans and overdrafls less cash and bank

balances to total equity ratio increased from 20.5% as at December

2007 to 34.5c as at December 2008

The Group has satisfactorily complied with all covenants under its

borrowing agreements

The analysis of borrowings outstanding as at December 2008 is as

follows

Maturities of Borrowings

Contracted as at 31 December 2008

Repayment

In the

US$ million Total

Borrowings

Corporate bank loans 539.2 551.3 1090.5

Project bank loans

and overdrafts 39.0 78.4 659.4 61.0 837.8

Total 390 617.6 1210.7 61.0 1928.3

Undrawn but

committed facilities

Bank loans and

overdrafts 175.7 231.2 589.1 0.1 996.1

In February 2009 non wholly owned subsidiary in Maldives executed

year JS$50 million prnject loan agreement with International Finance

Corporation subsidiary in Mainland China executed new 5-year US$40

million unsecured bank loan agreement in the same month

Except for the bank loans of non wholly owned subsidiary of Renminbi

177 million and HK$200 million approximately equivalent total US$5 .7

million maturing in 2010 which are secured by the rights and benefits of

the insurance policies on the hotel property owned by that subsidiary all

other loans are unsecured

The currency
mix of the borrowings and cash and bank balances as at 31

December 2008 is as follows

Cash and

Borrowings Bank Balances

In Hong Kong dollars 988.6 6.9

In US dollars 12.5 148.4

In Renminbi 65.6 193.0

In Singapore dollars 28.0

In Philippine Pesos 59.4

In Malaysian Ringgit 44.8

In Thai Baht 0.4

In Fiji dollars 6.2

In Euros 12.7 6.2

In Japanese Yen 44.3

In Maldive Rufiyaa 8.3

In other currencies 0.9

1928.3 463.0

Excepting the loans in Renminbi which carry interest at rates specified by

The Peoples Bank of China from time to time all the borrowings are at

floating interest rates

US$ million

Within In the 3rd to

year 2nd year 5th year

After

years

13.0

6.6

9.2

6.3

Managerr nt sian



Details of the financial guarantees and contingent liabilities of the Company

and the Group as at December 2008 are provided in Note 36 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements

Treasury Policies

Treasury policies aimed at minimizing interest and
currency

risk have been

consistently followed by the Group

Minimize Interest Risk

Intragroup financing between subsidiaries in Mainland China by way of

entrusted loan agreements through local banks amounted to Renminbi

74 million approximately US$25 million as at December 2008

The Group has also endeavoured to hedge its medium term interest

rate risk by entering into HIBOR and LIBOR interest rate swap

contracts As at 31 December 2008 the Group had outstanding

contracts for total value of HK$4760 million approximately US$614.2

million at fixed interest rates ranging between 4.28c and 4.63c per

annum and US$100 million at fixed interest rate of 4.70% per annum

The interest cover continues through January 2014 Taking into account

these interest rate swap contracts and the Renminbi loans the Group

has fixed its interest
liability on 46c of its loans outstanding

bMinimize Currency Risk

There is natural economic hedge to the extent that all the Groups

business units in Hong Kong Mainland China the Philippines Singapore

and Malaysia and Thailand derive their revenues and most of the

expenses associated therewith in local currencies The Groups hotels

are quoting room tariffs in the local currency in view of the general

appreciation of the Asian currencies against US dollar It is the Groups

endeavour wherever and to the extent possible to quote tariffs in the

stronger currency and maintain bank balances in that currency if legally

permitted Also to the extent legally permitted the Groups subsidiaries

in Mainland China contracted for new bank loans in US dollars

The Group has not felt it appropriate to substantially hedge against

currency risks through forward exchange contracts upon consideration

of the currency risks involved and the cost of obtaining such cover

Investment Properties Valuations

Investment properties continue to be stated at fair value All changes in the

fair value of investment properties from one balance sheet date to the next

will be reported in the income statement Investment properties are stated

at professional valuations carried out by the following independent firms of

professional valuers as at December 2008

CB Richard Ellis Limited For properties in Mainland China

DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited

and Chesterton Pett/ Limited

Colliers International

Consultancy Valuation

Singapore Pte Ltd

and Vigers Appraisal

Consulting Limited

W.M Malik Kamaruzaman For properties in Malaysia

For properties in Singapore

Managemen Discu Ar lyss i9



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION ANALYSIS

Financial Assets Held for Trading Trading

Securities

The portfolio of these securities was reduced substantially to US$ 3.3

million as at 31 December 2008 after reclassification of 0867055 ordinary

shares in the Company as treasury shares during the year

These ordinary shares in the Company are held by wholly owned

subsidiary of Shangri La Hotel Public Company Limited one of the principal

subsidiaries of the Group before the Company acquired controlling

interest in it in late 1999

The market value of these ordinary shares in the Company as at 30 june

2008 was written off against the retained earnings of the Group

In 2008 the Group charged total unrealized losses on financial assets held

for trading of US$33.4 million before
non-controlling interests for the year

US$3 10 million after non controlling interests to the income statement

Development Programmes

aExisting Programmes

In Mainland China the extension to the Shangri La Hotel Qingdao

and the Futian Shangri La Shenzhen opened for business on 12 March

2008 and 23 October 2008 respectively Both hotels are wholly owned

subsidiaries of the Company On january 2009 the 409 room

Shangri La Hotel Wenzhou 75% owned hotel opened for business

The 202-room Shangri La Hotel Tokyo hotel under operating lease

opened for business on March 2009 while the 21 room Shangri Las

Boracay Resort Spa Philippines also opened on the same day

Hotels in Mainland China

Shangri La Hotel Ningbo

Shargri La Hotel Guil

Shangri
La Hotel Manzhoul

Hotels in other countries

Shangri Las Vi
lingili

Resort

Spa Maldives

Shangri
La Hotel Pars France

Shangri Las Mactan Resort

Spa Cebu extens on

Traders Hote Male Maldives

Shangri La Hotel Vienna

Austria

Other
project an1 omposite

developments

Office Tower Ulaanbaatar

Repub ic of Mongolia

Office Tower Qingdao

China World Trade Center

Phase Ill Grand Tower

including
deluxe hote

Beijing 40.07c

Pudong Kerry Centre

with Shangri
Las Pudong

Kerry Centre Hote Shanghai

Tianjin Kerry
Centre

with Shangri La Hotel Tianjin

jing
An

Kerry
Centre with

jing An Shangri La Shanghai

Hotel Serviced Projected

Rooms Apartments Opening

100

100%

430

20 16

La 2009

Late 2009

7000

l00

42

108

Mid 2009

Eary 2010

l00

I00

112

205

Lae2OIO

Late 2011

202 Mid 2010

510o

l00

N/A

N/A

N/A

130

Mid 2009

Mid 2009

278 Mid 2009

2320 574 141 End 2010

20c 450 18 2012

Development work on the following projects is on going

Groups

interest as at

31 December

2008

Operating lease

20 Manage nent us Anaysis



In July 2008 the Group completed the acquisition of the entire equity

interest of local company in Paris which owns the building adjacent

to the site of the Shangri-La Hotel Paris at net cnsideration of

Euro 20.9 million approximately US$3 million The building will be

refurbished as an extension of the hotel currently under development

At the special general meeting held on 17 December 2008 the

independent shareholders of the Company approved the discloseable

and connected transactions in relation to the entering into the

Supplemental Agreement relating to the joint acquisition ownership and

development of the land sites in Jingan District Shanghai pursuant to

which the Company holding 49c equity interest and Kerry Properties

Limited CKPL holding 1% equity interest agreed that the maximum

total commitment shall be increased from US$700 million to Renminbi

7600 million approximately US$ .9 million at the exchange rate

as at 31 December 2008 The rise in the development costs of the

project was mainly attributable to changes in the development plans

increase in construction costs and inflation increase in land costs and

interest costs

The Groups wholly owned subsidiaries have acquired land use rights

in certain provincial cities in Mainland China including Sanya and

Qinhuangdao and Ulaanbaatar in the Republic of Mongolia for hotel

development and the Group is now reviewing the development scale

and roll-out schedule

The Group has 25.9c interest in the project companies which own

piece of land in the Midtown Manhattan New York The joint venture

parties are reviewing the investment of this project

The Group has also carried out design and concept planning for

95 room Shangri La Hotel at London Bridge Tower London in the

United Kingdom This hotel under operating lease is scheduled to open

for business in 2012

bNew Projects

During the year the Group entered into certain connected transactions

for new development projects in the following cities

composite development in Nanchang City Mainland China

composite development in the Bonifacio Global City located at

Taguig Metro Manila The Philippines

composite development in Tangshan City Mainland China

composite development in Nanjing City Mainland China

Details of these transactions are provided in items and under

the section headed Connected Transactions of the Report of the

Directors

The estimated incremental funding required directly by the subsidiaries

and the Groups share of the funding obligations of its associates for

all the existing and new projects including item below relating to

the acquisition and the restructuring of certain property interests in

the Philippines and other renovations involving fund commitments is

currently estimated at US$2 59 million as of 31 December 2008 which

included US$42.4 million guarantees to be executed by the Group in

favour of bank loans granted to associates

On March 2009 the Group entered into novation deed pursuant

to which the rights title and interests of APL under and in the master

joint venture agreement for the Nanjing development project including

but not limited to all APL Groups 5% rights title and interests in

and under part of the land deposit payment of Renminbi 4.5 million

already contributed by APL Group for Lnd use rights of piere of land

will be transferred and assigned by novation to the Group at cash

consideration of approximately HK$5.2 million approximately US$0.7

million The Groups interest in the master joint venture agreement

will be increased to 55c following the completion of the novation and
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the Groups 55o share of the maximum total investment in the project

will be increased to Renminbi 825 million approximately US$121

million The transactions are subject to the Curnpariys independent
shareholders approval

Disposals and Acquisitions
On

January 2008 the non controlling shareholder of the Companys
subsidiary Shangri La Mongolia Limited SML exercised its option under

the shareholders agreement to acquire from the Group an additional

equity interest and proportionate shareholders loans in SML which owns

the office tower development project in Ulaanbaatar the Republic of

Mongolia through its wholly owned subsidiary The total consideration for

the transfer was approximately US$1 93500u yielding the Group nominal

gain on this transaction The Group holds 51% equity interest in SML after

this dilution

On 30 May 2008 the Group acquired an additional 23% shareholding

interest together with proportionate shareholders loan in Shangri-La

Hotels Shenzhen Limited Shangri La Shenzhen an indirect 57o
owned subsidiary from substantial shareholder of this indirect owned

subsidiary at total consideration of
approximately Renminbi 135.1 million

approximately US$20 million Shangri La Shenzhen is the registered owner
of 90% interest in joint venture company established in the PRC which

owns and operates the Shangri La Hotel Shenzhen Following completion
of the acquisition the Group owns 72c effective interest in the Shangri-La

Hotel Shenzhen The amount of US$ 11284000 being the difference

between the value of the 23% interest and the consideration was charged

to the Groups retained earnings

On January 2009 the Group entered into connected transactions in

relation to the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of certain

Philippines property holding companies and related loans and proposed
to enter into other agreements to dispose of approximately 6.05% equity
interest in Mactan Shangri La Hotel Resort Inc MSH wholly

owned subsidiary of the Company which owns the Shangri Las Mactan

Resort Spa Cebu Shangri La Mactan Details of these transactions

are provided in Note 42b to the Consolidated Financial Statements As

at the date of this
report these transactions for the dilution of interest in

MSH have not been wholly completed In accordance with the
accounting

standard the difference between the consideration received for the dilution

of interest in MSH and the corresponding share of the net asset value in

MSH will be recorded as movement of equity in the 2009 consolidated

financial statements

Management Contracts

As at the date of this report the Group has management agreements
in respect of operating hotels owned by third parties and the Group has

agreements on hand for development of 14 new hotels The development

projects are located in Doha Qatar Toronto Las Vegas Miami Kuwait

Seychelles Bangalore Mumbai Macau and Abu Dhabi

Prospects
With the melt down of the financial market in the USA the financial

contagion which engulfed the global economies during the last quarter of

2008 continued through early 2009 This period witnessed unprecedented

volatility in the financial markets of most countries With recession in

the USA Europe and Japan and the
Jrweriainty creatd the political

situation in Thailand it is envisaged that the sentiment triggered by these

developments will dampen both business and leisure travel and spending

through the first half of 2009 at minimum In preparing for difficult and

weakening market environment the Groups hotels have initiated various

cost containment measures without compromising on standards and level of

service The Group believes that maintenance of product and service quality

in these difficult times is key to the long term success of the business

lO.Corporate Social Responsibility
Through Corporate Social Responsibility CSR tIre Group remains

committed to operating in an economically socially and environmentally

sustainable manner whilst balancing the interests of diverse stakeholders

In 2008 hotels continued to deliver on the Groups commitment based on
the five areas of CSR priorities
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The Environment

Efficient resource management remains priority across the Group Hotels

have been working on energy consumption reduction of from 2006

levels Water management systems such as graywater recycling have been

put in place along with campaign to reduce landfill bound waste

Environment Management Systems are steered by cross section of the

staff in
every property By the end of 2008 38 managed hotels and resorts

had the ISO 14001 certification Soon the group will work towards overall

reduction of carbon dioxide emissions

Beyond biodiversity conservation the Group aims to restore habitats and

promote environmental education At the Shangri Las Mactan Resort

and Spa Cebu the marine protected area spans five hectares from the

beachfront with restoration of over 50 species of fish clams and coral

At Shangri Las Barr Al jissah Resort and Spa in the Sultanate of Oman
dedicated turtle

ranger
has provided turtle hatcheries for the rare green

turtle and the hawksbill turtle that nest along Omans coastline

Stakeholder Engagement

Jobs creation becomes key objective in every locality that Shangri La

Group hotel opens in This CSR strategy among others is likewise

encouraged by the Groups business partners In some hotels key corporate

accounts and client groups already attend CSR seminars and are offered

green meeting packages

While Care for Children CFC remains the biggest partner in Mainland

China for overall child welfare other properties leverage partnerships with

NGOs in order to best address local social needs Care for the elderly

environmental conservation health sanitation and child development are

some of the many causes that various hotels support

Supply Chain

The Group seeks to maintain the highest of standards in hygiene safety

labour and environmental practice amongst its suppliers More products

are sourced from the best practitioners in eco friendly products such as

biodegradable plastic non MSG and least GMO food items More non

profit organizations community trade or organic growers for food products

are also made business partners

Health and Safety

The Group is committed to protecting the health and safety of its

customers employees suppliers and the public by providing safe and

healthy environment Each property has dedicated Fire/Life/Safety

Manager thoroughly trained for emergency and unpredictable situations

The Group has seen the growing interest in and value for OHSAS 8001

standard and planning tool for hazard identification risk assessment

and control altogether seel ing to minimize accidents and casualties to

employees given their working environment Shangri-La Hotel Kuala

Lumpur and Shangri La Hotel Singapore lead the Group in OHSAS

certification In due course an efficient integrated management system

along with the ISO 9001 14001 and HACCP will be implemented across

the Group

As leader in food safety management system 19 more properties

were certified under the Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point

System HACCP in 2008 bringing the total to 45 In 2009 all the

training programmes will be further cascaded to business partners Waste

Management and food safety seminars are to be conducted in local

organizations even with tour operators As well some of the properties

have commenced working with consultants towards making the hotels

friendlier destination for Persons With Disabilities PWD and children

Employees

The Group regards its people as its greatest asset and remains committed

to providing safe and healthy worl ing environment The Group maintains

the highest standards for its employees who are its partners delivering the

promise of true Asian hospitality
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As an industry leader and an employer of choice the Group ensures that

it remains committed to ensuring the welfare of its employees offering

competitive compensation packages and applicable minimum wage

requirements in every country and region where it operates It espouses

equal gender rights the ability to join employee organizations freedom

of expression and work life balance programmes From wellness/sports

recreation programmes to nutritious meals in the staff dining halls and

volunteer opportunities the staff can choose from wide range of activities

to engage in

Going Forward

In 2008 the Group accelerated its commitment to CSR by recognizing the

need for better accountabilit and management of its programmes The first

Area CSR and Sustainability Manager was hired for the Philippine properties

with this precise objective in mind CSR Champions and committees have

been set up in
every single property with various departments steering best

practices across the five key strategic areas of Environment Supply Chain

Health and Safety Employees and Stakeholder Engagement training

module on the importance of CSR as well as the localized impacts of

climate change will be cascaded throughout the Group in order to inspire

personal lifestyle change along with company mandate and policy This

module has been completed in the Philippine hotels and will be cascaded

to over 20 more hotels within 2009

I.Human Resources
As of December 2008 the Company and its subsidiaries had

approximately 23000 employees The headcount of all the Groups

managed hotels and resorts totaled 37000 Salaries and benefits including

provident fund insurance and medical cover housing and share option

schemes were maintained at competitive levels Bonuses were awarded

based on individual performance as well as the financial performance of

business units

The Company has two share options scheme Details of these two schemes

are provided in the section headed Share Options of the Report of the

Directors The Group has not granted any new options in 2007 and 2008

The Group charged US$454000 in its 2008 income statement for options

granted in 2005 and 2006

The Groups total employee benefit expenses excluding directors

emoluments amount to US$358033000 2007 US$320379000

The Boards remuneration committee reviews matters relating to the

compensation and the incentives proposed for senior management and

executive directors

The Group remains committed to developing its human capital In 2008

seventy high potential employees were selected to the groups core talent

development programmes which provide both on the job and classroom

learning over durations of twelve to eighteen months Thirteen employees

were certified in the Hospitality for Housekeeping Executive Programme

CHHE offered the American Hotel and Lodging Association three

year agreement of understanding was signed with the Spanish Foreign

Trade Institute ICEX in China and three of our chefs from China are

currently undergoing nine months culinary training in Spain In addition

number of corporate programmes were launched across the Group

during the year including self paced leadership development programme

targeting hotel general manager successors and new module Delighting

Customers for all employees

The Shangri-La Academy continues to accelerate and intensify employee

training in keeping with the Groups expansion Since its opening in

December 2004 it has trained more than 3500 employees through its

four core certificate programmes its diploma programmes and its various

management development programmes In December 2008 the Academy

fitted with state of the art facilities has moved to its new location at the

Sun Yat-Sen University Campus in Zhuhai

In 2008 the company received the American Society of Training and

Development ASTD BEST award which recognizes those exceptional

companies that create culture of learning at all levels of the organization

This was the first time an Asian hotel company was conferred this award

since its inception in 2003
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The Company recognizes the importance of transparency in governance

and accountability to shareholders The Board of Directors the Board

believes that shareholders can maximize their benefits from good corporate

governance Therefore the Company continuously reviews its corporate

governance framework to ensure alignment with generally acceptable practices

and standards

During the year under report the Company has met the code provisions as set

out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices contained in Appendix

14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited the HK Listing Rules except that the Company did not

appoint chief executive officer prior to April 2008 On April 2008 Mr

KUOK Khoon Ean was appointed as the Chairman of the Board and having

among other things the responsibilities as set out in the HK Listing Rules and

Mr KUOK Khoon Loong Edward was appointed as the President and Chief

Executive Officer of the Company

The Board of Directors

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leading the Group in

responsible and effective manner The current Board comprises Executive

Directors Non Executive Directors one of whom is an Alternate Director

and Independent Non-Executive Directors whose biographical details and

relationship between members of the Board are set out on pages to

The Board has majority of Non Executive Directors thereby improving

management control and ensuring that the Board takes into account the

interests of all shareholders

The Board meets at least four times
year at quarterly intervals and meets

more frequently as and when required At the Board meetings the Directors

actively participate and hold informed discussions The Board held four

meetings in 2008 and meetings attended by each of the Directors during the

year 2008 were as follows

Meetings attended

Name of Director eligible to attend

Executive Directors

Mr KUOK Khoon Ean Chairman

appointed as Director on April 2008 and

elected as Chairman of the Board on April 2008

Mr KUOK Khoon Loong Edward

appointed as the President and

Chief Executive Officer on April 2008

Mr LUI Man Shing

Mr Giovanni ANGELINI

Mr Madhu Rama Chandra RAO

appointed on December 2008

Mr NG Si Fong Alan retired on 23 May 2008

Non-Executive Directors

Madam KUOK Oon Kwong

Mr HO Kian Guan

Mr Roberto ONGPIN

Mr Alexander Reid HAMlLTON

Mr WONG Kai Man BBS jP

Mr Timothy David DATTELS

Mr Michael Wing-Nm CHIU

Mr LEE Yong Sun retired on 23 May 2008

Independent Non Executive Directors

3/3

4/4

4/4

3/4

0/0

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

I/I
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To facilitate the decision making process the Directors have unrestricted

access to the management to make enquiries and obtain further information

wlieii required In addition dli Dii ector5 have unrestricted aLces3 to the advice

and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that the Board procedures

and all applicable rules and regulations are followed The Board has adopted

the procedures for the Directors to obtain independent professional advice at

the Companys expense

Minutes of the Board meetings kept by the Company Secretary are sent to the

Directors for record and are open for inspection by the Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the Directors

The Board has appointed Board committees to oversee particular aspects

of the Companys affairs Each Board committee is appointed with written

terms of reference Certain matters are reserved to the full Board for decision

including matters relating to the following

constitution and share capital

corporate objectives and strategy

corporate policies relating to securities transactions by Directors and senior

management

interim and annual results

significant investments

major financings borrowings and guarantees

corporate governance and internal controls

risk management

major acquisitions and disposals

material contracts

board members and auditor

any
other significant matters that will affect the operations of the Group as

whole

The day-to day running of the Company is delegated to the management with

divisional heads responsible for different aspects of the business

Directors Appointment Re-election and Removal

The Company has not established nomination committee The Board as

whole is responsible for approving the appointment of its members and

nominating them for election and re election by the shareholders of the

Company

The Board has adopted the procedures for appointment of new Directors

to ensure that the Board consists of members with the
range

of skills and

qualities to meet its principal responsibilities in way which ensures that the

interests of shareholders are protected and promoted and the requirements of

the HK Listing Rules are complied with The procedures and criteria to select

candidates are as follows

The Company Secretary shall forthwith inform the Board as soon as the

number of Directors executive or non executive falls below the minimum

required by the HK Listing Rules or the Companys Bye-Laws or if there are

unfilled positions in any Board committees required to be constituted by

the HK Listing Rules

The Board identifies the need for new Director based on whether or not

the Company has an appropriate number of Directors to allow for effective

decision making
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The Board identifies potential candidates who may fill the role Potential

candidates should

complement the existing Board composition to ensure that there is an

appropriate mix of Directors with different abilities and experiences

have the required skills knowledge and expertise to add value to the

Board and

be able to commit the necessary time to their position

Suitable candidates are appointed in accordance with the Companys Bye

Laws and the HK Listing Rules All Directors should be appointed subject to

re election and to the HK Listing Rules the Companys Bye Laws and laws

concerning removal of Director

All Non-Executive Directors are appointed for specific term and are also

subject to the retirement provision in accordance with the Companys Bye

Laws Under the Companys Bye Laws every Director is subject to retirement

no later than the third Annual General Meeting AGM after he/she was

last elected or re elected Besides one third of the Directors shall retire from

office at each AGM The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re election

Independence of Independent Non-Executive

Directors

The Board has received from each of the Independent Non Executive

Directors confirmation of his independence according to the guidelines set

out in Rule 13 of the HK Listing Rules The Board is of the view that all

Independent Non Executive Directors of the Company are independent and

is grateful for the contribution and independent advice and guidance that

they have been giving to the Board and for their participation in the Board

committees

Remuneration Committee

Remuneration Committee was set up on October 1997 to make

recommendations to the Board on the Companys policy and structure

for all remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the

establishment of formal and transparent procedure for developing policy

on such remuneration The Committee comprises three members including

the Chairman and two Independent Non Executive Directors The current

Committee members are Messrs KUOK Khoon Ean who acts as chairman of

the Committee Alexander Reid HAMILTON and WONG Kai Man BBS JR

The Remuneration Committee met one time in 2008 and meeting attended by

each of the members during the year 2008 was as follows

Meeting attended

eligible to attendName of Member

Mr KUOK Khoon Ean Chairman 0/0

appointed as member and Chairman on

April 2008

Mr Alexander Reid HAMILTON I/I

Mr WONG Kai Man BBS JR

Mr KUOK Khoon Loong Edward I/I

ceased to be member on April 2008

The Remuneration Committee assessed the performance of the Executive

Directors in the context of the financial performance of the Group and

its development strategy in the medium term In approving the terms

of remuneration of the Executive Directors including the grant of share

options the Committee considered the financial results of the Group its

growth plans the competitive environment in the hotel industry for obtaining

competent management talent and the need to adequately reward outstanding

performances

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available in the

Groups corporate website www.ir.shangri Ia.com
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Directors Remuneration

The remuneration for the Executive Directors comprises salary annual

bonus pensions housing and annual leave fare for expatriate Executive

Directors Salaries are reviewed annually Salary increases are made where the

Remuneration Committee believes that adjustments are appropriate to reflect

performance contribution increased responsibilities and/or by reference to

market/sector trends In addition to salary Executive Directors and employees

of the Company and its subsidiaries are eligible to receive discretionary

bonus taking into consideration factors such as market conditions as well as

corporate and individual performances In order to attract retain and motivate

executives and key employees serving any member of the Group or other

persons contributing to the Group the Company has adopted share option

schemes Such incentive schemes enable the eligible persons
to obtain an

ownership interest in the Company and thus will motivate them to optimize

their contributions to the Group

The Directors emoluments paid or payable to the Directors during the year

are set out on an individual and named basis in Note 28 to the consolidated

financial statements of this Annual Report and details of the share option

schemes are set out in the Report of the Directors

Audit Committee

The Company set up an Audit Committee on 25 August 1998 The

Committee comprises three Non-Executive Directors two of them being

independent The current Committee members are Messrs Alexander Reid

HAMILTON who acts as chairman of the Committee HO Kian Guan

and WONG Kai Man BBS jP The Committee members have professional

qualifications and experience in financial matters that enable the Committee to

exercise its powers effectively and provide the Board with independent views

and recommendations in relation to financial matters

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following

reviewing the interim and annual financial statements before thy are

submitted to the Board for approval

ii making recommendations to the Board on the appointment re

appointment and removal of the external auditor and approving the

remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor and any

questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor

iii reviewing and monitoring the external auditors independence and

objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process

in accordance with

applicable standards

iv reviewing and monitoring the integrity of the interim and annual financial

statements reports of the Company and reviewing significant financial

reporting judgments contained in them before submission to the Board

reviewing the Companys financial controls internal control and risk

management systems

vi reviewing the Groups financial and accounting policies and practices

vii reviewing the internal audit programme ensuring co ordination between

the internal and external auditors and reviewing and monitoring the

effectiveness of the internal audit function
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The Audit Committee met four times in 2008 and meetings attended by each of

the members during the year 2008 were as follows

Meetings attended

Name of Member eligible to attend

Mr Alexande

Mr HO Kian

Reid HAMILTON

Guan

4/4

4/4

Mr WONG Kai Man BBS jP 3/4

Special meetings may be convened at the discretion of the chairman of the

Committee to review significant control or financial issues

The Audit Committee focused on the review of the Groups financial controls

and in particular the conduct of the internal audit at various operational units

in the Group They recommended the appointment and remuneration payable

to the Companys external auditor and satisfied themselves on the external

auditors independence and objectivity They also reviewed the interim and

annual financial statements before these were submitted to the Board for

approval and in the context of the new accounting and financial reporting

standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

they reviewed the compliance of these new standards by the Group

In addition the Committee members reviewed the reports issued by the internal

audit team and discussed the risk and internal control of the Group

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available at the Groups

corporate website

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the

financial statements of the Group In preparing the financial statements the

generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong have been adopted

appropriate accounting policies have been used and applied consistently and

reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates have been made

The Board is not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events

or conditions which may cast significant doubt over the Groups ability to

continue as going concern Accordingly the Board has continued to adopt

the grting concern basis in preparing the financial statements

The statement of the auditor of the Company about its reporting

responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the

Independent Auditors Report on page

Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective internal

control systems in the Group Internal control policies and procedures are

designed to identify and manage the risks that the Group may be exposed

to thereby providing reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of

corporate objectives Internal financial systems also allow the Board to

monitor the Groups overall financial position to protect the Groups assets

and to mitigate against material financial misstatement or loss Through

the Audit Committee of the Company the Board has conducted reviews

of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Company and

its subsidiaries The reviews cover all material controls including financial

operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
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Internal Audit

The Board also monitors its internal financial control systems through

management reviews and programme of internal audits The internal audit

team reviews the major operational and financial systems of the Group on

continuing basis and aims to cover all major operations within every division

on rotational basis The scope of its review and the audit programme is

determined and approved by the Audit Committee at the beginning of each

financial year in conjunction with the external auditors The internal audit

function reports directly to the Audit Committee and submits regular reports

for its review in accordance with the approved programme

External Auditors

The Companys external auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong

During the year PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong and its other member

firms provided the following audit and non audit services to the Group

Services Fees charged

US$000

Audit services including interim review 622

Non audit services

Tax services 143

Other advisory services 05

Total fees for audit services provided by other external auditors to the

subsidiaries of the Group were approximately US$446000

PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong will retire and offer themselves for re

appointment at the AGM of the Company to be held in May 2009

Investor Relations

The Board and senior management recognize their responsibility to look after

the interests of the shareholders of the Company

With view to developing and maintaining continuing good relations with the

Groups shareholders and investors various communication channels have

been established

The Company reports on its financial and operating performance to

shareholders through interim and annual reports At the AGM shareholders

can raise any questions relating to the performance and future direction of the

Company with the Directors

In addition press conferences and analysts briefings are held at least twice

year subsequent to the interim and final results announcements at which

appropriate senior management or Executive Directors are available to answer

queries on the Group Shareholders and investors may visit our website for

up to date financial and other information about the Group and its activities

As at December 2118 and based informxtion that is publicly available

to the Directors there is sufficient public float of the Companys shares as

required by the HK Listing Rules
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Securities Transactions by Directors

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the HK Listing Rules

as the Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Company the

Directors Securities Dealing Code

The Directors who had securities transactions in the Companys shares during

the
year

had informed the Chairman of their intention of dealing prior to

the transactions and provided the Company with details of the transactions

thereafter in compliance with the Directors Securities Dealing Code Interests

in the Companys shares and share options held by the Directors as at

December 2008 are set out in the Report of Directors section of this Annual

Report

The Company has made specific enquiry of all the Directors who confirmed

compliance with the required standard set out in the Directors Securities

Dealing Code throughout the year

Secu rities Transactions by Relevant Employees
The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Relevant Employees the Employees Securities Dealing Code setting out

the guidelines for relevant employees the Relevant Employees in respect

of their dealings in the securities of the Company The requirements under

the Employees Securities Dealing Code are the same as those under the

Directors Securities Dealing Code

The Relevant Employees who had securities transactions in the Companys

shares during the year had informed the Chairman or the Chief Financial

Officer of their intention of dealing prior to the trncctic-ns and prnvided the

Company with details of the transactions thereafter in compliance with the

Employees Securities Dealing Code

The Company has made specific enquiry of all the Relevant Employees who

confirmed compliance with the required standard set out in the Employees

Securities Dealing Code throughout the year
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial Results and Appropriations

statements for the year
ended 31 December 2008 The results for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on

page 64

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of

Operations The Board has declared an interim dividend of HKI4 cents per share for the

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding year

The principal activities of the Companys subsidiaries are the ownership and The details of dividends paid and proposed during the year are set out in Note

operation of hotels and associated properties and the provision of hotel 34 to the consolidated financial statements

management and related services The Companys subsidiaries are also the

registered proprietors of various trademarks and service marks in various Reserves

countries including the brand names Shangri-La Traders Rasa Summer The details of movements in reserves during the
year are set out in Notes

Palace and Shang Palace and related devices and logos and to the consolidated financial statements

The principal
activities of the Companys associates are the leasing of office Donations

commercial residential and exhibition hall space and serviced apartments as Charitable donations and other donations made by the Group during the year

well as the ownership and operation
of hotels amounted to US$1454000

An analysis of the Groups performance for the year by geographical and Fixed Assets

business segments is set out in Note to the consolidated financial statmentc
The details of movements in fixed assets during the

year are set out iii Notos

and to the consolidated financial statements
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Principal Properties Directors

The details of the hotel properlies and investment proper-ties are set out in The Directors who held office during the
year

and
up

to the date of this

Notes 40 and to the consolidated financial statements respectively report were

Share Capital Mr KUOK Khoon Ean appointed as Director on April 2008 and

The details of share capital are set out in Note to the consolidated financial as Chairman on April 2008

statements Mr KUOK Khoon Loong Edward resigned as Chairman and appointed as

President and Chief Executive Officer on April 2008

Subsidiaries and Associates Mr LUI Man Shing Deputy Chairman

The details of the Companys principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in
Mr Giovanni ANGELINI

Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements
Mr Madhu Rama Chandra RAO appointed on 18 December 2008

Madam KUOK Oon Kwong

Mr HO Kian GuanParticulars of Bank Loans and Overdrafts
Mr Roberto ONGPIN

The particulars of bank loans and overdrafts as at December 2008 are set

Mr Alexander Reid HAMILTON
out in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements

Mr WONG Kai Man BBS JR

Mr Timothy David DATTELS
Results Assets and Liabilities

Mr Michael Wing-Nm CHIU
The results assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years Mr HO Kian Hock Alternate to Mr HO Kian Guan
are set out on page 148

Mr NG Si Fong Alan retired on 2R May 2008

Mr LEE Yong Sun retired on 23 May 2008

Non Executive Directors

Independent Non Executive Directors

Mr LUI Man Shing Mr Giovanni ANGELINI Madam KUOK Oon Kwong and Mr

WONG Kai Man BBS JR retire by rotation in accordance with Bye Law 99 of

the Companys Bye-Laws All retiring Directors being eligible offer themselves

for re election
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Directors Interests and Short Positions in Shares Underlying Shares and Debentures
As at December 2008 the interests and short positions of the Directors in the shares underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated

corporations within the medning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance the SF0 the Associated Corporations as recorded in the register

required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SF0 or as otherwise notified to the Company and the HKSE
pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the HK Listing Rules were as follows

Long positions in shares of the Company and Associated Corporations

ii Associated Corporations

Shangri La Hotels

Malaysia Berhad

Shangri La Hotel Public

Company Limited

Mr HO Klan Guan

Mr HO Kian Hock Alternate to

Mr HO Kian Guan

Madam KUOK Oon Kwong

Mr LUI Man Shing

Class of Personal

Shares Interests

Note

Ordinary 438240 79693

Note

Percentage of

Total Issued

Share Capital

of the Relevant

Company as at

31 December

2008

0.08%

Name of Company

The Company

Name of Director

Number of Shares Held

Family Corporate Other

Interests Interests Interests

Mr KUOK Khoon Ean

Mr KUOK Khoon Loong Edward

Mr LUI Man Shing

Mr Giovanni ANGELINI

Mr Madhu Rama Chandra RAO

Madam KUOK Oon Kwong

Total

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

1808240 2326 173

Note

1032222

833333

316666

30000

168197

Ordinary 628750

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary 10000

1032222

833333

31666A

30000

213345 120747 502289

Note Note

117832393 118461143

Note

117832393 117832393

Note

10000 10000

Note

10000

0.04%

0.03%

0.01%

0.00%

0.02%

4.11%

4.08%

0.00%

0.01%
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Note

These shares were held by the relevant Directors as beneficial owners

These shares were held by the spouse of the relevant Directors

These shares were held through company which was controlled as to 00o by Mr KUOK

Khoon Ean and his spouse

These shares were held through company which was controlled as to SOo by Madam KUOK
Oon Kwong

771 64807 shares were held through companies which were controlled as to 5O by each of

Mr HO Kian Guan and Mr HO Kian Hock

4628719 shares were held through company which was controlled as to 25 by each of Mr

HO Kian Guan and Mr HO Kian Hock

4323268 shares were held through company which was controlled as to 3.33c and 7.08c

by Mr HO Kian Guan and Mr HO Kian Hock respectively

31715599 shares were held through companies which were controlled as to 6.7 and 6.8100

by Mr HO Kian Guan and Mr HO Kian Hock respectively

bLong positions in underlying shares of the Company and

Associated Corporations

As at December 2008 details of share options granted under the

Executive Option Scheme and the New Option Scheme to the Directors

of the Company who held office during the year were stated in the section

headed SHARE OPTIONS of this report

Save as mentioned above as at December 2008 none of the Directors had

any interests or short positions in the shares underlying shares or debentures

of the Company or any
of its Associated Corporations which had been

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section

352 of the SF0 or as otherwise notified to the Company and the HKSE

pursuant to the Model Code

Directors Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Groups business to which the

Company or its subsidiaries was party and in which any Director had

material interest subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year

Directors Interests in Competing Business

Pursuant to Rule 10 of the HK Listing Rules the Company disclosed below

that during the
year

and up to the date of this report the following Directors

are considered to have interests in the businesses which compete or are likely

to compete either directly or indirectly with the businesses of the Group

other than those businesses where the Directors of the Company have been

appointed/were appointed as Directors to represent the interests of the

Company and/or the Group

Madam KUOK Oon Kwong is Non Executive Director of Allgreen

Properties Limited APL company listed on the Singapore Exchange

Securities Trading Limited
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APL Group of companies APL Group has diversified portfolio of

properties in Singapore including serviced apartments Shangri La Hotel

Limited Singapore SHL wholly owrid subsidiary of tFie Company

also owns serviced apartment and condominium development in

Singapore While SHL and the APL Group may compete with each other

in the area of serviced apartment business the Directors believe that this

competition does not pose any material threat to SHLs business prospects

because

SHL is principally engaged in the hotel business

the serviced apartment business is an ancillary part of SHLs hotel

business

the Groups hotel business is effectively marketed on the strength

of Shangri-La International Hotel Management Limiteds SLIMs
renowned position in the hotel industry worldwide built on its strong

brands brand recognition and high-quality services

SHLs serviced apartment business is effectively marketed on the

strength of SLIMs renowned and high-quality services and

Madam KUOK Oon Kwong is only Non Executive Director of ARL

ii Messrs HO Kian Guan and HO Kian Hock are substantial shareholders

and Directors of the company which holds River View Hotel Singapore

Messrs HO Kian Guan and HO Kian Hock are substantial shareholders of

the company which holds Holiday Inn Riverside Wuhan the Holiday Inn

Holding Company Mr HO Kian Guan Director of the Holiday Inn

Holding Company

While such businesses may compete with the Groups hotel businesses in

Singapore and Wuhan the Directors believe that this competition does not

pose any rnateiial threat to the Groups hotel business piospeLts beLause

the hotels operated by the Group and those by the Directors with

competing interests are targeting different segments or groups of

customers in the market and the differentiation of the clientele

segments is based on combination of factors such as the geographical

locations of the hotels the breadth of services and amenities available

the positioning of the hotels in the local market the level of room rates

the size and scale of the hotel and the guest recognition programme

and/or

the Groups hotel business is effectively marketed on the strength of

SLIMs renowned position in the hotel industry worldwide built on its

strong brands brand recognition and high quality services

The abovementioned competing businesses are operated and managed by

companies with independent management and administration In addition the

Board is independent of the boards of the abovementioned companies carrying

on the competing businesses Accordingly the Group is capable of carrying on

its business independent of and at arms length from the competing businesses

mentioned above
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Share Options
Executive Share Option Scheme

The executive share option scheme of the Company was approved by the

shareholders of the Company the Shareholders on December 997 the

Executive Option Scheme

The Executive Option Scheme is designed to give Executive Directors of

managers of or other employees holding an executive managerial supervisory

or similar position in the Company or any of its subsidiaries an interest in

preserving and maximizing shareholder value in the longer term to enable the

Company to attract and retain individuals with experience and ability and to

provide individuals with incentives for future performance

summary of the Executive Option Scheme has been disclosed in the

Companys 2001 Annual Report

In September 2001 the HKSE amended the requirements for share option

schemes under the HK Listing Rules These new requirements make some of

the provisions of the Executive Option Scheme no longer applicable

At the Special General Meeting of the Company held on 24 May 2002 the

Adoption Date the Shareholders approved the adoption of new share

option scheme the New Option Scheme details of which are set out

below and the termination of the operation of the Executive Option Scheme

such that no further options shall thereafter be offered under the Executive

Option Scheme but in all other respects the provisions of the Executive

Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect

New Option Scheme

The purpose of the New Option Scheme is to motivate Eligible Persons

to optimize their future contributions to the Company its Subsidiaries
Note

and Associates
Note and Invested Entities

Note

collectively referred to as

the Enlarged Group and/or to reward them for their past contributions

to attract and retain or otherwise maintain on going relationships with such

Eligible Persons who are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will

be beneficial to the performance growth or success of the Enlarged Group

and additionally in the case of Executives Note to enable the Enlarged Group

to attract and retain individuals with experience and ability and/or to reward

them for their past contributions

The maximum number of shares in the Company the Shares in respect

of which options may be granted under the New Option Scheme and under

any other share option scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10
per cent of

the Shares in issue as at the Adoption Date the Scheme Mandate Limit

Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all options granted under

the Executive Option Scheme and outstanding as at the Adoption Date shall

not be included in the calculation of the Scheme Mandate Limit as at the

Adoption Date The Company may from time to time as the Board may think

fit seek approval from the Shareholders to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit

save that the maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise

of all options to be granted under the New Option Scheme and any other

share option scheme shall not exceed 10
per

cent of the Shares in issue as

at the date of approval by the Shareholders in the general meeting where such

limit is refreshed Notwithstanding the above the maximum number of Shares

which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet

to be exercised under the New Option Scheme and under
any

other share

optiurt 5LhttI shdll riot etxceed 30 per Lent of the Shdre in iue from time

to time
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As at the date of this report total of 7827849 Shares representing The New Option Scheme will expire on 23 May 201

approximately of the existing issued share capital thereof are available

frsr issu undr the New Option ccheme Notes

Eligible Person means any of the following persons

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the

an Executive

options granted to any one Eligible Person including exercised and outstanding

options in
any

month period shall not exceed one per cent of the Shares Director or proposed Director including an Independent Non Executive Director of

in issue from time to time any member of the Enlarged Group

direct or indirect shareholder of any member of the Enlarged Group

The period under which an option must be exercised shall be such period as

supplier of good or senaces to any member of the Enlarged Group
the Board may in its absolute discretion determine at the time of grant save

that such period shall not be more than 10 years commencing on the date of customer consultant business or joint venture partner franchisee contractor agent or

grant of an option The minimum period for which an option must be held representative of any member of the Enlarged Group

before it can be exercised is determined by the Board upon the grant of an
person or entity

that provides research development or other technological support or

option The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1 The full any advisory con ultancy professional or other services to any member of the Enlarged

amount of the exercise price for the subscription of Shares must be paid upon
Group

exercise of an option landlord or tenant ncluding sub tenant of any member of the Enlarged Group

any person approved by the shareholders of the Company and

The exercise price for any particular option shall be such price as the Board

of the Company may in its absolute discretion determine at the time of grant
an Associate of any of the foregoing persons

of the relevant option and shall be stated in the letter containing the offer of
The terms Associates Executives Invested Entities and Subsidiaries are defined under

the grant of the option but the exercise price shall not be less than whichever the circular to Shareholders dated 17 April 2002

is the highest of the nominal value of Share the closing price of the

Shares as stated in the HKSEs daily quotation sheets on the date of the Board

resolution approving the grant of options the Offer Date which must

be day on which the HKSE is open for the business of dealing in securities

the Business Day and the
average

of the closing prices of the Shares

as stated in the HKSEs daily quotation sheets for the five Business Days

immediately preceding the Offer Date
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Details of the outstanding option shares as at 31 December 2008 which have been granted under the Executive Option Scheme are as follows

Continuous

Contract

Employees

Date of grant Tranche

May 1998

Mdy 1998

May 1998

15 january 2000

15 january 2000

15 january 2001

15 january 2001

May 1998

May 1998

May 1998

15 january 2000

15 january 2000

77408

II 941e8

III 154816

285887

II 285885

33961

II 33960

16112

II 116112

III 206392

270262

II 368260

Note

77408

94 68

154816

72684

72682

116112

116112

206392

63220

87219

HK$

826

8.26

8.26

213203 8.82

213203 8.82

33961 8.18

33960 8.18

8.26

8.26

8.26

207042 8.82

281041 8.82

Exercisable Period

May 1999 30 April 2008

May 2000 30 April 2008

May 2001 30
April

2008

l5january200l l4january2OlO

IS january2002 14 january 2010

lsjanuary2002 l4january 2011

lsjanuary 2003 l4january 2011

May 1999 30 April
2008

May 2000 30 April 2008

May 2001 30 April 2008

15 january 2001 14 january 2010

15 january 2002 14 january 2010

No of No of No of No of No of

option option Transfer Transfer option option option

shares shares from other to other shares shares shares Exercise

held as at granted category category exercised lapsed held as at price per

January during during during during during December option

2008 the year the year the year the year the year 2008 share

Other

Participants

Total 2043223 1060813 982410
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Details of the outstanding option shares as at December 2008 which have been granted under the New Option Scheme are as follows

Mr KUOK

Khoon Loong

Edward

Mr LUI Man Sdng

l6june 2006

l6june 2006

II 00000

II 60000

100000

60000

1460 l6june2008 l5june2Ol6

460 16June2008 5june2Ol6

Mr Giovanni 28 April 2005

ANGELINI 28 April 2005

june 2006

l6june 2006

29 May 2002

29 May 2002

28 April 2005

28
April

2005

l6june 2006

l6june 2006

500000

II 500000

100000

II 100000

60000

II 60000

150000

II 150000

50000

II 50000

60000

60000

150000

150000

50000

50000

500000

500000

6.81

6.81

11.60

11.60

14.60

14.60

28 Apri 2006 27 April 2015

28
April

2007 27
April

2015

lojune2007 lojune2Ol6

6june2008 l5june2Ol6

29May2003 28May20l2

29May2004 28May20l2

28 April 2006 27 April 2015

28 April 2007 27
April

2015

16june2007 lSjune2Ol6

16june2008 lSjune2Ol6

Date of grant Tranche

Directors

No of No of No of No of No of

option option Transfer Transfer option option option

shares shares from other to other shares shares shares Exercise

held as at granted category category
exercised lapsed held as at price per

January during during during during during 31 December option

2008 the year the year the year the year

Note

the year 2008 share

HK$

Exercisable Period

28
April

2005

l6june 2006

l6june 2006

Mr Madhu Rama

Chandra RO

Note

Mr NG Si Fong

Alan Note

II

II

250000

50000

50000

00000

100000

250000

50000

50000

11.60

11.60

14.60

14.60

.60

14.60

4.60

28
April

2007 27
April

2015

l6june2007 lSjune2Ol6

l6june2008 lSjune2Ol6
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Mr HO Kian Guan

MrLEEYongSun

Note

I6june 2006

16 june 2006

II 30000

II 30000 30000

30000 1460 16June2008 I5june2Ol6

1460 I6june2008 I5june2OI6

28
April

2006 27
April

2015

28 AprI 2007 27
April

2015

l6june2007 l5june2Ol6

l6june2008 lSjune2Ol6

Mr Alexander june 2006

Reid 16 june 2006

HAMILTON

30000

II 30000

30000

30000

14.60 6june2007 lSjune2Ol6

4.60 16june2008 l5june2Ol6

Date of grant Tranche

Directors Continued

Madam KUOK

Oon Kwong

No of No of No of No of No of

option option Transfer Transfer option option option

shares shares from other to other shares shares shares Exercise

held as at granted category category exercised lapsed held as at price per

January during during during during during 31 December option

2008 the year the year the
year

the
year

Note

the year 2008 share

HK$

28 April 2005

28
April

2005

16 june 2006

l6june 2006

150000

II 150000

60000

II 60000

Exercisable Period

11.60

11.60

14.60

1460

Mr Roberto 28
April

2005

ONGPIN 28
April

2005

16 june 2006

16 June 2006

28
April

2006 27
April

2015

28
April 2007 27 April 2015

l6june2007 lSjune2Ol6

l6june2008 lSjune2Ol6

75000

II 75000

30000

II 30000

150000

150000

60000

60000

75000

75000

30000

30000

11.60

11.60

14.60

14.60
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No of

option Transfer Transfer

shares from other to other

held as at granted category category exercised

2008 the year the year the year the year the year

Note

lapsed held as at
price per

option

HK$

Directors Continued

28 April 2005

28 April 2005

16 june 2006

16 June 2006

75000

II 75000

30000

II 30000

28 AprI 2006 27
April

2015

28
Aprit

2007 27
April

2015

6june2007 15june2016

l6june2008 l5june2Ol6

No of

option

shares

Date of grant Tranche

January during during

option option option

shares shares shares Exercise

during during during 31 December

2008 share

Mr Timothy David

DATTELS

Continuous

Contract

Employees

Other

Participants

Exercisable Period

29 May 2002

29 May 2002

28
April

2005

28 April 2005

l6june 2006

16 June 2006

29 May 2002

29 May 2002

28
April

2005

28
April

2005

28
April

2005

l6june 2006

l6june 2006

l6june 2006

249500

II 80500

3198000

II 4284000

2122500

II 2372500

375000

II 385000

540000

II 540000

II 50000

457500

II 37500

II 477500

80000

80000

37500

75000

60000

60000

50000

150000

50000

50000

25000

25000

20000

67500

75000

75000

30000

30000

269500

150500

2948000

3714000

1875000

2178500

275000

285000

425000

425000

350000

40000

90000

25000 295000

275000 365000

70000 190000

87500 81500

100000

100000

140000

140000

50000

127500

37500

27500

160

leo

4.60

14.60

6.81

6.81

11.60

11.60

4.60

1460

6.81

6.81

11.60

11.60

1.60

14.60

14.60

4.60

29 May 2003 28 May 2012

29May2004 28May20l2

28 April 2006 27 April 205

28 April 2007 27 April 2015

l6june2007 15June2016

16june2008 l5June2Ol6

29May2003 28May20l2

29May2004 28May20l2

28
April

2006 27
April

2015

28
April

2007 27
April

2015

28
April

2007 May 2008

l6june2007 lSJune2Ol6

16 June 2008 30 June 2008

161une2008 151une2016517500

Total 18109500 1007500 1007500 2814000 272500 15023000
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Notes

The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the dates on which the

options were exercised was HK$2 1.60

Mr Madhu Rama Chandra RAG was appointed as Director of the Company on 18 December

2008

Mr NC Si Fong Alan and Mr LEE Yong Sun retired by rotation as Directors of the Company

on 23 May 2008

At the Special General Meeting of the Company held on 24 May 2002 the shareholders of

the Company approved the adoption of the New Option Scheme and the termination of

the operation of the Executive Option Scheme such that no further options shall thereafter

be offered under the Executive Option Scheme but in all other respects the provision of the

Executive Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect

No options were cancelled under the Executive Option Scheme and the New Option Scheme

during the year and subsequent to 31 December 2008 and up to the date of this report

Options on 210000 shares were lapsed under the New Option Scheme and no options were

lapsed under the Executive Option Scheme subsequent to 31 December 2008 and up to the

date of this report

No options were exercised under the Executive Option Scheme and the New Option Scheme

subsequent to 31 December 2008 and up to the date of this report

Directors Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

As at December 2008 details of options granted under the Executive

Option Scheme and the New Option Scheme to the Directors of the

Company who held office during the year were stated in the previous section

headed SHARE OPTIONS of this report

Apart from the aforesaid at no time during the year was the Company or

its subsidiaries party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or their

spouses mr children under years age to acquire benefits by means of

the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body

corporate

Connected Transactions

During the financial year ended December 2008 and in the normal

course of business the Company and its subsidiaries had various commercial

transactions with certain connected persons These transactions are considered

to be connected transactions under the HK Listing Rules Details of these

transactions are as follows

On March 2008 consortium formed between Kerry Properties

China Limited KPCL an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Kerry

Properties Limited KPL an associate of Kerry Holdings Limited KHL
which is substantial shareholder of the Company and Shangri La China

Limited SACL an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

won bid at an open bidding to acquire the land use rights of the project

site in Nanchang City Jiangxi Province PRC Nanchang Project Site

at consideration of approximately RMB258000000 equivalent to

US$36000000

KPCL and SACL in the proportions of 80c and 20c respectively

established wholly foreign owned enterprise in Nanchang City Jiangxi

Province PRC JVCO in May 2008 for the purpose of acquiring holding

and developing the Nanchang Project Site The maximum total investment

amount of the JVCO is approximately RMB2200000000 equivalent to

US$310000000 The Groups share of the maximum funding commitment

is approximately RMB440000000 equivalent to US$62000000 SACL

has contributed proportional equity of RMB55748000 equivalent to

US$8200000 to the JVCO during the year KPL is connected person

of the Company by virtue of it being an associate of KHL Accordingly the

entering into of the transactions as described above constituted connected

transactions for the Company
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On May 2008 Oceans Growth Limited OGL an indirect wholly

owned subsidiary of the Company Shang Properties Inc SPI an

acoriat cf KHL and Aiphaland Corporation ALl entered into

shareholders agreement for the formation of joint venture company

the Landowning JVCO relating to the acquisition and ownership of

parcel of land the Land with maximum permissible gross
floor area of

approximately of 60000 square metres within development area nown

as the Bonifacio Global City located in Metro Manila in the Philippines

at total cost of approximately Pesos 2621500000 approximately

US$62078000 The Landowning JVCO is owned by OGL SPI and ALl

as to 40c 40c and 20c respectively The maximum funding commitment

of the Companys 40 interest in the Landowning jVCO is approximately

US$27000000 which is mainly for funding the purchase of the Land and

the payment of miscellaneous expenses

On 30 June 2008 OGL SPI ALl and Shang Fort Bonifacio Holdings Inc

SFBHI wholly owned subsidiary of SPI entered into shareholders

agreement for forming another joint venture company the Developer

JVCO in the proportions of 40% 40% and 20c respectively The

Developer JVCO and the Landowning jVCO will enter into an

unincorporated joint venture for the construction of five-star hotel and

high end development on the Land The maximum funding commitment

of the Companys 40c interest in the Developer JVCO is approximately

US$1 8400000 whether equity loan financial assistance or otherwise SPI

is an associate of KPL and KPL is in turn subsidiary of KHL substantial

shareholder of the Company Hence such transactions constituted

connected transactions of the Company

On 29 May 2008 the Company and its direct wholly owned subsidiary

Seanoble Assets Limited Seanoble entered into sale and purchase

agreement with COFCfl Hong Kong Limited COFCO HK
Promptwell Limited Promptwell and Pearl Treasure Limited Pearl

Treasure indirect wholly owned subsidiaries of COFCO HK for the

acquisition the Acquisition from Promptwell of 23c of the entire issued

share capital of Shangri La Hotels Shenzhen Limited Shangri La

Shenzhen in which Seanoble owned 57c interest before the

Acquisition and an interest free loan of HK$95356 from Pearl Treasure

at an aggregate cash consideration of RMB 135 525 approximately

HK$150783000 Following completion of the Acquisition Shangri-La

Shenzhen has become an indirect 80c owned subsidiary of the Company

Immediately prior to the entering into of the sale and purchase agreement

Shangri La Shenzhen was owned as to 23c by Promptwell and Promptwell

was therefore substantial shareholder of Shangri La Shenzhen COFCO

HK and Pearl Treasure were associates of Prom ptwell and hence each

of Promptwell Pearl Treasure and COFCO HK was connected person

of the Company Accordingly the entering into of the sale and purchase

agreement constituted connected transaction for the Company

On june 2008 Shangri La Ulaanbaatar Hotel LLC Mongolian jV
project company formed by the wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company

and MCS Holding LLC NICS Holding for owning and developing hotel

in Ulaanbaatar the Development entered into consultancy agreement

with MCS Estates LLC MCS Estates direct wholly owned subsidiary

of MCS Holding Pursuant to the consultancy agreement N1CS Estates

undertakes to provide management support services in relation to the

development of the project during the term commencing from the date of

the agreement until December 2009 at fixed fee of US$2500000 As

at 31 December 2008 the Mongolian JV is wholly owned by Intense Power
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Limited joint venture company in which the Company and MCS Holding

own 75c and 23% indirect interest respectively As MCS Holding is holding

49o equity interest in non wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

it is connected person of the Company MCS Estates being wholly

owned subsidiary of MCS Holding is an associate of connected person

of the Company Such transaction constituted connected transaction of the

Company

On 21 July 2008 SACL KPCL Jeston Investments Pie Ltd jIPL
direct wholly owned subsidiary of APL and Winson Terrace International

Limited WTIL an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Kuolc Brothers

Sdn Bhd KB jointly won the bids at the open biddings to acquire

the land use rights of three sites in Tangshan City Hebei Province PRC

Tangshan Project Sites at cash consideration of RMB 1705000000

approximately HK$ 1960000000 The Tangshan Project Sites have

gross area of approximately 295013.83 square metres and are designated

for hotel and residential uses with ancillary commercial use Following

the successful bidding of the Tangshan Project Sites the Company KPL

APL and KB entered into master joint venture agreement with respect

to the establishment of one or more wholly foreign owned enterprises

Tangshan JVCOs in Tangshan City PRC for the purpose of acquiring

holding and developing the Tangshan Project Sites The shareholdings

of the respective subsidiaries of the Company KPL APL and KB in

Tangshan JVCOs shall be in the proporlions of 20c 40c 25c and 5%

respectively The maximum total investment amount of the Tangshan

jVCOs shall be approximately RM B7300000000 approximately

HK$8391000000 and the maximum funding commitment of the

Companys 20c interest in the Tangshan JVCOs is expected to be

ppr oximately RMB 1460000000 dppi uximdtely HK$1678000000

KPL is an associate of KHL and therefore connected person of the

Company APLs subsidiary is substantial shareholder interested in 25c

of the issued shares of an indirect 75 owned subsidiary ot the Company

and therefore APL is connected
person

of the Company Accordingly the

entering into of the transactions as described above constituted connected

transactions for the Company under the HK Listing Rules and were

approved by the independent shareholders of the Company at the Special

General Meeting held on 10 September 2008 Subsequent to December

2008 there are changes to the development plan for the Tangshan Project

Sites Details of the changes are provided in Note 42 to the consolidated

financial statements

On 23 September 2008 SACL KPCL and Belfin Investments Pie Ltd

BIPL direct wholly owned subsidiary of APL jointly won the bid at

the open bidding to acquire the land use rights of project site in Nanjing

City Jiangsu Province PRC Nanjing Project Site at cash consideration

of RM B200000000 approximately HK$230000000 The Nanj ing Project

Site has
gross area of 7014.4 square

metres and is designated for hotel

commercial and office use Following the successful bidding of the Nanjing

Project Site the Company KPL and APL entered into master joint

venture agreement with respect to the establishment of wholly foreign-

owned enterprise in Nanjing City Jiangsu Province PRC Nanjing JVCO
for the purpose of acquiring holding and developing the Nanjing Project

Site The Nanjing JVCO shall be owned by the Company KPL and APL as

to 4Oo 45c and 5o respectively The maximum total investment amount

of the Nanjing JVCO is approximately RMB 1300000000 approximately

HK$1724000000 The maximum contributions of the Group is

approximately RM B600000000 approximately HK$690000000 KPL is an

aociate of KHL and therefore connected person of the Company APLs

subsidiary is substantial shareholder interested in 25c of the issued shares

of an indirect 75c owned subsidiary of the Company and therefore APL is

connected person of the Company Accordingly the entering into of the

transactions as described above constituted connected transactions for the

Company
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At the special general meeting of the Company held on 29 june 2004

the independent shareholders of the Company approved the master

agreement made between the Company and KPL on 13 April 2004 jingan

Master Agreement in relation to the joint acquisition ownership and

development of the sites in jingan District Shanghai PRC jingan Sites

and the relevant transactions contemplated thereunder As set out in the

ingan Master Agreement and disclosed in the Companys circular dated 31

May 2004 the total costs of the acquisition ownership construction and

development of the jingan Sites jingan Project including the cost of the

acquisition of the jingan Sites and related costs were then estimated to be

not more than US$600000000 and no party shall be required to commit

further tunding if the cost ot the jingan Project exceeds US$700000UUU

However as the development costs have risen since the date of the

jingan Master Agreement it is currently anticipated that the total

costs of the jingan Project will exceed US$700000000 and may reach

RMB7022000000 On 28 October 2008 the Company and KPL entered

into supplemental agreement for the purpose of amendment of the

maximum aggregate funding commitment for the jingan Project from

US$700000000 to RMB7600000000 As result the maximum funding

commitment of the Companys 49c interest in the jingan Project is

increased to RMB3724000000

KHL is the substantial shareholder of the Company KPL is an associate

of KHL and therefore KPL is connected person of the Company

Accordingly the transactions as described above constituted connected

transactions for the Company under the HK Listing Rules and were

approved by the independent shareholders of the Company at the Special

General Meeting held on December 2008

Unsecured shareholders loans and guarantees

The Group provided financial assistance to certain companies in prior years

and in 2008 The balances of these financial assistance as at the respective

year end date of 2008 and 2007 are listed below

AUnsecured shareholders loans

Loan balance

2008

Us$000

2007

US$000

Non wholly owned subsidiaries

Traders Yangon Company Limited

TYCL
interest bearing portion 32604 34134

non interest bearing portion 34021 34021

Shangri-La Yangon Company Limited

interest bearing portion 1992 1992

non interest bearing portion 23732 23732

Traders Square Company Limited

non interest bearing 4406 4406

Shangri La Mongolia Limited

SML
interest bearing at 6-month LIBOR

1%
per

annum 6406 8737

Shangri-La International Hotels

Chengdu Ltd SLHCL
non interest bearing 63817 63817
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Associates

Cuscaden Proper-ties Pte Ltd CPPL
non-interest bearing

interest bearing at SWAP Q.Soo

per annum

Shanghai Ji Xiang Properties Co Ltd

CSjXP

non interest bearing

interest bearing at month HIBOR

2%
per annum

Expert Vision Holdings Limited EVHL
non interest bearing

Happy Day Holdings Limited HDHL
non interest bearing

Shine Up Holdings Limited SUHL
non interest bearing

Tianjin Kerry Real Estate Development

Co Ltd TKRED
non-interest bearing

Shang Global City Properties Inc

SGPI

Loan balance

2008 2007

US$OOO US$000

non interest bearing 29432

lnvestee company

P.T Saripuri Permai Hotel PTSPH
non interest bearing 495 695

Guarantees executed in favour of banks for securing bank

loans/facilities granted

Non wholly owned subsidiaries

Shangri-La Hotel Guangzhou Pazhou

Co Ltd SLPG 77328 77328

Shangri-La Ulaanbaatar LLC SULx 11220 3600

Shangri La Hotel Chengdu Co Ltd

LCD 64000 64000

Associates

Beijing jia
Ao Real Estate Development

Co Ltd Beijing jia Ao 7006 9856

Shanghai Xin Ci Hou Properties Co
Ltd 4918 7090

Fine Winner Holdings Limited

CFWHL 12000 9484

Amount of

guarantees given

2008 2007

us$000 US$OOo15068 15390

20903 21350

336 336

29210 29210

13644 23709

4300

11534 11134

2537 2537
Notes

Please refer to 2000 annual report for other details of the financial assi tance

provided Terms of such financial assistance except those set out in Note ii below

remain unchanged as at year end of 2008

Under supplemental agreement the loan interest rate has been changed to 2.5 per

arlriuiji coiTirnericing April 200L and further changed to year LIBUR per annum

commencing April 2007 under another supplemental agreement
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iii The proportionate shareholders loans were granted pursuant to shareholder loan

agreement dated 20
April

2006 between Lion Strength Limited Lion Strength

1000 indirectly
owned by the Company and SML The minority shareholder of SN1L

exercised its uption uiidei the 5ubsription and 5harehold0r agreemnt to acquire

from Lion Strength an additional equity interest and proportionate shareholders

loans in january 2008 After the exercise of option the maximum amount of loan to

be granted by Lion Strength is US$8956000 The loan is unsecured bearing interest

at month LIBOR plus 10o per annum and wholly repayable on 20
April

2009

iv The proportionate shareholders loan was granted by Seanoble to SLHCL an 80c

owned subsidiary of Seanoble and Fast Action Associates Limited FAAL owns the

remaining 20 interest The loan is unsecured interest free and has no fixed terms of

repayment

The original interest bearing loan bearing interest at .25c per annum was split into

non intre portion ani interest portinn hearin0 interest at SWAP 0.5 per annum

effective january 2006 as agreed by all shareholders of CPPL

vi The proportionate hareholders loan was granted by Kerry Shanghai jingan Nanli Ltd

KSjN an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company to SjXP company

owned as to 49c by KSjN and by an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of KPL

pursuant to the master agreement executed on 13 April 2004 Pursuant to the master

agreement Shanghai Ming Cheng Real Estate Development Co Ltd SMC and

Shanghai un Ci Hou Properties Company Limited SjC companies owned as to

49% by KSjN and 10o by an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of KPL were merged

with SjXP in 2007

vii The proportionate shareholders loan granted by KSjN to SN1C under shareholder

loan agreement dated December 2005 with maximum amount of loan to be

granted by KSjN of HK$34153000 equivalent to US$4407000 was absorbed by

SjXP in 2007 pursuant to the master agreement The proportionate shareholders

loan granted by KSjN to SjC under shareholder loan agreement dated December

2005 with maximum amount of loan to be granted by KSjN of HK$245000000

equivalent to US$31613000 was absorbed by SJXP in 2007 pursuant to the master

agreement These loans were unsecured bearing interest at month HIBOR plus

per annum and wholly repayable on 31 December 2015

vni The proportionate shareholders loan was granted by Seanoble to EVHL which is 30c

owned by Seanoble 30% owned by an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of KPL and

40c owned by KHL pursuant to the shareholders agreement dated 29 September

2006 EVHL owns 1000 interest in FWHL The loan is unsecured non interest bearing

and has no fixed terms of repayment

ix The proportionate shareholders loans were granted by Forever Up Investments

Limited FUlL an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company to each of

HDHL and SUHL in which FUlL has 25% interest pursuant to the joint venture

agreements dated 17 july
007 and the amended and reiterated joint venture

agreement dated 10 October 2007 The loans were un ecured interest free and have

no fixed term of repayment

The proportionate shareholders loan was granted by Kerry Tianjin Ltd to TKRED

pursuant to the shareholders loan agreement dated 22 October 2005 and the

shareholders loan assignment agreement dated 29 May 2007 The loan is unsecured

interest free and wholly repayable on 31 December 2020 and was subsequently

assigned to SACL pursuant to the loan assignment agreement dated 15 February

2008 The Groups proportionate equity and shareholders loan in TKRED have been

transferred to SACL in year 2008

xi The proportionate shareholders loan was granted by OGL to SGPI which 40%

owned by OGL The loan is unsecured interest free and has no fixed terms of

repayment

xii The amount of guarantees di closed is stated with reference to the utilized bank

loans/facilities balance

xiii On 12 October 2006 the Company executed guarantee in favour of The Bank

of East Asia Limited Guangzhou Branch BEA Guangzhou guaranteeing the full

repayment of the monies up to US$60000000 owed by SLPG to BEA Guangzhou

under the loan facilitie of US$60000000 made available by BEA Guangzhou to

SLPG the BEA Guangzhou Facility and related intere ts and expenses The BEA

Guangzhou Facility was granted to SLPG for meeting operating funding requirement

and for financing the repayment of shareholders loans On 28 june 2007 the

Company executed another guarantee in favour of Bank of China Ltd Guangdong

Branch BOC Guangdong guaranteeing the full repayment of the monies up

to US$36660000 used by SLPG to BOC Guangdong under the loan facilities of

US$36660000 made available by BOC Guangdong to SLPG the BOC Facility

and related interests and expenses
The BOC

Facility was granted to SLPG for the

repayment of shareholders loans Pursuant to the equity transfer agreement signed

by Kerry Industrial Company Limited an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the

Company FAAL Bangkok Mercantile Hong Kong Co Limited BMCL and

Robinson Enterprise Limited REL in the ratio of 1000 5% and 5% regarding the

guaranteed liabilitie of the Company in respect of the BEA Guangzhou Facility and

the BOC
Facility

On 31 March 2008 FAAL BMCL and REL executed two Deeds

indemnilying the company for such proportion of interest in SLPG dii ectly oF

indirectly held by FAAL BMCL and REL from time to time of all and any amounts

due and owing by FAAL BMCL and REL under the guarantees in respect of the BEA

Guangzhou Facility
and the BOC Facility
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xiv The guarantee was provided to bank for securing loan facilities granted to SUL in

2007 and was stated after deducting the amount of counter indemnity provided by

MCS Holding

xv On 30 October 2006 the Company executed guarantee in favour of the Bank of

East Asia Limited Chengdu Branch BEA Chengdu guaranteeing the repayment of

800o of the monies up to US$48000000 owed by SLCD wholly owned subsidiary

of SLHCL in which the Company has an indirect 80c interest and which is 20c
owned

company of FAAL to BEA Chengdu under the loan facilities of US$60000000
made available by BEA Chengdu to SLCD the BEA Chengdu Facility and the

related interests and expenses On 18 October 2007 the Company executed another

guarantee in favour of the Bank of East Asia Limited Shanghai Branch BEA
Shanghai guaranteeing the repayment of 80c of the monies up to US$16000000
owed by SLCD to BEA Shanghai under the loan facilities of US$20000000 made

available by BEA Shanghai to SLCD the BEA Shanghai Facility and the related

intrsts and penses Both the BEA Chcngdu Facility arid BEA
Shdiigliai Facility were

granted to SLCD for meeting operating funding requirement and for financing the

repayment of shareholders loans

xvi The guarantees were provided to bank for securing loan facilities granted to

Beijing jia Ao and
Beijing Kerry Centre Hotel Co Ltd BKC in 2004 the 2004

Guarantees and for securing loan facilities granted to
Beijing jia Ao during the year

of 2006 the 2006 Guarantee Please refer to 2004 and 2006 annual reports for

details of the 2004 Guarantees and the 2006 Guarantee provided The guarantee for

BKC in 2004 was terminated following the maturity of the banking facilities Terms of

uch financial assistance remain unchanged as at year end of 2008

xvii Please refer to 2005 annual report for detvils nf the giiaranteec prmvidad Term af

such financial assistance remain unchanged as at year end of 2008

xviii The guarantee was provided to bank for secur ng loan facilities granted to FWHL in

2007

Continuing Connected Transactions

During the financial year ended December 2008 there were continuing

connected transactions of the Group in effect as set out below

On 28 January 1995 the Company entered into discloseable and

connected transaction to acquire various hotel interests from certain

parties including connected persons of the Company Included in these

hotel interests are Shangri Las Edsa Plaza Hotel Manila now known

as Edsa Shangri La Manila Edsa Shangri La Hotel and ii Shangri-Las

Mactan Island Resort Cebu now known as Shangri Las Mactan Resort

Spa Cebu Mactan Resort Edsa Shangri-La Hotel is built on land

leased from Shangri La Properties Inc now known as Shang Properties Inc

SPI an associate of KPL under 25 year lease commencing in 1992

with an option to renew the lease for further term of 25 years Upon

expiration of the further term SPI agrees to grant to Edsa Shangri-La Hotel

Resort Inc the owner of Edsa Shangri-La Hotel new lease term of

25
years subject to the prevailing Philippines laws Mactan Resort is built

on land leased from Brown Swallow Development Corporation BSDC
and Green Mangrove Realty Inc GMRI both of which were associates

of Kerry Group Limited KGL as at December 2008 under 25 year

lease commencing in 990 with an option to renew the lease for an

additional 25 years Further information
regarding these leases are set out

in the Companys circular dated
February 995
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SPI BSDC and GNIRI are connected persons of the Company by virtue of

them being associates of KGL substantial shareholder of the Company

ALLordingly these leases constitute continuing connected transactions of

the Company under the HK Listing Rules BSDC and GMRI ceased to be

connected persons of the Company on January 2009

For the year
ended December 2008 an aggregate amount of

US$ 632000 2007 US$ 179 000 was paid to SPI and an aggregate

amount of US$ 1476000 2007 US$ 1442000 was paid to BSDC and

GMRI

Shangri La International Hotel Management Limited 5LIM and its fellow

subsidiaries provided hotel management marketing communication and

reservation services Hotel Management Services to five hotels/clubs

which are owned by certain connected persons of the Company as set out

in the table below pursuant to hotel management marketing and related

agreements entered into between various SLIM entities and the relevant

connected persons
of the Company SLIM is an indirect wholly owned

subsidiary of the Company

CPPL is the owner of Traders Hotel Singapore CPPL is owned as to

55.4o by APL and as to 40.75o by the Group As CPPL is substantial

shareholder of subsidiary of the Company both CPPL and APL being

the holding company of CPPL are regarded as connected persons
of the

Company at the subsidiaries level under the HK Listing Rules

TYCL is the owner of Traders Hotel Yangon TYCL is owned as to

by Kuok Singapore Limited KSL as to .76c by jenko Properties

Limited JPL nd to 59.1 by the Group KSL is substantial

shareholder of certain subsidiaries of the Company and is regarded as

connected person of the Company at the subsidiaries level JPL is an

indirect wholly owned subsidiary of KGL substantial shareholder of the

Company and is regarded as connected person of the Company at the

issuers level By virtue of the interest of JPL in TYCL 59.1 indirectly

owned subsidiary of the Company TYCL is also regarded as connected

person of the Company

PTSPH is the owner of Slldngri Ld Hotl Surabaya PTSPH is indirectly

owned as to 30c by KGL and is an associate of the Companys substantial

shareholder Hence PTSPH is regarded as connected person of the

Company under the HK Listing Rules

BKC is the owner of Shangri-Las Kerry Centre Hotel Beijing BKC is

connected person of the Company by virtue of it being subsidiary of

KPL which in turn is subsidiary of KGL substantial shareholder of the

Company

Aberdeen Marina Holdings Limited AMHL is the owner of Aberdeen

Marina Club Hong Kong It is an indirect 79 owned subsidiary of KGL

and is regarded as connected person of the Company by virtue of it

being subsidiary of the substantial shareholder of the Company

Accordingly the provision of the Hotel Management Services by SLIM and

its fellow subsidiaries to those hotels/clubs as described above constitutes

continuing connected transactions of the Company under the HK Listing

Rules
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Details of these transactions are set out below

Aggregate amount received

by SLIM and its fellow

subsidiaries for the year

ended 31 December

Name of property Date of transaction Nature of agreement Counterparty 2008 2007

US$ 5$

Traders Hotel Singapore Principal agreement signed on March 994 Management Agreement CPPL 1759000 599000

Various related agreements signed on various Marketing and

ddte ri 994 Rservdtior1s Agreement

and Licence Agreements

Traders Hotel Yangon 24 June 995 Management Agreement TYCL 256000 21 6000

Marketing and

Reservations Agreement

and Licence Agreements

Shangri La Hotel 27 October 1994 Management Agreement PTSPH 571000 563000

Surabaya Marketing and

Reservations Agreement

and Licence Agreement

Shangri Las Kerr Centre 30 June 1998 Management and Marketing BKC 2281000 2085000

Hotel Beijing Services Agreement

Aberdeen Marina Club 20 February 1993 Operators Agreement AMHL 279000 246000

Hong Kong

Rep rtoft Dwedors 51



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Central Laundry Pte Ltd CLPL 75% owned subsidiary of the Company in Singapore operates commercial laundry The other 25% of CLPL is owned by

CPPL which is in turn 55.4% owned by ARL and 40.75% owned by the Group

As CPPL is substantial shareholder of CLPL both CPPL and APL are regarded as connected persons of the Company at the subsidiaries level Accordingly the

provision of commercial laundry services by CLPL to those properties owned by CPPL and APL pursuant to the master agreements signed between CLPL and

the relevant entities owning or operating those properties constitutes continuing connected transactions of the Company under the HK Listing Rules

Details of the transactions are set out below

Aggregate amount received

by CLPL for the
year

ended 31 December

Name of property Date of transaction Nature of agreement Counterparty 2008 2007

US$ US$

Great World Serviced October 1997 as supplemented by the Master Agreements for Great 296000 295000

Apartments supplemental agreements dated 15 April 2005 laundry services World Serviced

and February 2008 and Apartments and

Midpoint

October 1997 as supplemented by the

supplemental agreement dated February

2008 and 16 October 1997 as supplemented

by the supplemental agreements dated

April 2005 and February 2008 Pursuant to

deed of novation between CLPL Midpoint

Properties Limited Midpoint and Worldwide

Apartment Services Pte Ltd Worldwide dated

December 2005 Worldwide was released

and discharged from the master agreements

and Midpoint has assumed all the terms and

conditions of the master agreements in place of

Worldwide with effect from January 2006

Traders Hotel April 1995 as supplemented by the supplemental Master Agreement for Traders Hotel 816000 843000

Singapore agreements dated April 2005 and February laundry services Singapore

2008

Owned by member of the APL Group

Owned by CPPL
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Financial year ended 31 December

2008 2009 2010

US$ US$ US$

Taking into account the historical amounts received by CLPL in respect

of each of these properties ii the potentially achievable occupancy and

utilization projections in respect of these properties iii adjustments

for inflation and buffer for unexpected price hikes and iv the possible

appreciation of Asian currencies against the US Dollar the Company has

set the following annual caps for each of the three financial
years ending

respectively December 2008 2009 and 201

Property

Great World Serviced

Apartments 500000 580000 680000

Traders Hotel Singapore 200000 1400000 1600000

whichever is the earlier annual rent shall be paid as agreed between the

parties with reference to the number of beds available in the Resort The

annual rent payable on per bed basis has been agreed between the

parties In accordance with the method of calculation as set out in the

Lease and with reference to the anticipated number of beds to be built in

the Resort the amount of annual rent payable during the first ten years of

the Lease is expected to be less than US$4050000 The annual rent for

the second ten
years and the annual rent for the last five years of the Lease

shall be determined by the Maldivian Government in consultation with

AIPL six months prior to the commencement of the respective periods

In determining the annual rent for the subsequent periods the Maldivian

Government shall take into account the factors as mentioned in the Lease

The annual rent shall be paid upon commencement of operation of the

Resort by quarterly installments in advance before the commencement of

the quarter for which such payment is due Accordingly no lease rental was

paid for the years ended December 2007 and 2008

SLIM entered into tenancy agreement with MegaBox Development

Company Limited MegaBox Development an indirect wholly

owned subsidiary of KPL on June 2008 pursuant to which MegaBox

Development has agreed to lease certain floors of office premises to SLIM

at monthly rental of HK$770036 exclusive of management fee which

amounts to HK$ 10421 per month government rates and other taxes

and charges if any for fixed term of twenty nine months and twenty

six days from June 2008 and expiring on 30 November 20 both

days inclusive with an option to extend the tenancy agreement for not

more than six months after the expiry of the tenancy agreement On

June 2008 SLIM also entered into two licence agreements with MegaBox

Development pursuant to which MegaBoA Development has agieed to

grant licences to SLIM at monthly licence fee of HK$ 10500 for five

floating carparking spaces and HK$9300 for three fixed carparking spaces

during the period from 27 July 2008 until the expiry of the term of the

On 27 June 2005 Addu Investments Private Limited AIPL which is 70c

indirectly owned by the Company and 30% owned by the Government

of the Republic of Maldives the Maldivian Government entered into

lease agreement the Lease with the Maldivian Government for the

lease of the whole ot an island located in Villingili Addu Atoll Republic of

Maldives the Island for 25 years The Lease was entered into to enable

AIPL to construct develop own and operate luxury tourist resort on the

Island the Resort The Maldivian Government is connected person of

the Company by virtue of it being substantial shareholder of AIPL Hence

the execution of the Lease constitutes non-exempt continuing connected

transaction of the Company under the HK Listing Rules

During the first ten years of the term of the Lease starting from the date

of commencement of the operation of the Resort or months from the

date of approval by all the relevant Maldivian Government departments

of all detailed drawings designs and work plan with respect to the Resort
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tenancy agreement MegaBox Development is an indirect wholly owned

subsidiary of KPL KPL is an associate of KHL substantial shareholder of

the Compan/ and therefore MegaBox Development is connected prson

of the Company For the year ended 31 December 2008 an aggregate

amount of US$747000 2007 Nil was paid to MegaBox Development

Based on the rental amount and the management fee payable under the

tenancy agreement the licence fees payable under the licence agreements

and taking into account of the additional cost for extra air conditioning

supply after normal office hours and any possible adjustment to the

management fee and/or the licence fees as result of inflation the

Company has set the following annual caps
for each of the financial years

ending respectively December 2008 2009 2010 and 2011

Equivalent

Amount in US$Fin ancial Year Ending Annual Cap

31 December 2008 HK$6500000 839000

31 December 2009 HK$11500000 1484000

December 20 10 HK$ 11500000 1484000

December 2011 HK$5300000 684000

The continuing connected transactions mentioned in to above

have been reviewed by the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the

Company The Independent Non Executive Directors of the Company have

confirmed that the transactions have been entered into

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company

either on normal commercial terms or if there are not sufficient

comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal

commercial terms on terms no less favourable to the Company than

terms available to or from as appropriate independent third parbes

in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions

and

on terms which are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as whole

In accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the HK Listing Rules the Board engaged

the auditor of the Company to perform certain agreed upon procedures on

the above continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong

Standard on Related Services 4400 Engagements to Perform Agreed Upon

Procedures Regarding Financial Information issued by the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants TIre auditor ias reported to the

Board that

In relation to the transactions set out in to above the

transactions

have received the approval of the Board

involving the provision of goods and services by the Group are in

accordance with the pricing policies of the Group for the samples

selected and

have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements

governing the transactions for the samples selected

In relation to the transactions set out in to above the

transactions have not exceeded the relevant annual caps as disclosed in

the announcements dated November 200S February 2008 and

June 2008
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Substantial Interests in the Share Capital of the Company
As at December 2008 the interests and short positions of those persons other than the Directors in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Lompany under Section 336 of the SF0 were as follows

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Percentage of Total

Number of Issued Share Capital of

Ordinary Shares the Company as at

Name Capacity in which Shares were Held Held December 2008

Substantial Shareholders

Kerry Group Limited KGL Interest of controlled corporations 1398207352 48.46c

Kerry Holdings Limited KHL Notes and Beneficial owner

Interest of controlled corporations

70460697

1327746655

48.46c

Caninco Investments Limited Notes and Beneficial owner

Interest of controlled corporation

500582400

27034035

.75o

Paruni Limited Notes and Beneficial owner

Interest of controlled corporation

309269059

2305 54

l0.80

Persons other than Substantial Shareholders

Darmex Holdings Limited Notes and Beneficial owner 265892 94 9.22c

JPNlorgan Chase Co Beneficial owner

Investment manager

Lending poo1

442906

280600

201223364

6.99c
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bShort positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Percentage of Total

Number of Issued Share Capital of

Ordinary Shares the Company as at

Name Capacity in which Shares were Held Held December2008

Person other than Substantial Shareholders

jPMorgan Chase Co Beneficial owner 82 06 0.000o

Notes

Out of kHLs corporate interest in 32774oo55 shares 1303492308 shares were Field through its woolly owned subsidiaries 13387292 shares were held through conipaiires in which HL controls

more than one third of the voting power other than those wholly owned subsidiaries as aforementioned and 0867055 shares were held through wholly owned subsidiary of Shangri La Hotel Public

Company Limited 73.6 owned subsidiary of the Company

These companies are wholly owned subsidiaries of KGL and their interests in the shares of the Company are included in the interests held by KGL

These companies are wholly owned subsidiaries of KHL and their interests in the shares of the Company are included in the interests held by KHL

Save as mentioned above as at 31 December 2008 the Company had not been notified of any interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of

the Company which had been recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SF0
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Properties Under Development
Details of the Groups properties under development are as follows

Groups

Effective

Interest as at

31 December

2008

7O

Hotels owned and managed by
the Group Total 13 developments

Approximate

Total Site Area

square meter

Total Gross

Floor Area
Projected

square meter Rooms

No of

Apartments Stage of
Completion

Projected

Opening Address

Wenzhou Mairland China
Shangr

La Hotel 3565 74434 409 10 Opened for bus ness opened on 16

January 2009

Xiangyuan Road Wenzhou 325000 Zhej ang
Province

The Peoples Republ of China

ngbo Mairland Ch na Shangri
La Hote 95% 22516 132492 564 60 Interior fin sh

ng

work in
progres

2009 88
Yuyuan Road Ningbo 35040 Zhejiang Province

The Peoples Repub ic of China

Beiiing
Mvinlard China Hotel in China World Trade Center

part
of Grand Tower

4007 N/A 69602 278 Interior
fnisbing

word in
progress

Mid 2009
jian

Guo Men Wa Avenue Bei ing 100004

The
Peoples Republic

of Ch na

Manzhouli Inner
Mongolia Shangri La Ho el

Main and Ch na

10000 25000 48400 201 16 Curta wall insta lafon

work
progress

Late 2009 No 99 Liu Duo Jie Marzhouli Inner Mongo ia

The Peop es
Republic

of China

Guil Mainland China
Shangri

La Hote 000 48285 77 00 430 Curtain wal nstal ation

and interior fn
sting

wor in
progress

ate 2009 II Head of tushan Bridge North of the Second
Ring Road

Cu In 541001 Guangxi Province

The Peoples Republic of China

Shanghai
Mainland Ch ra Shargr Las Pudong Kerry Centre Hotel

par of
composite development

of

Pudong Kerry Cen re

2320 N/A 70000 574 41 Pi
ing

work
completed

and
superstructure wor

for
pha progress

End 2010 No 039
Fangdian Road Adjacent to

he
Shangha

New Internat onal
Expo Centre

Pudong Shangdai he Peop Republic of China

Jing
An

Shangri part
of composite

developmen of
Jing

An
Kerry Centre

49R N/A 67887 400 Foundatior

wor in
progre

202 238 1288 Yanan Zhong Road 1537 65 Nanfng Xi Road

Jirg An Distdct Shanghai The
Peoples Republ

of China

Ton Mainland China
Shargr-La Hotel part of

composi

deve opment of
Tanj Kerry Centre

20 N/A 78620 450 Foundat on

work in

progress

2012
jpnc

ion of Liuwer Road andL ujin Road Hedong Dis

ianjln
The

Peoples Republic
of China

The Ph
ppines Stangri-Las Boracay

Resor
Spa

1000o 160890 39399 29 Opened for business opened on

March 2009

Barangay Yapak Boracay Island

Malay
Akan 5608 The

Phlippines

Skangri
La Mctoi

Resort Spa Extension

00% 3810 18793 12
Desigr

drid

nys

plarning stage

Ldtn 200 PunLa Er
gario Road Lapu Lapu City

Cebu The Phi
ipp nes

Maldives
Shangri

La VI
ingili

Resort Spa

70 536447 46223 42
Super tructure

work
comple

ed

Mid 2009 Vi ngil land Addu Atol Republ
of Maldives

Trad rs Hotel Mae 1000 3400 15058 205
Design ard

concept

plann ng stage

Late 201 Ameenee Mugs Male Repubic
ofMaldives

Paris France
Shungri-La

Ho el 10000 3953 18375 108 Conver ion work ir

progre

Early
2010 Avenue dIena 75116 Paris rance

Total 4092 245

Hotels under
operating

lease and managed by
the Group

Total projects

Groups

Effective

Interest as at

31 December

2008

Approximate

Total Site Area

square meter

Approximate

Total Gross

Floor Area Projected

square meter Rooms

No of

Apartments Stage of Completion

Prolected

Opening Address

Tokyo japan Shungri
La Hotel N/A N/A 22751 202 Opened for business opened on

March 2009

Marunouch Trust Tower Main 1-8-3 Marunouchi

Chiyoda ku Tokyo 008283 japan

Vienna
Shangri-La

Hotel N/A N/A 15760 202
Superstructure

work in
progre

Mid 2010
Schubertring Bezirk Vienna As tria

London United Kngdom Shangri
La Hotel at London Brdge Tower

Total

N/A N/A 16932 95

599

Design and
concept

planning stage

2012 32 London
Bridge Street Southward London SEI

Unted Kingdom
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Properties Under Development

Groups

Effective Approximate

Interest as at Total Gross

31 December Floor Area
Projected

2008 square meter Opening

Approximate

Total Site Area

square meter
Investment

properties
owned

by
the Group Total projects Stage

of
Completion Address

Qingdao Mainland Ch na Of ce Tower

00cc

0000 6550

31591

Sup rstructure

work comp eted

Mid 2009 ag Gang Zbong Lu ngdao 266071

The
People Repub in of China

Commerc
1058

Bei irg Main and China Ch na World Trade Center Phase Ill

Grand Tower

Office

Commercia

Ca
park

4007c 24593

141028

55113

3826

Supers ru tare

wor
compi

ted

Mid 2009 an Gun Wa Avenue Being 00004

The People Repi br of Ihina

Shanghai
Ma cited China Composite development

of

Pudong Kerry Centre

23.200 58949 P1
ng

work
completed

and
super trac ure work

for
phase

in
progress

Erd 2010 No 1039
Fangd an Road Ad acen to the

Shanghai
New In ernational

Expo
Cen

re

Pudong Shanghai The People Repub ic of Ch na

fine

Commercial

Scm ced
apartmert

Entrance hal

Composite development
of

Jing
An

Kerry Centre

490 45867

92000

45000

34000

4000

Fourda ion work

in

progress

202 238 288 fatar Zborg Road

537 1565
Nanj ng

Xi Road ng
An strct

Shanghai The Peoples Republic of China

Office

Commercal

76261

55892

Tan in Mairland China Compo ite deve opment

Tianjin Kerry Centre

20c 86164 Foundation work

progre

1012
Junct on of Liuwei Road nd Liujin Road

Hedong ct
Tiarlin

The
Peoples Republ of China

Residential

08cc

commercial

Serviced
apartment

180000

124730

17650

27700

Ulaanbaatar Mongol Office Tower 510 4400 34925 Superstructure

work
comple

ed

Mid 2009 Su hbaatar District Khoroo

aanbaatar Mongolia
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Properties Under Development

Address

Lot Haitang Wan Sanya Hainan

The Peoples Republic of China

West Section of Hebei Street Haigang District Qinghuangdao

Hebei Province The Peoples Republic of China

Lot No B-7 Honggutan Central Nanchang

The Peoples Republic of China

Da Li Road Changhong Street Chaoyang Street Feng Huang

Xin Cheng Tangshan The Peoples Republic of China

No 33 Zhong Yang Road Gu Lou District Nanjing

The Peoples Republic of China

North East of National Amusement Park Place Khoroo of

Sukhbaatar District Ulaanbaatar Mongolia

108 East 53rd Street at Park Avenue New York City

United States

Northern portion of the West Super Block

Bonifacio Global City at Taguig Metro Manila

The Philippines

Properties under concept planning Total projects Purpose Interest

Sanya Mainland China Hotel 10000

Qinhuangdao Mainland China Hotel 0000

Nanchang City Mainland China Composite

Development

20c

Tangshan City Mainland China Composite

Development

20c

Nanjing City Mainland China Composite

Development

40c

Ulaanbaatar Mongolia Hotel 7soo

New York USA Hotel 25.9c

Taguig Metro Manila The Philippines Composite

Development

40c
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Purchase Sale or Redemption of the Companys Listed

Securities

During the year and up to the date of this report the Company has

not redeemed any of its shares and neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Companys listed securities

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for
pre emptive rights under the Companys Bye Laws or

the laws in Bermuda

Service Contracts

There is no service contract which is not determinable by the Company

within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory

compensation in respect of any Director proposed for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting

Management Contracts

No contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole

or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year

Remuneration Committee
Remuneration Committee of the Board was set upon 17 October 1997

The Committee currently comprises three members including the Chairman

and two Independent Non Executive Directors The Committee acts in

accordance with written terms of reference The current Committee members

are Mr KUOK Khoon Ean Mr Alexander Reid HAMILTON and Mr WONG Kai

Man BBS JR

Audit Committee

The Company set up an Audit Committee of the Board on 25 August

998 The Committee comprises three Non-Executive Directors two of

them being independent The Committee acts in accordance with written

terms of reference The current Committee members are Mr Alexander

Reid HAMILTON Mr HO Kian Cuan and Mr WONG Kal Man BBS JR The

Committee reviewed the Groups 2008 audited financial statements before

they were tabled for the Boards review and approval

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who

retire and being eligible offer themselves for re appointment

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentages of the five largest customers combined and the five largest

suppliers combined are less than 000 of the Groups total turnover and

purchases respectively

Public Float

As at the date of this report the Company has maintained the prescribed

public float under the HK Listing Rules based on the information that is

publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors

of the Company

On behalf of the Board

KUOK Khoon Ean

Director

Hong Kong March 2009

KUOK Khoon Loong Edward

Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

PRIcevvATERHousPEPs

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shangri-La Asia

Limited the Company and its subsidiaries together the Group set out

on pages 62 to 147 which comprise the consolidated and Company balance

sheets as at December 2008 the consolidated income statement the

consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow

statement for the year then ended and summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory notes

Directors Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and

the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in

accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong

Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance This responsibility include designing

implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation

and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from

material misstatement whether due to fraud or error selecting and applying

appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are

reasonable in the circumstances

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial

statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you as

body in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 198 of Bermuda

and for no other purpose We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants Those

standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial

statements are free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements The procedures selected

depend on the auditors judgement including the assessment of the risks of

material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or

error In making those risk assessments the auditor considers internal control

relevant to the entitys preparation and true and fair presentation of the

financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate

in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the entitys internal control An audit also includes evaluating

the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates made by the Directors as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide basis for our audit opinion

Opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give true and fair view

of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at December

2008 and of the Groups profit and cash flows for the year then ended in

accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been

properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong 17 March 2009

PricewaterhouseCoopers

22nd Floor Princes Building

Central

Hong Kong

Telephone 852 2289 8888

Facsimile 852 2810 9888

Independent Auditors Report
To the Shareholders of Shangri-La Asia Limited

incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability

IndependentAuditors Report 61



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Note 2008

US$000

KUOK Khoon Loong Edward

Director

2007

uS$000

As at December

2008 2007

uS$000 us$000

Asat3I December

Note

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property plant and equipment 3789324 326093

Investment properties 524309 523633

Leasehold land and land use rights 520794 41 6749

Intangible assets /0 95452 87172

Interest in associates 12 270364 8992

Deferred income tax assets 23 1117 2294

Available for sale financial assets 13 4158 19

Other receivables /4 3683

6209201

509

5419053

Current assets

Inventories 31805 28215

Accounts receivable prepayments

and deposits 15 191108 171428

Due from associates /2 14244 23920

Financial assets held for trading /6 13326 71710

Cash and bank balanrec 463027

713510

386684

681957

Total assets 6922711 1010

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to

the Companys equity
holders

Share capital

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Proposed final dividend

Others

18

/9

34

1940997

1334921

37090

640323

1934577

1309274

4463

593388

Non-controlling interests 22

3953331

298057

3881870

303458

Total equity 425 1388 85328

LIABI LITI ES

Non-current liabilities

Bank loans

Derivative financial instruments

Due to non controlling shareholders

Deferred income tax liabilities

20

22

23

1889273

6591

27012

220044

2202245

1153939

20708

20603

213288

1408538

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accruals

Due to non-controlling shareholders

Current income tax liabilities

Bank loans and overdrafts

24

22

20

404380

6355

19330

3901

469078

377405

10355

27456

1928

507144

Total liabilities 2671323 1915682

Total equity and liabilities 6922711 10 101

Net current assets 244432 748

Total assets less current liabilities 6453633 5593866

KUOK Khoon Ean

Director
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BALANCE SHEET

Note 2008

Us$000

As at December

2007

uS$000

As at December

2008 2007

US$000 US$OOO

KUOK Khoon Ean

Director

KUOK Khoon Loong Edward

Director

Note

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property plant and equipment IS 36

Investments in subsidiaries 11 3228630 3019436

Club debentures 840

3229585

840

30203 12

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries II 122542 367 174

Dividends receivable prepayments

and deposits 283374 231304

Cash and bank balances 12662

418578

6468

614946

Total assets 3648163 3633258

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable

the Companys equity holders

Share capital

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Proposed final dividend

Others

to

18

34

1940997

1541742

37230

29339

1934577

1542357

44631

55796

Total equity 3549308 357736

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Derivative financial instruments 65916 20708

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accruals

Amounts due to subsidiaries II

9069

23870

32939

8948

2824

37189

Total liabilities 98855 57897

Total equity and liabilities 3648163 3635258

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

385639

3615224

577737

3598069
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 31 December

Note 2008 2007

uS$000 us$ooo

Sales

Cost of goods sold 25

1353271

55 1249

1219248

493970

Gross profit

Other losses/gains net

Marketing costs

Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

26

25

25

25

802022

8291

45065
102954

407923

725278

3726

44086
94033

327541

Operating profit

Finance gain/costs

Share of profit of associates

29

30

163165

1285

76867

373344

19 128

9890

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense 31

252883

69416
453117

78892

Profit for the year 183467 374225

Attributable to

Equity holders of the Company

Non-controlling interests

165940

17527

183467

340863

33362

374225

Earnings per share for profit

attributable to the equity holders

of the Company during the year

expressed in US cents per share

basic 33 5.76 2.76

diluted 33 5.75 12.71

Dividends 34 89213 100323
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Note

Share

capital

uS$000

1934577

Other

reserves

uS$000

1309274

Retained

earnings

us$000

638019

Total

us$000

3881870

Non-controlling

interests

us$000

303458

Total

uS$ooO

4185328Balance at January 2008

Currency translation differences 26262 26262 9530 16732

Net income/expenses recognized directly in equity

Profit for the year

26262

165940

26262

165940

9530
17527

16732

183467

Totdl recognized income for the
year

ended

31 December 2008 26262 165940 192202 7997 200199

Exercise of share options allotment of shares

Exercise of share options transfer from option

reserve to share premium

Granting of share options value of employee service

Payment of 2007 final dividend

Payment of 2008 interim dividend

Transferred from financial assets held for trading

Difference between the amount by which the

non controlling interests are adjusted nd the

fair value of the consideration arising from changes

in the Companys ownership interest in subsidiaries

Dividend paid and payable to non-controlling shareholders

Equity acquired from non controlling shareholders

Equity injected and acquired by non controlling shareholders

Net change in equity loans due to

non controlling shareholders

18

18

19

/9

5351

1069

6420

1069
454

615

44644
52123

18785

10994

126546

5351

454

44644
52123

18785

10994

120741

6735

14384
7109
15283

453

13398

5351

454

44644

52123
25520

10994

14384
7109
15283

453

134139

Balance at 31 December 2008 1940997 1334921 677413 3953331 298057 4251388

The Groups retained earnings comprised

Company and subsidiaries

Associates

276057

401356

677413
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share Other Retained Non-controlling

Note capital reserves earnings Total interests Total

us$000 uS$OOo us$OoO uS$000 uS$OOO uS$OOO

Balance at January 2007

Currency translation differences

Disposal of partial interests in subsidiaries

1224810 1088174

226371

3088

386195 2699179

22637

3088

276145

08

2975324

242479

3088

Net income recognized directly in equity

Profit for the year

223283

340863

223283

340863

16108

33362

239391

374225

Total recognized income for the
year

ended

31 December 2007 223283 340863 564146 49470 613616

Issue of shares upon conversion of convertible bonds

Exercise of share options allotment of shares

Exercise of share options transfer from option

reserve to share premium

Granting of share options value of employee service

Rights issue

Payment of 2006 final dividend

Payment of 2007 interim dividend

Dividend paid and payable to non-controlling shareholders

Equity injected and acquired by non-controlling shareholders

Net change in equity loans due to

non controlling shareholders

18 /9

/8

35334

9617

2044

662772

709767

2623

2044
2484

21 83

33347
55692

89039

32711

9617

2484

662772

33347

55692

618545

17728
14290

18719

22157

32711

9617

2484

662772

33347

55692
17728

14290

18719

596388

Balance at 31 December 2007 1934577 1309274 638019 3881870 303458 185328

The Groups retained earnings comprised

Company and subsidiaries 283309

Associates 354710

638019

Included in the retained earnings of subsidiaries and associates are statutory funds of approximately US$3436000 and US$27076000 respectively 2007

US$2 178000 and US$22722000 These funds are set up by way of appropriation from the profit after taxation of the respective companies established and

operating in the PRC in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations

Interest paid

Hong Kong profits tax paid

Overseas tax paid

35 460074

68097

15381

61940

474542

78 61

11475

62028

Net cash generated from operating activities 314656 322878

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property plant and equipment

Expendfture on properties under development

Purchase of leasehold land and land use rights

Purchase of investment properties

Proceeds from disposal of property plant and

equipment leasehold land and land use

rights and investment properties

Expenditure on website development costs

Deposit payments for land use rights and lease

Acquisition of interest/additional interest and

loan in subsidiaries

Proceeds from disposal of partial interests in

subsidiaries

Proceeds received from dilution of interest in

35

121169

530078

100947

4981

1138

29056

49893

78753

474327

2803

45865

957

405

7421

1347

98995

subsidiary

Capital contribution to associates

Net increase in loans to associates

Interest received

Dividends received from associates

Dividends received from listed securities

1935

43212

15589

7654

44524

382

35589

23310

10040

39 60

378

lncrece in chnrt term hank depncitc

more than months maturity 26802 9885

Net cash used in investing activities 866094 555403

Year ended 31 December

2008 2007

us$000 us$OOO

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividends paid to the Companys equity

holders

Dividends paid to non controlling shareholders

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares

Net increase/decrease in loans from

non-controlling shareholders

Capital injection from non-controlling

shareholders

Repayment of bank loans

Bank loans drawn down

96767

17763

5351

4805

14949

239908

923621

89039

15676

672389

30876

11423

16470

733227

Net cash generated from financing activities 594288 264978

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of the year

Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents

42850

357405

6101

32453

310689

14263

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 406356 357405

Year ended December

Note 2008 2007 Note

us$000 us$OOo
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NoTEs TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2008

General information The following amendments to standards and new interpretations are

Shangri-La Asia Limited the Company and its subsidiaries together the relevant to the Groups operation and are mandatory for financial year

Group own and operate hotels and associated properties and provide
ended 31 December 2008

hotel management and related services

HKAS 39 Amendment Financial Instruments Recognition and

The Company is limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda Measurement

The address of its registered office is Canons Court 22 Victoria Street HKFRS Amendment Financial Instruments Disclosure

Hamilton HM Bermuda Reclassification of Financial Assets

HKIFRIC Int HKFRS Group and Treasury Share

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of The Stock Transactions

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with secondary listing on the Singapore HKIFRIC-lnt 14 HKAS 19 The Limit on Defined Benefit

Exchange Securities Trading Limited Asset Minimum Funding Requirements

and their Interaction

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these These amendments to standards and new interpretations had no

consolidated financial statements are set out below These policies have material effect on the Groups accounting policies

been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise

stated In addition the Group has early adopted the following amendments

to standards which are relevant to the Groups operation for financial

2.1 Basis of preparation period beginning January 2008

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance

with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards HKFRS issued by the HKAS 27 Revised Consolidated and Separate Financial

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants the HKICPA Statements

They have been prepared under the historical cost convention except HKFRS Revised Business Combinations

that as disclosed in the accounting policies below financial assets

financial liabilities including derivative financial instruments and

investment properties are stated at fair value
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Summary of significant accounting policies continued

2.1 Basis of preparation continued

The adoption of the above amendments to standards does not have

significant impact on the Groups financial statements except as follows

Under HKAS 27 Revised changes in the parents ownership interest

in subsidiary that do not result in loss of control are accounted for

as equity transactions Any difference between the amount by which

the non controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the

consideration paid or received shall be recognized directly in equity

and attributed to the owners of the Company This was effected

prospectively from January 2008 and the effect on the financial

statements for the year ended December 2008 is that the Group

charged net amount of US$10994000 to the retained earnings during

the year instead of crediting US$290000 to the consolidated income

statement as gain on disposal of partial interest in subsidiary and

recording US$11284000 in the balance sheet as goodwill acquired

upon acquisition of additional equity interest in subsidiary

The following new interpretation to standards is mandatory for

accounting periods beginning on or after January 2008 but is not

relevant to the Groups operations

HKIFRIC-lnt Service Concession Arrangements

The following new standards amendments to standards and new

interpretations and the HFICPAs improvements to HKFRS published

in October 2008 are relevant to the Groups operation but are not

effective for 2008 and have not been early adopted

Presentation of Financial Statements

Borrowing Costs

Financial Instruments Presentation

Share-based Payment

Operating Segments

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Hedges of Net Investment in

Foreign Operation

The Group believes that the adoption of the above new standards

amendments to standards and interpretations are unlikely to have

material impact on the presentation of the Groups financial statements

except as follows

HKAS Revised Presentation of Financial Statements will prohibit

the presentation of items of income and expenses that is non-owner

changes in equity in the statement of changes in equity requiring

non-owner changes in equity to be presented separately from owner

changes in equity Entities can choose to present one statement of

comprehensive income or two statements the consolidated income

statement and statement of comprehensive income The Group will

apply HKAS Reised from January 2009

HKFRS Operating Segments replaces HKAS 14 Segment Reporting

The new standard requires management approach under which

segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for

internal reporting purposes This will result in the segments being

reported in manner that is more consistent with the internal reporting

provided to the chief operating decision-maker The Company will apply

HKFRS Operating Segments from January 2009

HKAS Revised

HKAS 23 Revised

HKAS 32 Amendment

HKFRS Amendment

HKFRS

HKIFRIC-lnt 13

HKIFRIC Int 16
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Summary of significant accounting policies continued

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements included the financial statements

of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities including special purpose entities over

which the Group has the power to govern the financial and

operating policies generally accompanying shareholding of more

than one half of the voting rights The existence and effect of

potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible

are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another

entity

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is

transferred to the Group They are de consolidated from the date

that control ceases

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business

combinations by the Group The consideration transferred for the

acquisition of subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred

the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group

The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset

or liability resulting from contingent consideration arrangement

Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred Identifiable

assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in

business combinatinn are measured initially at their fair values at the

acquisition date On an acquisition by acquisition basis the Group

recognizes any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair

value or at the non controlling interests proportionate share of the

acquirees net assets

The excess of the consideration transferred the amount of ny non

controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value

of
any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of

the Groups share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded

as goodwill If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the

subsidiary acquired in the case of bargain purchase the difference

is recognized directly in the consolidated income statement

Inter company transactions balances and unrealized gains on

transactions between group companies are eliminated UnredliLed

losses are also eliminated Accounting policies of subsidiaries have

been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group

In the Companys balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries are

stated at cost less provision for impairment losses if any The results

of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividend received and receivable

Transactions and non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as

transactions with equity owners of the Group For purchases of

additional interest in subsidiaries from non-controlling interests the

difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share

acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is

recorded in equity Gains or losses on disposals of partial interest in

subsidiaries to non controlling interests are also recorded in equity
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Summary of significant accounting policies continued
2.2Consolidation continued

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant

influence but not control generally accompanying shareholding of

between 20% and 50% of the voting rights Investments in associates

are accounted for by the equity method of accounting and are

initially recognized at cost The Groups investment in associates

includes goodwill net of any accumulated impairment losses

identified on acquisition Note 2.8

The Groups share of its associates post acquisition profits or

losses is recognized in the income statement and its share of post-

acquisition movements in reserves is recognized in reserves The

cumulative post acquisition movements are adjusted against the

carrying amount of the investment When the Groups share of

losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate

including any other unsecured receivables the Group does not

recognize further losses unless it has incurred obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and its

associates are eliminated to the ectent of the Groups interest

in the associates Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless

the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset

transferred Accounting policies of associates have been changed

where netesary to ensure consistency with tht polidts adopted by

the Group

In the Companys balance sheet the investments in associates are

stated at cost less provision for impairment losses if any The results

of associates are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividend received and receivable

2.3 Segment reporting

business segment is group of assets and operations engaged in

providing products or services that are subject to risks and returns that

are different from those of other business segments geographical

segment is engaged in providing products or services within particular

economic environment that are subject to risks and returns that

are different from those of segments operating in other economic

environments

In accordance with the Groups internal financial reporting the Group

has determined that geographical segment be presented as the primary

reporting format and business segment as the secondary reporting

format

Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses Segment assets consist

primarily of fixed assets leasehold land and land use rights interest

in associates inventories receivables and operating cash and mainly

exclude intangible assets and investments in securities Segment liabilities

comprise operating liabilities and exclude items such as taxation

derivative financial instruments and all borrowings Capital expenditure

comprises additions to fixed assets leasehold land and land use rights
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Summary of significant accounting policies continued

2.4 Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Groups

principal subsidiaries are measured using the currency of the primary

economic environment in which the entity operates the functional

currency The consolidated financial statements are presented

in US dollars which is the Companys functional and presentation

currency

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency
transactions are translated into the functional

currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the

transactions Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the

settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end

exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in

foreign currencies are recognized in the income statement

Foreign exchange gains and losses that related to borrowings and

cash and bank balances are presented in the consolidated income

statement within finance gain/costs

Translation differences on non-monetary items such as financial

assets held for trading held at fair value through profit or loss are

reported as part of the fair value gain or loss Translation differences

on non-monetary items such as equities classified as available for-

sale financial assets are included in the equity

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities none of

which has the currency of hyperinflationary economy that have

functional currency
different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are

translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet

ii income and expenses for each income statement are translated

at average exchange rates unless this average is not reasonable

approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on

the transaction dates in which case income and expenses are

translated at the dates of the transactions and

iiiall resulting exchange differences are recognized as separate

component of equity

On consolidation exchange differences arising from the translation

of the net investment in foreign entities and of borrowings are

taken to shareholders equity When foreign operation is sold such

exchange differences are recognized in the income statement as part

of the gain or loss on sale

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of

foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity

and translated at the closing rate
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Summary of significant accounting policies continued
2.5 Property plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly hotel properties All properties plant and

equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment

losses if any Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly

attributable to the acquisition of the items

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or

recognized as separate asset as appropriate only when it is probable

that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the

Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably All other

repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income statement during

the financial period in which they are incurred

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost to their residual value

on straight line basis over the expected useful lives The useful lives or

principal annual rates used are

Lower of underlying land lease

term or 50 years

10% to 3373%

20% to 25%

5%to 10%

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if

appropriate at each balance sheet date

An assets carrying amount is written down immediately to its

recoverable amount if the assets carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount

Properties under development and freehold land for hotel properties

are not subject to depreciation and are stated at cost less accumulated

impairment if any

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the

proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized within other

operating expenses in the income statement

2.6 Investment properties

Property that is held for long term rental yields or for capital

appreciation or both and that is not occupied by the companies in the

consolidated Group is classified as investment property

Investment property comprises land held under operating lease or

freehold and buildings

Land held under operating leases are classified and accounted for

as investment property without amortization when the rest of the

definition of investment
property is met

Investment property is measured
initially

at its cost including related

transaction costs

After initial recognition investment property is carried at fair value

reviewed annually by external professional valuers Changes in fair values

are recognized in the income statement

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the assets carrying amount only

when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the

item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured

reliably All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the

income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred

Hotel buildings and other buildings

Furniture fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles

Plant and machinery
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Summary of significant accounting policies continued

2.7Leasehold land and land use rights

Prepaid leasehold land premiums or land use rights for hotel properties

or for development of hotel properties are classified and accounted

for as leasehold land and land use rights and are stated at cost and

amortized over the period of the lease on straight line basis to the

income statement

2.8 Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents
the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the

fair value of the Groups share of the net identifiable assets of the

acquired subsidiary/associate at the date of acquisition Goodwill on

acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets Goodwill

on acquisitions of associates is included in investments in associates

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is tested annually for

impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses if

any Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying

amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of

impairment testing

Trademarks and licences

Trademarks and licences are shown at historical cost Trademarks

and licences have definite useful life and are carried at cost less

accumulated amortization and impairment if any Amortization is

calculated using the straight line method to allocate the cost of

trademarks and licences over their estimated useful lives of 20
years

Website development costs

Website development costs that are directly associated with the

development of identifiable and unique products controlled by the

Group and that will probably generate
economic benefits exceeding

costs beyond one year are recognized as intangible assets Such

development costs are carried at cost less accumulated amortization

and impairment if any Amortization is calculated using the straight

line method to allocate the cost over their estimated useful lives of

years upon commencement of operation

2.9 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries associates and non-financial

assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization

but are at least tested annually for impairment and are reviewed for

impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that

the carrying amount may not be recoverable Assets that are subject

to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or

changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not

be recoverable An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by

which the assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount The

recoverable amount is the higher of an assets fair value less costs to sell

and value in use For the purposes of assessing impairment assets are

grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable

cash flows cash generating units Non financial assets other than

goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal

of the impairment at each reporting date
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Summary of significant accounting policies continued
2.10 Investments

The Group classifies its investments in the following categories financial

assets held for trading loans and receivables and available-for-sale

financial assets The classification depends on the purpose for which the

investments were acquired Management determines the classification of its

investments at initial recognition and re-evaluates this classification at every

reporting date

Financial assets held for trading

financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired principally for

the purpose of selling in the short term Assets in this category are

classified as current assets if they are either held for trading or are

expected to be realized within months of the balance sheet date

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed

or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market

They arise when the Group provides money goods or servicts

directly to debtor with no intention of trading the receivable They

are included in current assets except for maturities greater than

months after the balance sheet date which are classified as non

current assets Loans and receivables are included in trade and other

receivables in the balance sheet Note 2.13

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets are non derivatives that are

either designated in this category or not classified in any of the

other categories They are included in non current assets unless

management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months

of the balance sheet date The non derivatives are stated at cost less

impairment as the fair value of these unlisted financial assets cannot

be reliably measured

PurLhases arid sales of investments are recognized on trade date

the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset

Investments are initially recognized at fair value for all financial assets

Investments are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows

from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the

Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership

Financial assets held for trading are subsequently carried at fair value

based on current market closing bid prices with realized and unrealized

gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value included in

the income statement in the period in which they arise Loans and

receivables are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest

method less impairment with changes in carrying value to be recognized

in the income statement Unlisted equity as included in available for

sale financial assets are stated at cost less impairment which is charged

to the income statement as the fair value of these unlimited financial

assets cannot be reliably measured Club debentures held for long term

investment purpose and included in available-for-sale financial assets are

stated at fair value and the changes in fair value are recognized in equity

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is

objective evidence that financial asset or group of financial assets

is impaired In the case of available-for-sale financial assets significant

or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost is considered as

an indicator whether the asset is impaired If any such evidence exists

for available for sale financial assets the cumulative loss measured as

the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value

les any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in

the income statement is removed from equity and recognized in the

income statement Impairment testing of loans and receivables is the

same as trade and other receivables as disclosed in Note 13
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For the ear ended 31 December 2008

Summary of significant accounting policies continued

2.11 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date derivative

contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair

value Derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge

accounting are categorized as derivatives at fair value through profit or

loss and changes in the fair value of these derivative instruments are

recognized immediately in the consolidated income statement within

Other losses/gains net

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value

Cost being cost of purchase is determined on weighted average
basis

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course

of business less applicable variable selling expense

2.l3Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair value and

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest

method less provision for impairment provision for impairment

of trade and other receivables is established when there is objective

evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due

according to the original terms of receivables The amount of the

provision is the difference between the assets carrying amount and the

present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective

interest rate The carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the

use of an allowance account and the amount of loss is recognized in

the income statement within administrative expenses When trade

receivable is uncollectible it is written off against the allowance account

for trade receivables Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credited against administrative expenses in the income

statement

2.l4Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand deposits held at call

with banks other short-term highly liquid investments with original

maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts Bank overdrafts

are shown within bank loans in current liabilities on the balance sheet

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shdres

or options are shown in equity as deduction net of tax from the

proceeds

Where any group company purchases the Companys equity share

capital the consideration paid including any directly attributable

incremental costs net of income taxes is deducted from the

consolidated equity attributable to the Companys equity holders until

the shares are cancelled or resold Where such shares are subsequently

resold any consideration received net of any directly attributable

incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects will

increase the consolidated equity attributable to the Companys equity

holders

The dividends on these own shares held are excluded from the

dividend distribution to the Companys equity holders recognized in the

consolidated financial statements

2.l6Trade payables

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently

measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method
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Summary of significant accounting policies continued

217 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially
at fair value net of transaction costs

incurred The difference between the proceeds received and fair value

at inception fair value gain/loss is recognized in the income statement

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable

to the acquisition issue or disposal of financial asset or financial

liability including fees and commissions paid to agents advisers brokers

and dealers levies by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges

and transfer taxes and duties Borrowings are subsequently stated at

amoriized cost any
difference between the proceeds net of transaction

costs and the redemption value is recognized in the income statement

over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an

unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability

for at least 12

months after the balance sheet date

2.18 Pre-operating expenditure

Pre operating expenditure is charged to the income statement in the

year in which it is incurred

2.19 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full using the
liability method

on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets

and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial

statements However if the deferred income tax arises from initial

recognition of an asset or liability
in transaction other than

business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither

accounting nor taxable profit or loss it is not accounted for Deferred

income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been

enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are

expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is

realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is

probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilized

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on

investments in subsidiaries associates and jointly controlled entities

except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference

is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 2008

Summary of significant accounting policies continued

220 Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized when they

accrue to employees provision is made for the estimated
liability

for annual leave as result of services rendered by employees up to

the balance sheet date

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not

recognized until the tune of leave

ii Pension obligations

The Group operates number of defined benefit and defined

contribution plans most of the assets of which are generally held in

separate trustee administered funds The pension plans are generally

funded by payments from employees and by the relevant Group

companies taking account of the applicable laws and regulations

at different jurisdiction and the recommendations of independent

qualified actuaries for defined benefit plans

For the Groups defined contribution plans the Group pays

contributions to publicly or privately administered pension insurance

plans on mandatory contractual or voluntary basis The Group has

no further payment obligations once the contributions have been

paid The contributions are recognized as employee benefit expense

when they are due and are reduced by contributions forfeited by

those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the

contributions where applicable Prepaid contributions are recognized

as an asset to the extent that cash refund or reduction in the

future payments is available

For defined benefit plans pension costs are assessed using the

project unit credit method the cost of providing pensions is charged

to the income statement so as to spread the regular cost over the

service lives of employees in accordance with the advice of the

actuaries who
carry

out full valuation of the plans at least every

years
The pension obligation is measured as the present value of

the estimated future cash outflows Actuarial gains and losses arising

from funded plans are recognized over the average remaining service

lives of employees Past service costs are recognized as an expense

on straight line basis over the average period until the benefits

become vested

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has present legal or

constructive obligation as result of past events it is probable that

an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and

reliable estimate of an amount can be made Provisions are not

recognized for future operating losses
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Summary of significant accounting policies continued

2.22 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods and services

net of value-added tax rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales

within the Group Revenue is recognized as follows

Sales

Hotel revenue from rooms rental food and beverage sales and other

ancillary services is recognized when the services are rendered

ii Revenue in respect of hotel management and related services is

recognized when the services are rendered

iiiRental revenue from investment properties is recognized on

straight line basis over the periods of the respective leases

Other revenue

ivlnterest income is recognized on time proportion basis using the

effective interest method When receivable is impaired the Group

reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount being the

estimated future cash flow discounted at original effective interest

rate of the instrument and continues unwinding the discount as

interest income Interest income on impaired loans is recognized

either as cash is collected or on cost-recovery basis as conditions

warrant

Dividend income from other investments is recognized when the

right to receive payment is established

2.23 Operating leases as the lessee

Leases in which significant portion of the risks and rewards of

ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases

Payments made under operating leases net of any incentives received

from the lessor are expensed in the income statement on straight

line basis over the period of the leases

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Companys shareholders is recognized as

liability
in the Groups financial statements in the period in which the

dividends are approved by the Companys shareholders

2.25 Share-based compensation

The Group operates two equity settled share based compensation

plans For options granted on or before November 2002 the Group

has taken advantage of the transitional provisions in HKFRS under

which the fair value recognition and measurement policies have not

been applied For options granted after November 2002 the fair

value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant

of the options is recognized as an expense The total amount to be

expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair

value of the options granted excluding the impact of
any non market

vesting conditions for example profitability and sales growth targets

and performance vesting conditions Non-market vesting conditions are

included in assumptions about the number of options that are expected

to become exercisable At each balance sheet date the entity revises

it estimates of the number of options thdt dre expected to boLonlo

exercisable It recognizes the impact of the revision of original estimates

if any in the income statement and corresponding adjustment to

equity over the remaining vesting period
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Summary of significant accounting policies continued

2.25 Share-based compensation continued

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs

are credited to share capital nominal value and share premium when

the options are exercised The related balance previously recognized in

the option reserve is also credited to the share premium

2.26 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition

construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes

substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are

capitalized as part of the cost of that asset All other borrowing costs

are charged to the income statement in the year
in which they are

incurred

Financial risk management
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Groups activities expose it to variety of financial risks market risk

including foreign exchange risk and price risk credit risk liquidity risk

and interest-rate risk The Groups overall risk management programme

focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to

minimize potential adverse effects on the Groups financial performance

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk

exposures

Risk management is carried out by the Group Treasury under guidance

of the Board of Directors Grnup Treasury identifies evaluates and

hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Groups operating

units The Board provides principles for overall risk management and

covering specific areas such as foreign exchange risk interest rate risk

credit risk use of derivative financial instruments and investing excess

liquidity

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign

exchange risk arising from various currency exposures Foreign

exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions

recognized assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign

operations The Group has investments in different foreign

operations whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency

translation risk

There is natural economic hedge to the extent that all the

Groups business units in Hong Kong Mainland China the

Philippines Singapore Malaysia and Thailand derive their

revenues and most of the expenses associated therewith in

local currencies The Groups hotels are quoting room tariffs

in the local
currency

in view of the general appreciation of the

Asian currencies against US dollar It is the Groups endeavour

wherever and to the extent possible to quote tariffs in the

stronger currency and maintain bank balances in that currency

if legally permitted Also to the extent legally permitted the

Groups subsidiaries in Mainland China contracted for new bank

loans in US dollars

The Group has not felt it appropriate to substantially hedge

against currency
risks through forward exchange contracts upon

consideration of the currency risk involved and the cost of

obtaining such cover
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Financial risk management continued

3.1 Financial risk factors continued

Market risk continued

Foreign exchange risk continued

The Group analyzes its exchange exposure based on the

financial position at year end The Groups exchange risk at the

unit level mainly arises from long-term bank borrowings and

shareholders loans and the Group calculates such impact on the

income statement The Group calculates the impact on exchange

fluctuation reserve of the exchange risk on consolidation arising

from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities

At 31 December 2008 if US dollar and Hong Kong dollar has

weakened/strengthened by 5% against all other currencies with

all other variables held constant the Groups profit attributable

to the equity holders of the Company and exchange fluctuation

reserve would have been increased/decreased by US$354 14000

2007 US$3 1706000 and US$2 2079000 2007

US$ 83540000 respectively Exchange rate between US dollar

and Hong Kong dollar is only allowed to fluctuate in narrow

range under the Hong Kongs linked exchange rate system

iiPrice risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because

investments held by the Group are classified on the consolidated

balance sheet as financial assets held for trading and are stated at

fair value through profit or loss Available-for-sale financial assets

are investments in unquoted shares and not subject to price risk

The Group is not exposed to commodity price risk

Equity security price risk is the risk that the fair values of the

trading securities decrease as result of changes in the value of

individual securities which are also affected by the change in the

level of equity indices

For every 5% decrease in the fair value of the trading securities

classified under financial assets held for trading the carrying value

of the trading securities will decrease by US$666000 2007

US$3586000 while the Groups profit attributable to the equity

holders of the Company will decrease by US$648000 2007

US$3090000 assuming that no account is given for factors such

as impairment which may have additional impact on the income

statement

Based on the market value of all the trading securities as at

December 2008 89.4% 2007 97.8% of the Groups trading

securities are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

and are valued at closing market bid prices at the balance sheet

date The market equity index for the Hong Kong stock exchange

at the close of business of the nearest trading day in the year to

the balance sheet date and the highest and lowest points during

the year were as follows

High/Low

2007

31638/

18664

Hong Kong 27854/

Hang Seng Index 14387 10676 27812

31 December High/Low 31 December

2008 2008 2007
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Financial risk management continued

Financial risk factors continued

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk It has

policies in place to ensure that sale of rooms to wholesalers are

made to customers with an appropriate credit history Sales to retail

customers are made via credit cards to significant extent Sales

to corporate customers are made to customers with good credit

history The Group has policies that limit the amount of global credit

exposure to ny custortier CdsFt dud Udrik deposits re rridirly placed

in major international and local banks

The maximum exposure of credit risk at the reporting date in

respect of each class of financial assets is disclosed in the notes to

the consolidated financial statements of the relevant financial assets

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient

cash and marketable securities the availability of funding through

an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability

to close out market positions Due to the dynamic nature of the

underlying businesses the Group Treasury aims to maintain

flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Between Between

Less than months and Over

months and year years years

us$000 uS$OOo us$OOO us$OOO

At31 December2008

Bank overdrafts 624

Bank loans 38389 617536 1271737

Interest payable for bank loans 10510 31290 35873 64419

Derivative financial instruments 3378 16893 15993 29652

Due to non controlling

shareholders 6355 37965

Accounts payable and accruals 49480 354900

At31 December2007

Bank overdrafts 34

Bankloans 91894 18118 1135821

Interest payable for bank loans 13555 39597 50611 58568

Derivative financial instruments 816 4080 4897 10915

Due to non controlling

shareholders 10355 31318

Accounts payable and accruals 60687 316718

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted

cash flows which are equal to their carrying balances in the

respective consolidated balance sheet except that the amount due

to non controlling shareholders with maturities over two years

included in the consolidated balance sheet as at December 2008

is US$270 2000 December 2007 US$20603000 and that

the estimated amount of interest payable for bank loans are arrived

based on the principal loan balance and prevailing interest rates at

year
end date up to the final maturity date of the loan agreements

The analysis of the Groups financial liabilities showing the contractual

maturities is as follows
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Financial risk management continued

3.1 Financial risk factors continued

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest bearing assets the Groups

income and operating cash inflows are substantially independent of

changes in market interest rates

The Groups interest rate risk mainly arises from long term bank

borrowings and derivative financial instrument of interest-rate swap

contracts

Bank borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash

flow interest-rate risk Group policy is to maintain at around 50% of

its borrowings at fixed rate considering Renminbi bank borrowings

are fixed rate in nature and taking into account the principal amount

of interest rate swap contracts executed At as December 2008

46c December 2007 1% of borrowings were at fixed rates on

thxt hcic

The Group analyzes its interest rate exposure on bank borrowings

based on the assumption that the loan position at year end could

be wholly refinanced and/or renewed The Group calculates the

impact on income statement of defined interest rate shift The

same interest rate shift is used for all currencies The scenario is run

only for bank borrowings that represent the major interest bearing

portion Based on the simulation performed the impact on income

StdteFIloFlt of oiiu per culltdge point irCrdsu would be maximum

decrease of the Groups profit attributable to the equity holders

of the Company of US$ 3560000 2007 US$11064000 after

interest capitalization for properties under development

The Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk by using floating

to-fixed interest-rate swap contracts Such interest-rate swap

contracts have the economic effect of converting borrowings from

floating rates to fixed rates Generally the Group raises long-term

bank borrowings at floating rates The Group closely monitors

the movement of interest rates from time to time and enters into

interest-rate swap contracts Under the interest-rate swap contracts

the Group agrees
with other parties to exchange at monthly

intervals the difference between fixed contract rates and floating-

rate interest amounts calculated by reference to the agreed notional

principal amounts However these interest-rate swap contracts do

not qualify for hedge accounting Changes in the fair value of any

contracts are recognized immediately in the income statement

The Group analyzes its interest rate exposure on interest rate

swap contracts based on the principal value and underlying terms

of the contracts at year end At December 2008 if interest

rate is one percentage point higher with all other variables held

constant the Groups profit attributable to the equity holders

of the Company would have been increased by US$2368 1000

2007 US$28296000 as result of increase in fair value of these

contracts If interest rate is percentage point lower the Groups

profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company would have

been decreased by US$2420000 2007 US$2903000

3.2 Financial risk management

The Groups objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the

Groups ability to continue as going concern in order to provide

returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year
ended December 2008

Financial risk management continued

3.2 Financial risk management continued

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure the Group may

adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders return capital to

shareholders issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio This ratio

is calculated as net debt divided by total capital Net debt is calculated

as total borrowings including current and non-current bank borrowings

as shown in the balance sheet less cash and bank balances Total capital

is calculated as equity as shown in the balance sheet

The gearing ratios at December 2008 and 2007 were as follows

2008

Us$000

2007

us$000

Total borrowings

Less Cash and bank balances

Note

1928286

463027

1245867

386684

Net debt 1465259 859183

Total equity 4251388 4185328

Gearing ratio

net debt over total equity 34.5% 20.5%

The Groups bank borrowing facilities require it to meet certain ratios

based on adjusted consolidated capital and reserves attributable to the

Companys equity holders and adjusted consolidated total equity The

Group monitors compliance with these ratios on monthly basis The

Group has satisfactorily complied with all covenants under its borrowing

agreements

3.3 Accounting for interest rate swap contracts

The Group has sought to reduce its interest rate exposure by entering

into interest rate swap contracts

Interest rate swap contracts kind of derivative financial instruments

are set up for the purpose of managing risk since the Groups policy

does not permit speculative transactions Interest rate swap contracts

are initially recognized at fair value on the date contract is entered

into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value

The Groups interest rate swap contracts do not qualify for hedge

accounting Changes in the fair value of any contracts that do not

qualify for hedge accounting are recognized immediately in the income

statement

3.4 Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets such as

publicly traded derivatives and trading and available for sale securities

is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date The quoted

market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current

bid price the appropriate quoted market price for financial liabilities is

the current ask price

The fair value of financial instruments not traded in active markets

are stated at cost less impairment which is charged to the income

statement as the fair value of these financial assets cannot be reliably

measured

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of trade receivables

and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values The fair value

of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting

the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that

is available to the Group for similar financial instruments
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on

historical experience and other factors including expectations of future

events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future

The resulting accounting estimates will by definition seldom equal

the related actual results The estimates and assumptions that have

significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any

impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note

2.8 The recoverable amounts of cash generating units have been

determined based on value-in use calculations These calculations

require the use of estimates

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions

Significant judgment is required in determining the worldwide

provision for income taxes There are certain transactions and

calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain

during the ordinary course of business The Group recognizes

liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of

whether additional taxes will be due in accordance with local tax

practice and professional advice Where the final tax outcome

of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially

recorded such differences will impact the income tax and deferred

tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market

for similar lease and other contracts or valuation carried out by

independent firms of valuers annually The Groups investment

properties are stated at professional valuations at year end

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the entitys accounting policies

Distinction between investment properties and owner-occupied

properties

The Group determines whether property qualifies as investment

property In making its judgement the Group considers whether the

property generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets

held by an entity Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that

are attributable not only to property but also to other assets used in

the production or supply process

Some properties comprise portion that is held to earn rentals or

for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in

the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative

purposes If these portions can be sold separately or leased out

separately under finance lease the Group accounts for the portions

separately If the portions cannot be sold separately the property is

accounted for as investment property only if an insignificant portion is

held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for

administrative purposes judgement is applied in determining whether

ancillary services are so significant that property does not qualify as

investment property The Group considers each property separately in

making its judgement
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 2008

Sales and segment information

The Group owns and operates hotels and associated properties and

provides hotel management and related services Sales recognized during

the year were as follows

2008 2007

uS$000 uS$OOO

Sales

Hotel operation

Roorri rentals 674247 622644

Food and beverage sales 19430 457250

Rendering of ancillary services 87075 7925

Hotel management and related

service fees

Property rentals

Primary reporting format geographical segments

The Group is managed on worldwide basis in six main geographical areas

hotel ownership operation and management

hotel ownership operation and management

ownership and leasing of office commercial

and serviced apartments

hotel ownership operation and management

hotel ownership operation and management

ownership and leasing of office commercial

and serviced apartments

hotel ownership operation and management

ownership and leasing of office commercial

and serviced apartments

hotel ownership operation and management

golf club ownership and operation

ownership and leasing of office commercial

and serviced apartments

hotel ownership operation and management

Secondary reporting format business segments

The Group is organized on worldwide basis into three main business

segments

Hotel operation

Hotel management

Property rentals

ownership and operation of hotel business

provision of hotel management and

elated serviLes

ownership and leasing of office commercial

and serviced apartments

36254

36265

1353271

Hong Kong

Mainland China

The Philippines

Singapore

Thailand

Malaysia

Other countries

32369

27734

1219248
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Sales and segment information continued

Primary reporting format
geographical segments

Segment income statement

For year ended December 2008 US$ million

Sales

Malaysia Elimination Group

External sales 233.6 531.8 153.9 193.3 56.0

Inter-segment sales
7.l 24.8 8.8 5.9

57.4 1353.3

Total
240.7 556.6 162.7 199.2

2.7

58.7

3.8 3.0 56.1

Result

131.1 60.4 56.1 1353.3

Segment results 38.5 76.3 29.2 68.8 1.5 30.1 11.6 266.0

Interest income
7.7

Dividend income
0.9

Net unrealized losses on financial assets held for trading
33.4

Fair value losses on investment properties
0.9

Fair value losses on derivative financial instruments

interest-rate
swap contracts

Fair value gains on loans from non-controlling

shareholders
1.3

Penalty on relinquishment of rights to acquire land

use rights of project sites

0.6
Unallocated corporate expenses

16.7
Operating profit

163.2

Finance gain
12.8

Share of profit of associates 0.9 63.9 0.2 10.4 2.4 0.9 76.9

Profit before income tax
252.9

The Peoples

Republic of China

Mainland

China

The

Philippines
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Sales and segment information continued

Primary reporting format geographical segments continued

Segment income statement continued

For year ended December 2008 US$ million

The Peoples

Republic of China

Mainland The

Hong Kong China Philippines Singapore Thailand Malaysia Other Elimination Group

Depreciation of property plant and equipment 14.4 86.7 22.1 13.8 13.5 12.5 3.8 166.8

Amortization of leasehold land and land use rights 1.9 8.5 0.3 0.3 0.2 11.2

Capital expenditures excluding intangible assets 8.3 432.2 81.3 8.4 10.8 29.7 234.0 804.7

Inter-segment sales or transactions are entered into under the normal commercial terms and conditions that would also be available to unrelated third parties

Segment balance sheet

As at 31 December 2008 US$ million

The Peoples

Republic of China

Mainland The

Hong Kong China Philippines Singapore Thailand Malaysia Other Elimination Group

Segment assets 267 2618.1 536.7 795.6 213.9 402.2 672.4 13.8 5492.2

Interest in associates 24.3 1043.1 28.2 92.4 29.6 52.8 1270.4

Unallocated assets 64.6

Intangible assets 95.5

Total assets 6922.7

Segment liabilities 80.0 189.6 32.5 27.9 16 23.7 44.9 13.8 400.9

Unallocated liabilities 2270.4

Total liabilities 2671 .3
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Sales and segment information continued

Primary reporting format geographical segments continued

Segment income statement

For year ended December 2007 US$ million

Interest income

Dividend income

Net unrealized gains on financial assets held for trading

Ftir value gains on investment properties

Fair value losses on derivative financial instruments

interest rate swap contracts

Fair value gains on loans from non-controlling

shareholders

Unallocated corporate expenses

Tax refund on reinvestment of dividend from

subsidiary and an associate

Gain on disposal of partial interests in subsidiaries

Waiver of debt by non-controlling shareholder

Operating profit

The Peoples

Republic of China

Mainland

China

373.3

19.1

98.9

453.1

The

Philippines

Sales

Malaysia Other Elimination Group

Ecternal sales

Inter-segment sales

230.8

7.1

436.9

19.3

149.4

8.8

170.6

4.9

60.3

2.8

121.8 49.4 1219.2

Total 237.9 456.2 158.2 175.5 63.1

1.7 48.3

Result

125.5 51.1 48.3 1219.2

Segment results
32.7 86.3 30.0 55.8 216

Finance costs

Share of profit of associates

Profit before income tax

10.3

0.9

21.1

59.1

10.4

10.7

16.0

3.2

9.1

4.7

0.2 85.7 11.9 2.3 0.8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Sales and segment information continued

Primary reporting format geographical segments continued

Segment income statement continued

For year ended December 2007 US$ million

The Peoples

Republic of China

Mainland The

Hong Kong China Philippines Singapore Thailand Malaysia Other Elimination Group

Depreciation of property plant arid equipment 14.5 61.5 21.9 12.9 9.0 11.4 3.7 134.9

Amortization of leasehold land and land use rights .9 5.6 0.2 0.3 0.3 8.3

Capital expenditures excluding intangible assets 8.0 414.6 47.5 13.3 43.2 22.0 105.2 653.8

Inter-segment sales or transactions are entered into under normal commercial terms and conditions that would also be available to unrelated third parties

Segment balance sheet

As at 31 December 2007 US$ million

The Peoples

Republic of China

Mainland The

Hong Kong China Philippines Singapore Thailand Malaysia Other Elimination Group

Segment assets 301.4 20888 507.8 804.6 232.3 418.0 429.2 13.2 4768.9

Interest in associates 39.3 918.8 86.9 28.7 45.3 1119.0

Unallocated assets 125.9

Intangible assets 87.2

Total assets 101 .0

Segment liabilities 80.7 157.2 39.0 30.8 26.0 25.6 31.7 13.2 377.8

Unallocated liabilities 1537.9

Total liabilities 19 5.7
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Sales and segment information continued

Secondary reporting format business segments

For the year ended/as at December 2008 US$ million

Interest in associates

Unallocated assets

Intangible assets 95.5

Total 6922.7

Segment

results

For the year ended/as at 31 December 2007 US$ milliun

Total Capital

assets expendituresSales

Hotel operation

Room rentals 674.2

Food and beverage sales 519.4

Renderings of ancillary

services 87.1

1280.7 217.2 4870.8 797.1

Hotel management 92.4 29.5 51.8 2.6

Property rentals 36.3 19.3 583.4 5.0

Elimination 56.1 13.8

Segment

results

Total Capital

assets expenditures

Hotel operation

Room rentals 622.6

Food and beverage sales 457.3

Renderings of
ancillary

services 79.2

159 252.7 151.5 605.4

Hotel management 807 11.3 65.8 2.5

Property rentals 27.7 16.6 564.8 45.9

Elimination 48.3 13.2

1353.3 266.0 5492.2 804.7

1270.4

64.6

1219.2 280.6 47689 653.8

Interest in associates 11 19.0

Unallocated assets 25.9

Intangible assets 87.2

Total 6101.0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Financial instruments by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the

line items below

Group
Assets at

fair value

through Available-

Loans and income for.sale

receivables statement assets Total

us$000 us$OoO us$000 us$OOO

Liabilities Derivatives

at fair value not

through qualifying
Other

income for hedge financial

statement

us$000

accounting

uS$oOO

liabilities Total

us$OOO us$OOo

Assets as per consolidated balance sheet

31 December2008

Available-for-sale financial assets Note 13 4158 4158

Other receivables Note 14 3683 3683

Accounts receivable Note 15 116566 116566

Due from associates Note 12 82267 82267

Financial assets held for trading Note 16 13326 13326

Cash and bank balances Note 17 463027 463027

Total 665543 13326 4158 683027

31 December2007

Available for sale financial assets Note 13 4191 4191

Other receivables Note 14 5091 5091

Accounts receivable Note IS 111404 111404

Due from associates Note 12 84783 84783

Financial assets held for
trading Note /6 71710 71710

Cash and bank balances Note /7 386684 386684

Total 587962 71710 4191 663863

Liabilities as per
consolidated balance sheet

31 December 2008

Bank loans and overdrafts Note 20 1928286 1928286

Derivative financial instruments Note 21 65916 65916

Due to non-controlling shareholders Note 22 33367 33367

Accounts payable and accruals Note 24 404380 404380

Total 33367 65916 2332666 2431949

31 December2007

Bank loans and overdrafts Note 20 1245867 1245867

Derivative financial instruments Note 21 20708 20708

Due to non controlling
shareholders Note 22 30958 30958

Accounts payable and accruals Note 24 377405 377405

Totdl 30958 20708 1623272 1674938

92 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements



Financial instruments by category continued Derivatives

Company
Available-

qualifying Other

Loans and for-sale for hedge financial

receivables assets Total accounting liabilities Total

us$000 us$OOo us$000 us$000 us$Ooo us$OoO

not

Assets as per balance sheet

December 2008

Amount due from subsidiaries

Note II 122542 122542

Club debentures 840 840

Dividend receivable 276329 276329

Cash and bank balances

Note 17 12662 12662

Total 411533 840 412373

31 December 2007

Amount due from subsidiaries

Note 1/ 367174 367174

Club debentures 840 840

Dividend receivable 227650 227650

Cash and bank balances

Note 6468 6468

Total 611292 840 612132

Liabilities as per balance sheet

December 2008

Derivative financial instruments

Note 2/ 65916 65916

Amounts due to subsidiaries 23870 23870

Total 65916 23870 89786

31 December2007

Derivative financial instruments

Note 20708 20708

Amounts due to subsidiaries 28241 28241

Total 20708 28241 48949
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Buildings comprise mainly hotel properties Details of the hotel

properties of the Companys subsidiaries are summarized in Note 40a

Properties under development included construction work in
progress

in

respect of the renovation of certain hotel properties

Property plant and equipment

Group
Freehold Furniture Properties

land and Vehicles fixtures under

buildings machinery equipment development

us$000 us$ooo us$ooo us$ooo

At
January

2007

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Total

us$000

2628248

712049

1916199

153757

102790

50967

489222

301705

187517

Freehold Furniture Properties

land and Vehicles fixtures under

buildings machinery equipment development Total

us$000 us$OOO u5$oOo us$000 us$oOO

505 78

505178

3776405

1116544

2659861

Year ended 31 December 2008

Opening net book amount

Exchange
iferences

Additions

Acquisition
of subsid

ary

Disposals

Transfer

Depreciation

Closing net book amount

2358607 99577 248336 554411 3260931

2628 3669 4002 5299 0342

58419 8870 53880 546748 667917

22114 .- 8698 30812

10686 423 1977 294 13380

229048 42529 25775 297352

77 329 22318 67651 167298

2577545 131904 262365 817510 3789324

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2007

Opening net book amount 1916199 50967 187517 505178 2659861

Exchange differences 120170 2737 9315 35930 168 52

Additions 29620 8319 40859 496332 575130

Dsposals 3253 185 1171 201 4810

sposal through selling
of

partial

interest in subsid
ary 55 60 115

Transfer 364221 53655 62642 480518

Transfer to nvestment properties

Note 2250 2250

Depreciation 68350 15916 50771 135037

Closing
net book amount 2358607 99577 248336 554411 3260931

At31 December2007

Cost 3171927 220593 612043 55441 4558974

Accumulated
depreciation 813310 121016 363707 1298043

Net book amount 2358607 99577 248336 554411 3260931

At31 December2008

Cost

Accumu ated depreciation

Net book amoun

3461116

883571

2577545

262894

130990

131904

678415

416050

262365

817510

817510

5219935

14306

3789324

All depreciation expenses net of amount capitalized of US$47 1.000

in 2008 2007 US$185000 have been included as part of the other

operating expenses

For year 2008 and 2007 there is no bank borrowings secured on fixed

asset
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Investment propertiesProperty plant and equipment continued

Details of movements in property plant and equipment of the Company

are as follows

Furniture

fixtures Motor

equipment vehicles Total

us$000 uS$OOO us$OOO

At January 2007

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

843

817

221

221

1064

1038

Net book amount 26 26

Year ended 31 December 2007

Opening net book amount 26 26

Additions 31 31

Depreciation 21 21

Closing net book amount 36 36

At 31 December 2007

Cost 874 221 1095

Accumulated depreciation 838 221 1059

Net book amount 36 36

Year ended 31 December 2008

Opening net book amount 36 36

Additions 120 20

Depreciation 41

Closing net book amount 115 115

At 31 December 2008

Cost 994 22 1215

Accumulated depreciation 879 221 1100

Netbookamount 115 115

At January

Exchange differences

Additions

Derecognition cost for replaced part

Transfer from property plant and

equipment Note 2250

Transfer from leasehold land and

land use rights Note 4469

Fair value losses/gains included in

other losses/gains net

Note 26 952 59139

At 31 December 524309 523633

The investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2008 by

independent professionally qualified valuers on the basis of their market

value as fully operational entity for existing use

The fair values of investment properties comprised

Outside Hong Kong held on

Freehold

Leases of between to 50 years

Details of investment properties of the Companys subsidiaries are

summarized in Note 41a

2008

us$000

523633

3044
498
309

2007

us$000

385125

27039

45865

254

2008

us$000

2007

us$000

386782

137527

524309

400430

23203

523633
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 2008

At january

Cost

Accumulated amortization

Net book amount

Cost

Accumulated amortization

Net book amount

2008

us$000

630475

109681

520794

2007

us$000

467277

86135

381142

All amortization expenses in 2008 and 2007 have been included as part of

the other operating expenses

2008

us$000

85452

353954

520794

Leasehold land and land use rights

513142

96393

416749

The Groups interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent

prepaid operating lease payments and their net book values are analyzed as

follows

Opening net book amount

Exchange differences

Additions

Acquisition of subsidiary

Transfer to investment properties

Note
Amortization of prepaid operating

lease payment

416749

14313

00947

11215

381142

15600

28960

3842

4469

8326

Closing net book value 520794 6749

At December

2007

us$000

In Hong Kong held on

Leases of between 10 to 50 years 81388 83327

Outside Hong Kong held on

Leases of over 50 years

Leases of between to 50 years

97520

235902

416749

513142

96393

416749
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O.Intangible assets The pnncipdl component of goodwill represented the excess of cost of

Cost

Trademark Website

Goodwill licences development

us$000 uS$ooo uS$ooo

Total

us$000

75791

75791

10958

665

10293

1625

1625

88374

665

87709

At January 2007

Accumulated amortization

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2007

Opening net book amount

Addition

Amortization_expenses

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2007

Cost 75791 10958 2030 88779

Accumulated amortization 1213 394 1607

Net book amount 75791 9745 1636 87172

75791 10293 1625 87709

548

405

394

405

942

75791 9745 1636 87172

acquisition of the hotel management group SLIM International Limited over

the fair value of the identified net assets acquired Due to the synergies

of the combination of the hotel operation and hotel management sub

groups the goodwill impairment assessment is based on the future cashflow

generated from the hotel management group The future cashfiow is based

on the recent forecasts taking into account the terms and final maturities

of all existing management agreements the past performance of the hotels

and the prevailing market conditions growth rate of 5% per annum from

20 12 and 5% discount rate have been applied to the cashflow projection

In view of the cashflow projection provision for impairment losses is not

considered necessary

Year ended 31 December 2008

Opening net book amount 75791 9745 1636 87172

Addition Note 35 9943 9943

Exchange difference 438 438
Amortization expenses 548 677 1225

Closing net book amount 85296 9197 959 95452

At31 December2008

Cost 85296 10958 2030 98284

Accumulated amortization 1761 1071 2832

Net book amount 85296 9197 959 95452
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 2008

in and amounts due from subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries

2008

uS$000

2007

US$000

Company

Investments at cost

Unlisted shares 17 540 170 1321

Equity loans 1517090

3228630

131

301

8115

9436

Equity loans are unsecured interest-free with no fixed repayment terms

Amounts due from subsidiaries unsecured

2008

us$000

2007

Us$000

Current interest free and repayable

on demand 122542 367174

Amounts due to subsidiaries as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 are

unsecured interest-free and repayable on demand

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 39a

12.Interest in associates and due from associates

2008

us$000

2007

US$000

Interest in associates

At January 875333 708638

Share of associates results

profit before taxation 108281 108554

taxation 31414

76867

9654

98900

Exchange difference 53904 52087

Interest cost capitalized 5540

Capital contribution to associates 43212 35589

Dividend declared by associates 33529 40528
Disposal of par-iial interest in subsidiary 15 107

Reclassification from equity loan 40264

Investment in associates under

equity method 105605 875333

Equity loans Note 146290 82796

Other long term shareholder loans

Nnt 68023

1270364

6086

118992

Due from associates Note 14244 23920

98 Notes the Consolidated Financial Statements



12.Interest in associates and due from associates continued
Notes

Equity loans are unsecured interest free and with no fixed repayment terms

Other long term shareholder loans are interest bearing at

HIBOR plus per annum in Hong Kong

dollars 29210 29210

SIBOR plus 0.21700 per annum

in United States dollars 10303

SIBOR plus 1% per annum in United States

dollars 7910

SWAP cost plus 0.5% per annum

in Singapore dollars 20903

68023

21350

60863

Other long term shareholder loans are unsecured and not repayable within

twelve months including loan to an associate of US$29210000 2007
US$29210000 which will be wholly repayable by December 2015 The fair

values of other long term shareholder loans are not materially different from

their Cdl
ryirig

dITIOUFItS

Due from associates are unsecured interest free and repayable within one year

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of

the long term shareholder loans of US$68023000 2007 US$60863000 and

amount due from associates of US$ 14244000 2007 US$23920000

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value

of the club debentures mentioned above

2008

Us$000

The roups interests in its associates all of which are unlisted pursuant to

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates after making appropriate adjustments to

conform with the Groups accounting policies were as follows

Name

2007

US$000

Paid
up Country

of

capital incorporation
Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit

uS$OoO uS$000 uS$OOO uS$OOO u5$OaO

interest

held

2008

Ch na World Trade

Center Ltd

Others

240000 The Peoples

Repubhc
of China

1160225

984811

2145036

597692

276980

874672

124908

48982

273890

44317

32550

76.867

50

2007

China World Trade 240000 The Peoples 932291 423343 114482 61468 50

Center Ltd Republit of China

Others 821267

753558

211223

634566

130259

244741

37433

98901

3.Available-for-sale financial assets

2008

us$000

2007

US$000

Equity securities

Overseas unlisted shares at cost 1916 19

Exchange differences 127 207

Provision for impairment

Club debentures at fair value

losses

2043

2115

4158

14
2109

2082

4191

There were no disposals on available for sale financial assets in 2008 and

2007
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Loans to managed hotel

Other loan

3683 5091

Loans to managed hotel were granted to managed hotel in Australia

owned by an independent third party under the provision of the hotel

management agreement The loans are secured by second mortgage

over that hotel property and wholly repayable by 2012 according to

fixed repayment schedule These loans are interest free except for fixed

amount of A$2000000 equivalent to US$ 1384000 2007 A$2000000

equivalent to US$ 1799000 which is interest bearing at LIBOR plus 1%

per annum The effective interest rate applied to calculate the fair value

upon initial recognition of the interest free portion is 5.74% per annum

For year 2007 an interest free loan of Euro 6000 equivalent to

US$613000 was granted to former officer by wholly owned subsidiary

according to the terms of the employment contract The loan is wholly

repayable by 201 according to fixed repayment schedule The effective

interest rate applied to calculate the fair value upon initial recognition

of the loan is 3.87%
per annum This loan is grouped under accounts

receivable in current assets in 2008 as the officer has left the Group

The fair values of these other receivables are not materially different from

their carrying valuec

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value

of other receivables mentioned above

15.Accounts receivable prepayments and deposits

2008

Us$000

Trade receivables

Less provision for impairment of

receivables

54771

547 1321

Trade receivables net 54224 1706

Prepayments and deposits 74542 60024

Other receivables 62342 39698

Current portion 191108 171428

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as

the Group has large number of customers internationally dispersed

The fair values of the trade and other receivables are not materially

different from their carrying values

significant part of the Groups sales are by credit cards or against

payment of deposits he
remaining

amounts are with general credit

term of 30 days The Group has defined credit policy The ageing

analysis of the trade receivables after provision of impairment is as

follows

2008 2007

US$ooo US$000

months 1803 69676

months 1696 546

Over months 725

54224 71

484

706

l4.Other receivables

2008

US$000

3683

2007

US$ooo

4620

471

2007

US$000

73027

IOU Notes to the Consoidated Financial Statements



5.Accounts receivable prepayments and deposits continued

continued

Trade receivables that are less than three months past due are not

considered impaired As of December 2008 trade receivables of

US$25346000 2007 US$20849000 were past due but not impaired

These relate to number of independent customers for whom there

is no recent history of default The ageing analysis of these trade

receivables is as follows

2008 2007

Us$000 US$000

Up to months 22925 8822

months 1696 1543

Over months 725

25346

484

20849

As of December 2008 trade receivables of US$547000 2007

US$1321000 were considered impaired These receivables were all

overdue for more than three months

The carrying amounts of the Groups trade and other receivables are

denominated in the following currencies

Hong Kong dollars

United States dollars

Renminbi

Singapore dollars

Malaysian Ringgit

Thai Baht

Philippines Pesos

Eu ros

Other currencies

116566 111404

Movements on the Groups provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows

2008

US$OOO

2007

US$000

At January 1321 1696

Exchange differences 86

Provision for receivables impairment 413 1273

Receivables written off during

the year as uncollectible 529 421
Unused amounts reversed 675 13
At31 December 547 1321

2008

Us$000

31939

3077

21539

12993

6.966

2376

18025

7592

12059

2007

US$000

21461

4159

24300

14731

6732

4458

15914

3519

16130
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 2008

5.Accounts receivable prepayments and deposits continued

continued

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have

been included in administrative expenses in the income statement

Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off

when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair

value of each class of receivables mentioned above

2008

us$000

2007

uS$ooo

Cash at bank and in hand 256749 248751

Short-term bank deposits 206278 137933

Cash and bank balances 463027 386684

Company

2008

us$000

1812

0850

2662

Maximum exposure to credit risk

for all balances at bank 458902 382758 12660 16467

16.Financial assets held for trading

Equity securities at market value

Shares listed in Hong Kong

Shares listed outside Hong Kong

2008 2007

Us$000 US$ooo

On July 2008 the Group adjusted 10867055 ordinary shares in the

Company with carrying value of US$25520000 previously accounted

for as financial assets held for trading to equity Such shares were held by

wholly owned subsidiary of Shangri-La Hotel Public Company Limited

Thailand SHPCL before the Company acquired controlling interest in

SHPCL in late 1999

The effective interest rate on short term bank deposits was 2.3% 2007

2.9o these deposits have an average maturity of months 2007

months

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purposes of the

consolidated cash flow statement

Cash and bank balances as above
Less Bank overdrafts Note 20

Short term bank deposits more

than months maturity 56047 29245
Cash and cash equivalents 406356 357405

I7.Cash and bank balances

Group

2007

US$OOO

16468

16468

11917

1409

13326

70131

1579

71710

Group
2008

us$000

463027

624

2007

US$ooo

386684

34
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Total

000 US$000 US$000 US$000

Authorized

Ordinary shares

of HK$1 each

At31 December2007

and 31 December 2008 5000000 646496 646496

Issued and
fully paid

Ordinary shares of

HK$1 each

At january 2007 2560753 330676 894134 1224810

Exercise of share options

allotment of shares

Note 6796 877 8740 9617

trancfer from option resrv 2044 2044

Issue of shares upon conversion

of convertible bonds 26252 3387 31947 35334

Rights issue 287687 37121 625651 662772

At31 December2007

and January 2008 2881488 372061 1562516 934577

Exercise of share options

allotment of shares

Note 3875 500 4851 5351

transfer from option reserve 1069 1069

At 31 December 2008 2885363 372561 1568436 1940997

18.Share capital

No of

shares

Amount

Ordinary Share

shares premium

The following option shares at various exercise prices granted to option

holders of the Company under the Executive Option Scheme and the New

Option Scheme were exercised

Number of option shares issued

Total

consideration

uS$000

At At At At At At

HK$8.26 HK$8.82 HK$8.18 HK$6.81 HK$11.60 HK$14.60

per option per option per option per option per option per option

share share share share share share

In
year

2008

Jaouary 48911 40000 15000 144

February 30000 50000 165000 10000 342

March 57084 96911 80000 250000 110000 823

April 500560 05000 690

May 177364 100000 20000 376

June 48455 1075000 89500 2021

July 24000 200000 225000 117500 762

August 30000 32000 05

September 77528 88

For the
year

ended

31 December 20138 765008 295805 330000 1990000 494000 5351

In
year

2007

January 327084 67921 150000 645

February 67921 50000 125000 303

March 48000 95648 60000 376000 877

April 20000 52000 245

May 77528 40000 984000 1596

June 375000 75000 702

Jay 29028 63000 1005000 292500 2139

August 133000 225000 50000 573

September 75028 159000 25000 365

October 36308 125983 67921 527000 115033 1366

November 224439 255000 30000 694

December 50000 20000 12

For the
year

ended

31 December 2007 700448 475950 399411 230000 4383000 607500 9617

The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before

the dates on which the options were exercised was HK$2 .60 2007
HK$21.20
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The year ended 31 December 2008

18.Share capital continued

Share options

Share options are granted to directors and to key employees The exercise

price of the granted options is equal to/higher than the closing price of the

shares on the date of the grant Options are conditional on the directors

and employees completing one years service the vesting period The

options are exercisable starting one year
from the grant date and the

options have contractual option term often years The Group has no

legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash

The Company has two share option schemes the Executive Option

Scheme and the New Option Scheme

Movements in the number of outstanding option shares and their related

weighted average exercise prices are as follows

Outstanding option shares at the end of the
year

have the following expiry

dates and exercise prices

Expiry date

Executive Option Scheme

30 April 2008

14 january 2010

l4january2Oll

8.26

8.82

8.18

914489

67921

982410

765008

1210294

67921

2043223

New Option

2May 2008

30 June 2008

28 May2012

27 April 20

15 june 2016

Scheme

11.60

14.60

6.81

11.60

14.60

980000

8362000

5681000

15023000

50000

37500

1310000

0462000

6250000

18109500

Exercise

price in

HK$ per

option share

Number of

option shares as at

31 December 31 December

2008 2007

For the year ended

31 December 2008

Average

exercise

price in Number

HK$ per
of option

option share shares

11.92 20152723

10.70 3874813

12.84 272500

12.20 16005410

At January

Exercised

Lapsed

At 31 December

For the year ended

31 December 2007

Average

exercise

price in Number

HK$ per of option

option share shares

11.69 27141532

0.97 6796309
13.04 192500

1192 20152723

There was no option granted during the year ended December 2008

No options have been exercised subsequent to 31 December 2008 and up

to the approval date of the financial statements Options on 50000 shares

and 60000 shares with exercise price of HK$1 .60 and HK$ 14.60
per

share respectively have lapsed subsequent to 31 December 2008 and up

to the approval date of the financial statements
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19.Other reserves

Convertible

Option bonds

us$000 us$ooo

Capital

redemption

us$000

Exchange

fluctuation

us$000

Capital Other

us$000 us$OOO

Note

Contributed

surplus

us$000

Note

Total

us$000

Group
Balance at January 2007

Currency translation differences

Transfer to income statement on disposal

of partial interests in subsidiaries

Issue of shares upon conversion of

convertible bonds

Granting of share options

Exercise of share options

transfer to share premium

7020

2484

2044

2623

2623

10666 75266

226371

3088

601490 1368 389741 1088174

226371

3088

2623
2484

2044
Balance at December 2007

and January 2008 7460 10666 298549 601490 1368 389741 1309274

Currency translation differences

Exercise of share options

transfer to share premium

Granting of share options

1069
454

26262 26262

IO69
454

Balance at 31 December 2008 6845 10666 324811 601490 1368 389741 1334921

Company

Balance at January 2007

Granting of share options

Exercise of share options

transfer to share premium

7020

2484

2044

10666 1524231 15419 17

2484

2044
Balance at December 2007

and January 2008 7460 10666 1524231 1542357

Exercise of share options

transferto share premium

Granting of share options

1069
454

1069
454

Balance at 31 December 2008 6845 10666 1524231 1541742

Notes to the Consol dated Financial Statements 05



NoTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 2008

19.Other reserves continued

subsidiary is required by local law to appropriate certain percentage

of its annual net profits as other reserve until the reserve reaches 10

percent of its registered share capital This reserve is not available for

dividend distribution

bThe contributed surplus of the Company arises when the Company

issues shares in exchange for the share of companies being acquired

and represents the difference between the nominal value of the

Companys share issued and the value of net assets of the companies

acquired Under the Companies Act 98 of Bermuda as amended

the contributed surplus is distributable to the shareholders At the

Group level the contributed surplus is reclassified into its components

of reserves of the underlying subsidiaries whenever appropriate

As at December 2008 the Groups distributable reserves comprised

2008

us$000

66569

1524231

1590800

2007

US$000

100427

152423

1624658

Overdrafts unsecured Note
Bank loans secured Note 36
Bank loans unsecured

2008 2007

us$000 Us$ooo

2008

Us$000

39013

617536

1210714

1867263

61023

928286

2007

US$000

91928

18118

1119822

1229868

15999

1245867

Norec

The distributable retained earnings of subsidiaries and associates are the

corresponding share of retained earnings which are distributable as shown in the

statutory financial statements of those companies after deducting appropriate

withholding tax

ii There are differences between the retained earnings included in the Group

financial statements of certain subsidiaries and associates and those in their

statutory financial statements as the former have been adjusted for the purpose

of complying with the Groups accounting policies

20.Bank loans and overdrafts

Group

The Company
Distributable retained earnings

Contributed sur2lus ______

624

51702

875960

928286

34

52774

1193059

1245867

The maturity of bank loans and overdrafts is as follows

Subsidiaries Notes and

Distributable retained

ii

earnings 863586 899692

Associates Notes and ii
Distributable retained earnings 147905 207267

Within
year

Between and
years

Between and
years

Wholly repayable within
years

Over years
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20.Bank loans and overdrafts continued

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows

31 Dec iber 2008 31 December2007

HK$ 0MB MYR US$ jPY Pea roe Baht HK$ MB 40$ 0$ JPY Peso

Bank on rdraft OOo 820 675

Bank borrowing 092 627 405 251 20 6.940 355 369% 35% 9% 551 2.36% .2% 4.93%

The carrying amounts of the bank loans and overdrafts approximate their

fair value and are denominated in the following currencies

Us$000 US$000

Hong Kong dollars 988607 739724

Renminbi 165618 48209

Malaysian Ringgit 44808 44069

Singapore dollars 2761

United States dollars 12460 39 460

Japanese Yen 44321 446

Philippines Pesos 59321 19198

Euros 12739

Thai Baht 412

1928286 1245867

he Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities

2008

us$000

2007

US$000

Floating rate

expiring within one year 175747 170020

expiring beyond one year 820393 147772

Fixed rate

expiring beyond one year

996140

45600

1363392

As at December 2008 an undrawn floating rate borrowing facility of

Thai Baht 800 million December 2007 Thai Baht 800 million expiring

beyond one year is secured by freehold land with net book value of

US$7064000 December 2007 US$7337000

21 .Derivative financial instruments

Group and Company

2008 2007

Us$000 US$OOO

Non Current Liabilities

Interest-rate swaps contracts

non hedging 65916 20708

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding HIBOR and LIBOR

interest rate swap contracts at December 2008 were HK$4760000000

and US$ 100000000 respectively December 2007 HK$4760000000

and US$ 00000000 respectively

At December 2008 the fixed interest rates
vary

from 4.28% to 4.70%

per annum 31 December 2007 4.28c to 4.70% per annum
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 2008

22.Non-controlling interests and balances with non-controlling

shareholders

Non-controlling interests

Share of equity

Equity loans

LIBOR pIus 2.5% per annum and wholly

repayable on 30 June 2015 772 693

Interest free and not payable within

months 26240

27012

19910

20603

Equity loans are unsecured with no fixed repayment terms and bearing interest

LIBOR per annum

LIBOR plus 1% per annum

Interest free

Due to non controlling shareholders current portion are unsecured and with

the following terms

2008 2007

uS$000 uS$ooo

Interest free with no fixed repayment

6355 0355terms

2008

uS$000

2007

uS$000

Notes

Due to non-controlling shareholders non-current portion are unsecured and

with the following terms

2008 2007

us$000 uS$000

255348

42709

298057

260298

43160

303458

at

The effective interest rate of the interest free portion of the amounts due to

non-controlling shareholders at the balance sheet date is 4.1% 2007 4.4% per

annum

2008

us$000

0799

6155

25755

42709

2007

uS$000

11269

5824

26067

43160
The fair value of the amounts due to non controlling shareholders both

current and non-current portion under Notes and above are not

materially different from their carrying values
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23.Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are calculated in full on temporary

differences bnder the liability method using principal taxation rate of

6.5% 2007 17.5% for subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong Deferred

income tax assets and liabilities of overseas subsidiaries are calculated at

the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the respective

subsidiaries operate

The movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows

Group

At January 210994 211386

Exchange differences 272 82

Disposal of partial interest in subsidiary 68

Acquisition of subsidiary 9278

Deferred taxation credit/charged to

income statement Note 3/ 1073 1594

At 31 December 218927 /0994

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for tax loss carry forwards to

the extent that realization of the related tax benefit through the future

taxable profits is probable As at December 2008 the Group has the

following unrecognized tax losses to carry forward against future taxable

income

2007

us$000

With no expity date 12644 3553

Lapsed within the next five years 1189

43833

27089

306422008

us$000

2007

us$000

Group
2008

us$000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23.Deferred income tax continued

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction during

For the year ended December 2008

the year is as follows

Accelerated tax

depreciation

2008

us$000

188636

8523
9278

4168

185223

Properties valuation

su rpl s/deficit

2008 2007

us$000 us$ooo

4355 7494

277 2509

6168
4103 520

8735 4355

Dividend

withholding tax

2008 2007

us$000 us$Ooo

25919 19600

5581 5981

378 338

31122 25919

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when

the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority

Deferred income tax liabilities

At January

Charged/credited to income statement

Acquisition/disposal of subsidiaries

Exchange differences

At December

2007

us$000

187918

3683

4401

88636

Total

2008

us$000

218910

2665
9278

443

225080

2007

us$000

215012

4807

6168
5259

218910

Deferred income tax assets Provision

2008

us$000

of assets

2007

us$oOo

Tax

2008

us$ooo

losses

2007

u5$oOO

Others

2008

us$ooO

2007

us$OOO

Total

2008

us$ooo

2007

us$ooo

At January 1166 599 1062 128 5688 2899 7916 3626
Charged/credited to income statement 762 92 384 866 1970 2439 1592 321

Exchange differences 91 659 65 68 197 350 171 1077

At 31 December 2019 66 613 1062 3521 5688 6153 7916
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23.Deferred income tax continued 25.Expenses by nature

Deferred income tax assets 11 17 2294
Deferred income tax liabilities 220044

218927

13288

10994

Trade payables

Construction cost payable

accrued expenses

and

54219

350161

64374

303

404380 377405

At 31 December 2008 the ageing analysis of the trade payables is as

follows

2008

uS$000

2007

US$ooo

months 49480 60687

months 2092 1526

Over months 2647

54219 64374

Depreciation of property plant and

equipment net of amount capitalized

of US$471000 2007 US$1 85000
Note

Amortization of leasehold land

and land use rights Note
Amortization of trademark and website

development Note /0

Employee benefit expenses Note 27
Cost of inventories sold or consumed

in operation

Loss on disposal of property plant and

equipment and partial replacement of

investment properties

Discarding of property plant and

equipment due to renovation of hotels

Operating lease expenses

Pre-opening expenses

Expenses on share options granted

Auditors remuneration

The following amounts which are expected only to be substantially

recovered/settled after more than twelve months from the balance sheet

date determined after appropriate offsetting are shown in the consolidated

balance sheet

2008 2007

us$000 US$000

Expenses included in cost of goods sold marketing costs administrative

expenses and other operating expenses are analyzed as follows

2008 2007

US$OOO US$000

24.Accounts payable and accruals

2008 2007

Us$000 US$OOO

166827

11215

1225

358033

171597

2453

9950

19005

35605

454

1068

134852

8326

942

320379

146299

2407

630

/6644

22101

2484

941
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Fair value lossesgains on investment

properties Note
Reversal of impairment

impairment losses on

available for-sale financial assets

Net unrealized lossesgains on financial

assets held for trading

Fair value losses on derivative financial

instruments interest-rate swap

contracts

Gains on disposal of partial interests

in subsidiaries

Interest income

Dividend income

Tax refund on reinvestment of dividend

from subsidiary and an associate

Waiver of debt by non-controlling

shareholder

Fair value gains on loans from

non controlling shareholders

Penalty on relinquishment of rights to

acquire land use rights of project sites

Others

Wages and salaries including unutilized

annual leave

Pension costs

Other welfare

Pension Scheme Arrangement

The Group operates and participates in number of pension and

retirement schemes of both the defined contribution and defined benefit

types Principal schemes are as follows

The defined contribution schemes including the Mandatory Provident Fund

CMPF in Hong Kong participated by the Group other than those in

the PRC Singapore and Malaysia require employers to contribute 5% to

10% of the employees basic salaries and some of these schemes permit

employees contributions on discretionary basis The MPF requires both

the employers and employees in Hong Kong to contribute 5% of their

monthly gross earnings with ceiling of HK$1000 equivalent to US$ 29

per month Under these schemes with the exception of MPF the unvested

benefits of employees terminating employment can be utilized by employers

to reduce their future levels of contributions The assets of these schemes

are held separately from those of the Group in independently administered

funds The amounts of unvested benefits so utilized by employers during

the
year

and available for the future reduction of employers contributions

as at December 2008 were not material

26.Other Iosses/gains net

2008

US$000

2007

US$000

27.Employee benefit expenses

excluding directors emoluments

2008

US$000

2007

US$000

266653

20832

70548

358033

952

33403

61095

7705

922

1309

614
3199

248953

17687

53739

320379

59139

14

21085

10424

9101

10339

908

3206

4674

10715

4997

1372682915
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27.Employee benefit expenses continued Total pension cost including charges for directors charged to the income

Pension Scheme Arrangement continued statement for the year under all pension schemes was US$21298000

The Groups subsidiaries in the PRC Singapore and Malaysia participate in 2007 US$17802000

defined contribution schemes managed by the respective local governments

in these countries Contributions are made based on percentage ranging

from 2% to 22.5% of the employees salaries and bonuses as applicable

and were charged to the income statement account as incurred The

maximum contributions by the subsidiaries for each employee for the

Groups subsidiaries in Singapore are fixed by the Singapore government at

S$653 equivalent to US$441 per
month for monthly salaries and bonus

payment The employees of the Groups subsidiaries in Singapore and

Malaysia are also required to contribute 20% and 12% respectively of their

gross
salaries and bonus if applicable to such fund

The three hotels in the Philippines have adopted funded non-contributory

defined benefit pension plan covering all their regular employees The

benefits are based on years of service and the employees final covered

compensation The plan requires periodic contributions by the participating

subsidiaries as determined by periodic actuarial reviews An actuarial

valuation was performed by Orlando Manalang qualified actuary at

December 2008 using the Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method

The principal assumptions used in the actuarial valuation are that scheme

assets will earn yield of 6% per annum and salary will increase by 5%
per

annum Based on this report Makati Shangri-La Hotel Resort Inc Edsa

Shangri La Hotel Resort Inc and Mactan Shangri La Hotel Resort

Inc have unrecognized actuarial gains of Peso 62800000 equivalent to

US$ 1309000 Peso 56787000 equivalent to US$1 84000 and Peso

33600000 equivalent to US$70 1000 respectively
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2008

28.Directors and senior managements emoluments

The remuneration received from the Group by every
Director of the Company for the year ended December 2008 is set out below

Employers Compensation

contribution for loss of

Discretionary Inducement Other to pension office as

Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses fees benefits6 schemes director Total

uS$000 uS$OOO uS$OOO uS$OOO uS$OOO uS$OOO uS$OOO uS$OOO

Mr KUOK Khoon Ean 406 1290 1719

Mr KUOK Khoon Loong Edward 418 1290 250 16 1974

Mr LUI Man Shing 527 774 IS 14 1335

MrGiovanniANGELlNI 109 446 774 96 72 1497

Mr Madhu Rama Chandra RAO2 30 56

Mr NG Si Fong Alan 90 68 54 218

Madam KUOK Oon Kwong 33 209 355 599

Mr HO Kian Guan 67 67

MrLEEYongSun3 10 10

Mr Roberto ONGPIN 26 26

Mr Alexander Reid HAMILTON 45 45

Mr WONG Kai Man BBS 45 45

Mr Timothy David DATTELS 26 26

Mr Michael Wing-Nm CHIU 26 26

Mr HO Kian Hock4
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28.Directors and senior managements emoluments continued

The remuneration received from the Group by every Director of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2007 is set out below

Employers Compensation

contribution for loss of

Discretionary Inducement Other to pension office as

Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses fees benefits6 schemes director Total

US$000 US$OOO US$OOO US$OOO US$OOO US$OOO US$OOO US$OOO

Mr KUOK Khoon Loong Edward 201 164 3226 239 3838

Mr Man Shing
2581 2586

Mr Giovanni ANGELINI 146 427 3226 104 89 3992

Mr NG Si Fong AIan31 217 250 126 601

Madam KUOK Con Kwong 25 177 291 10 503

Mr HO Kian Guan 59 59

MrLEEYongSun 19 19

Mr Roberto ONGPIN 19
19

Mr Alexander Reid HAMILTON 39
39

Mr WONG Kai Man BBS JR
39

39

Mr Timothy David DATTELS 19
19

Mr Michael Wing Nm CHIU II
II

Mr HO Kian Hock4

MrYE Longfei 110 115

Note

Mr KUOK Khoon Ean was appointed as Director on April
2008

Mr Madhu Rama Chandra RAO was appointed as Director on 18 December 2008

Mr NC Si Fong Alan and Mr LEE Yong Sun retired on 23 May 2008

Mr Ho Kian Hock is Alternate Director to Mr Ho Kian uan

Mr YE Longfei resigned as Director on 27 March 2007

Other benefits include housing holiday warrant medical expenses and insurance premium Pursuant to the Executive Option Scheme and the New Option Scheme of the Company Note 18 the

Company granted to the Directors options to subscribe for shares in the Company subject to terms and conditions stipulated therein The fair values of option shares granted to the Directors in

2005 and 2006 were included in the total expenses on share options granted Note 25
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28.Directors and senior managements emoluments continued
Movement of option shares granted to the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2008 are as follows

Under the New Option Scheme

For the year ended 31 December 2008

500000

500000

100000

100000

16june2008 15june2016

10.75 28
April

2006 27
April 2015

1075 28
April

2007 27
April 2015

l6June2007 l5June2Ol6

16June2008 15June2016

28 April 2007 27 April 2015

l6june2007 15june2016

l6june200S 15june2016

Closing

Date of
grant Tranche

Mr KUOK Khoon

Loong Edward

l6June 2006 II 14.00 00000

price per weighted

share on the No of No of Transfer Transfer No of No of
average closing

business day option
shares

option
shares from other to other option shares No of

option
shares

price per
share

immediately held as at
granted category category

exercised
option

shares held as at Exercise price on exercise

before date
January during during during during lapsed during

31 December
per option

date over

of
grant

2008 the
year the

year
the

year
the

year
the

year 2008 share exercise
price

HK$ HK$ HK$

Excess of

Mr LUI Man Shing 16 june 2006 II 14.00 60000

100000 14.60

Exercisable Period

Mr Giovanni 28
April

2005

ANGELINI 28
April

2005

l6june
2006

l6june 2006

Mr Madhu Rama 28 April 2005

Chandra RAO 16 June 2006

l6june 2006

Mr NG Si Fong 29 May 2002

Alan 29 May 2002

28
April

2005

28
April

2005

june 2006

16
june

2006

l6June2008 l5June2Ol6

60000 14.60

11.75

II 11.75

14.00

II 14.00

II 11.75

14.00

II 14.00

6.80

II 6.80

11.75

II 11.75

14.00

II 14.00

500000

500000

100000

100000

60000

60000

150000

150000

50000

50000

250000

50000

50000

250000

50000

50000

11.60

11.60

14.60

4.60

11.60

1460

14.60

6.81

6.81

11.60

11.60

14.60

14.60

60000

60000

150000

150000

50000

50000

29May2003 28May20l2

29May2004 28May20l2

28
April

2006 27
April

2015

28
April

2007 27
April 2015

16June2007 15june2016

l6June2008 l5June2Ol6
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28.Directors and senior managements emoluments continued

Mr HO Kian Guan 16
June

2006

Mr Alexander Reid

HAMILTON

II 14.00 30000 30000 14.60 5.00 l6June
2008

l5june
2016

16june2007 l5June2Ol6

l6June2008 lSJune2OI6

28
April

2006 27
April

2015

28
April

2007 27
April

2015

l6June2007 lSJune2Ol6

hJune2008 l5June0l6

Under the New Option Scheme continued

Closing

price per

share on the

business
day

immediately

before date

Date of grant
Tranche of

grant

HK$

No of

option
shares

held as at

January

2008

No of

option
shares

granted

during

Madam KUOK Oon

Kwong

Transfer

from other

category

during

Transfer

to other

category

during

No of

option
shares

exercised

during

28 April 2005

28 April 2005

16 June 2006

16 June 2006

No of

option
shares

lapsed during

11.75

II 11.75

14.00

Il 14.00

the
year

the
year

the
year

the
year

the
year

Excess of

weighted

No of
average closing

option
shares price per

share

held as at Exercise
price

on exercise

31 December
per option

date over

2008 share exercise
price

HK$ HK$

150000

50000

60000

60000

Mr LEE Yong Sun 16
June

2006 II 14.00 30000

Exercisable Period

Mr Roberto 28
April

2005

ONGPIN 28 April
2005

l6june 2006

16 June 2006

11.60

11.60

4.60

4.60

11.75

Il 11.75

4.00

II 4.00

30000

28 April 2006 27 April 2015

28
April

2007 27 April 2015

l6June2007 l5June2Ol6

16june2008 lSJune2Ol6

75000

75000

30000

30000

l6June 2006 4.00 30000

l6June 2006 II 14.00 30000

Mr
Timothy

David 28 April 2005

DAUELS 28
April

2005

l6June 2006

16 June 2006

150000

150000

60000

60000

75000

75000

30000

30000

30000

30000

75000

75000

30000

30000

11.75 75000

II 11.75 75000

14.00 30000

II 14.00 30000

l6June2008 lSJune2Ol6

28 April 2006 27 April
2015

28 April 2007 27 April 2015

l6June2007 lSJune2Ol6

l6June2008 lSJune2Ol6

14.60

1.60

11.60

14.60

14.60

14.60

14.60

11.60

11.60

4.60

4.60
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28.Directors and senior managements emoluments continued

Movement of option shares granted to the Directors for the year ended December 2007 are as follows

Under the Executive Option Scheme

For the year ended 31 December 2008

ii Under the New Option Scheme

Mr LUI Man
Shing

28
April 2005

16 june 2006

16 June 2006

II 11.75 150000

14.00 60000

II 4.00 60000

8.30 28
April

2007 27 Apnl 2015

5.30 16June2007 ISjune2Ol6

l6June2008 lSjune2Ol6

Closing price Excess of

per share
weighted

on the No of No of No of No of No of
average closing

business day option shares option shares option shares
option shares option shares

price per share

immediately held as at granted lapsed exercised held as at Exercise on exercise

before date January during during during 31 December
price per date over

Date of
grant

Tranche of
grant

HK$

2007 the
year

the year the year 2007 option share

HK$

exercise
price

HK$

Exercisable Period

Closing price

per share

on the

business day

immediately

before date

of
grant

HK$

Mr YE
Longfei

15
january

2001 II 780 79212 79212 8.18 10.22 15 january 2003 14
january

2011

No of No of No of No of No of

option shares option shares
option shares option shares option shares

held as at granted lapsed exercised held as at

January during during during
31 December

2007 the year the year the
year

2007 Exercisable PeriodDate of
grant

Tranche

Mr KUOK Khoon

Loong Edward

28
April

2005

28
April

2005

l6june 2006

l6june 2006

1175

II 11.75

14.00

II 14.00

Excess of

weighted

average closing

price per
share

on exercise

date over

exercise
price

HK$

20000

250000

100000

100000

Exercise

price per

option share

HK$

20000

250000

100000

100000

150000

60000

60000

880

8.80

5.80

11.60

11.60

14.60

14.60

11.60

14.60

1460

28 Apr 12006 27
April

2015

28
AprIl

2007 27
April

2015

l6june2007 15June2016

l6june2008 15June2016
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28.Directors and senior managements emoluments continued

ii Under the New Option Scheme continued

Mr NG Si Fong 29 May 2002

Alan 29 May 2002

28 April 2005

28 April 2005

June 2006

june LUUb

6.80

II 6.80

11.75

II
1175

14.00

ii
14.00

60000

60000

150000

150000

50000

3UUUU

60000

60000

150000

150000

50000

CO 500
JJJsJ

6.81

6.81

11.60

11.60

14.60

ISTV

29May2003 28May20l2

29May2004 28May20l2

28
April

2006 27
April

2015

28 April
2007 27

April
2015

16June2007 15june2016

SCIOQ It iS fl-ii

JUl II ZLJVL ./ JUl II LU IV

Madam KUOK 28 April 2005

Con Kwong 28
April

2005

l6june 2006

l6june 2006

11.75

II 11.75

14.00

II 14.00

150000

150000

60000

60000

11.60

11.60

14.60

14.60

28 April 2006 27 April
2015

28
April

2007 27 April
2015

16June2007 15june2016

16june2008 15June2016

75000

75000

30000

11.60

11.60

4.60

30000 14.60

8.18 28
April

2006 27 April 2015

8.18 28
April

2007 27April20 IS

6.35 l6june2007 15June2016

16June2008 l5June2Ol6

Date of
grant

Tranche

Closing price
Excess of

per
share weighted

on the No of No of No of No of No of
average closing

business day option shares option shares option shares option shares option shares
price per

share

immediately held as at granted lapsed exercised held as at on exercise

before date January during during during 31 December date over

of
grant

2007 the year the
year

the year
2007 exercise

price

HK$ HK$

Exercise

price per

option share

HK$

Mr Giovanni 28
April

2005 11.75 500000 500000 11.60 28
April

2006 27 April
2015

ANGELINI 28
April

2005 II 11.75 500000 500000 11.60 28
April

2007 27 April
2015

l6june2006 14.00 100000 100000 14.60 l6June2007 lSJune2Ol6

16
June

2006 II 14.00 100000 100000 14.60 16
June

2008 15 June 2016

Exercisable Period

Mr HO Kian Guan 28
April

2005 11.75 75000

28
April

2005 II 11.75 75000

l6June 2006 14.00 30000

16
June

2006 II 14.00 30000

150000

50000

60000

60000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28.Directors and senior managements emoluments continued

ii Under the New Option Scheme continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Mr Roberto 18
April

2005

ONGRIN 28
April

2005

l6June 2006

16
June

2006

Mr Timothy David 28
April

2005

DAUELS 28
April

2005

l6June 2006

16
June

2006

250000

100000

100000

75000 11.60

75000 11.60

30000 1460

30000 14.60

250000 11.60

11.60

14.60

4.60

28 April 2006 27
April

2015

28
April

2007 27
April

2015

l6June2007 l5June2Ol6

6June2008 l5June2Ol6

28 April 2006 27
April

2015

28 April 2007 27
April

2015

l6June2007 l5June2Ol6

l6June2008 l5June2Ol6

680 28
April

2006 27
April

2015

28
April

2007 27
April

2015

l6June2007 lSJunelOl6

16June2008 l5June2Ol6

option shares

held as at

January

2007

No of

option shares

granted

during

the
year

Closing price Excess of

per
share

weighted

on the
average closing

business
day price per

share

immediately Exercise on exercise

before date
price per

date over

Date of
grant

Tranche of grant

HK$

option share

HK$

exercise
price

HK$

Mr LEE Yong Sun 28
April

2005

16
June

2006

l6june 2006

Transfer

to other

category

during

the
year

No of

option
shares

lapsed

during

the
year

No of

option
shares

exercised

during

the year

No of option

shares held as

at 31 December

2007

Mr Aleadnder Reid

HAMILTON

Exercisable Period

28
April 2005

28 April 2005

June 2006

l6June 2006

75000

30000

75000

75000

5.92 28
April 2007 27 April 2015

2.92 l6JunelOO7 lSjunelOl6

l6June2008 lSjunelOl6

II 11.75

14.00

II 1400

11.75

II 11.75

4.00

II 14.00

1175

II 11.75

14.00

II 14.00

1175

II 11.75

14.00

II 1400

11.75

II 11.75

14.00

II 14.00

75000

30000

30000

75000

75000

30000

30000

75000

75000

30000

30000

75000

75000

30000

30000

250000

250000

100000

100000

30000

75000

75000

30000

30000

30000

30000

11.60

4.60

14.60

11.60

11.60

14.60

14.60

.60

11.60

14.60

14.60

Mr YE
Longlei

28
April

2005

28
April 2005

16
June 2006

June 2006

7.ot 28
April 2006 27 April 2015

768 28 April 2007 27 April 2015

l6June2007 lSJune2Ol6

l6June 2008 lSJune 2016
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28.Directors and senior managements emoluments continued

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the year are all directors

of the Company 2007 three taking into account the emolument of

US$1355000 paid to one of the directors before his appointment of

directorship during the year The emoluments payable to the remaining two

individuals in 2007 are as follows

2007

US$000

Basic salaries housing allowances ther allowances and

benefits in kind 1544

Employers contribution to pension schemes 466

Discretionary bonuses 793

Inducement fee to join the Group 369

Compensation for loss of office

172

Pursuant to the Executive Option Scheme and the New Option Scheme

of the Company Note 18 the Company granted to four directors 2007

three directors and an individual options to subscribe for shares in the

Company subject to terms and conditions stipulated therein The fair

values of option shares granted to these persons were included in the total

expense on share options granted in both 2007 and 2008 Note 25

Interest expense

bank loans and overdrafts 52 42 77440
other loans interest 1831 1456
convertible bonds wholly repayable

within five years 401

53973 79297
Less amount capitalized 16198 27360

37775 1937
Net foreign exchange transaction gains 50626 32809

12851 19128

The effective capitalization rate used to determine the amount of

borrowing costs eligible for capitalization is 3.4% per annum 2007 5.4%

The emoluments fell within the following bands

Number of

individuals

2007

Emolument bands

HK$14000001 HK$14500000

HK$10000001 HK$10500000

29.Finance gain/costs
2008 2007

US$OOO US$000

Notes to the Consokdated Fi iaecial Staterrents 12



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007

us$000 US$000

Current income tax

Hong Kong profits tax 3955 3583
Overseas taxation 56534 637 15

Deferred income tax Note 23 1073

69416

1594

78892

Share of associates taxation for the
year

ended December 2008 of

US$3 1414000 2007 US$9654000 is included in the income statement

as share of profits of associates

The taxation on the Groups profit before taxation differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of the home

country of the Company as follows

Profit before income tax

Calculated at taxation rate of 6.5%

2007 7.5o
Effect of different taxaticn rates of

subsidiaries
operating in

other countries

Income not subject to taxation

Expenses not deductible for taxation

purposes

Tax effect on unrecognized tax losses

Utilization of previously unrecognized

tax losses

Effect on opening net deferred taxation

resulting from decrease in tax rate

Over/under provision in prior year

Withholding tax

Recognition of deferred tax assets

by subsidiaries

Tax incentive

Others

Taxation charge 69416 78892

Hong Kong profits tax is provided at rate of 6.5% 2007 17.3% on

the estimated assessable profit of group companies operating in Hong

Kong

30.Share of profit of associates

Share of profit of associates in 2008 included US$ 100 6000 2007

US$ 17543000 share of the fair value gains of investment properties after

provision for deferred tax liabilities in the income statement and the share

of losses of US$8873000 2007 Nil on write off of the net book value of

building upon demolition for the development of an extension project of

an associate and the relevant taxes arising from building swap transaction

within group companies of the associate

Share of associates taxation for 2007 included reversal of
provision

for

deferred tax liabilities of US$30268000 due to reduction of income tax

rate in Mainland China from 33% to 25% effective January 2008

31Income tax expense

2008

Us$000

252883

2007

US$000

453117

41726

9240

16950

39236

537

2570

300
2185
2996

147
1807

360

79295

9354

42678

27909

2733

6.594

1481

3004

1964
2884

759
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3l.Income tax expense continued

Taxation outside Hong Kong includes withholding tax paid and payable

on dividends from subsidiaries and tax provided at the prevailing rates

on the estimated assessable profits of group companies operating

outside Hong Kong

32.Profit attributable to equity holders and retained earnings of

the Company
The profit attributable to equity holders is dealt with in the financial

statements of the Company to the extent of US$62909000 2007

US$ 07782000

Movement of retained earnings of the Company

Balance at January

Profit for the year

2007/2006 final dividend paid

2008/2007 interim dividend paid

Note 34

00427

62909

44644

52123

81684

07782

33347

55692

Balance at 31 December 66569 00427

Representing

2008/2007 final dividend proposed

Note 34
Retained earnings

37230

29339

44631

55796

Balance at 31 December 66569 00427

33.Earnings per share

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable

to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of

ordinary shares in issue during the year

2008 2007

Profit attributable to equity holders of

the Company US$000 165940 340863

Weighted average
number of ordinary

shares in issue thousands 2878485 2671209

Basic earnings per share

US cents per share 5.76 2.76

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average

number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive

potential ordinary shares For the share options calculation is done to

determine the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value

determined as the
average

annual market share price of the Companys

shares based on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached

to outstanding share options The number of shares calculated as above is

increased by the number of shares that would have been issued assuming

the exercise of the share options

2008

us$000

2007

US$000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2008

33.Earnings per share continued

Diluted continued

2008 2007

Profit attributable to equity holders of

the Company US$000 65940 340863

Weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue thousands

Adjustments for share options

thousands

2878485

5026

2671209

10360

Weighted average number of ordinary

shares for diluted earnings per
share

thousands 28835 268 1569

Diluted earnings per share

US cents per share 5.75 12.71

2008

us$000

2007

us$000

2008

us$000

2007

us$000

34.Dividends

At meeting held on 17 March 2009 the Board proposed final dividend

of HKI cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2008

this proposed dividend is not reflected as dividend payable in these

financial statements but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained

earnings for the year ending December 2009

The proposed final dividend for 2008 on the 0867055 ordinary shares

in the Company held by subsidiary of the Company with the amount

of US$ 140000 is eliminated on consolidation and is excluded from the

proposed final dividend attributable to the Companys equity holders

recognized in the consolidated financial statements

Group Company

Interim dividend paid of

HKI4 cents

2007 HK IS cents

per ordinary share 52123 55692 52123 55692

Proposed final dividend of

HKI0 cents

2007 HKI2 cents

per ordinary share 37090

89213

44631

100323

37230

89.353

44631

100323
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35.Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement

Profit before income tax

Share of results of associates

Fair value Iosses/gains on

investment properties

Depreciation

Amortization of leasehold land

and land use rights trademark and

website development

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts

and convertible bonds

Interest income

Dividend income

Loss on disposal of fixed assets and

discarding of fixed assets due to

properties renovations and

impairment loss

Net unrealized losses/gains on

financial assets held for trading

Reversal of impairment/impairment

losses on available for sale

financial assets

Expenses on share options granted

Fair value losses on derivative financial

instruments interest rate swap

contracts

Gains on disposal of partial interests

in subsididries

Fair value gains on loans from

non controlling shareholders

Net foreign exchange

transaction gains

Cash generated from operations

2008

uS$000

252883

76867

952

66827

2007

US$000

433117

98900

59139
34852

2008 2007

us$000 uS$000

12440 9268

Operating profit before working

capital changes

Increase in inventories

Increase in accounts receivable

440789

3590
422 37

196

repayments and deposits

Increase in amounts due from

2389 425

associates

Increase in accounts payable and

accruals

An interest free loan granted to

an officer by subsidiary

Net cash generated from operations

299

25563

460074

1552

103347

13

47454237775

7705
922

51937

10339
908

12403 3037

33403 21085

14 14

454 2484

61095 10424

9101

1309 10715

50626 32809
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2008

35.Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement continued

Acquisition of interest/additional interest in subsidiaries

On 30 May 2008 the Group acquired additional 23% of the share

capital and shareholders loan of Shangri-La Hotels Shenzhen

Limited Shangri-La Shenzhen which owns 90% interest in

Shangri-La Hotel Shenzhen from non-controlling shareholder of

Shangri La Shenzhen at cash consideration of RMB 35115000

approximately US$ 9.6 million Immediately prior to the

acquisition Shangri La Shenzhen was 57% owned subsidiary of the

Group Following completion of the acquisition Shangri Li Shenzlien

has become 80% owned subsidiary of the Group Details of net

assets and loan acquired are as follows

US$000

Purchase consideration 19624

Less effective interest of carrying amount of

net assets acquired 09

principal amount of shareholders loan in

Shangri La Shenzhen acquired 123

Difference between the amount by which the

non controlling interests are adjusted and the

fair value of the consideration paid which

has been recognized directly in equity 11284

The carrying amount of consolidated assets and liabilities of Shangri-La

Shenzhen at the date of acquisition are as follows

Fixed assets 424
Land use rights 2937
Current assets 5687
Current liabilities 10759
Loans advanced from shareholders 5350
Non controlling interests 4022
Net assets 30909

Share of net assets acquired 109

ii In July 2008 the Group completed the acquisition of the entire

equity interest of local company in Paris which owns the

building adjacent to the site of the Shangri La Hotel Paris at net

consideration of Euro 20.9 million approximately US$3 million

The building will be refurbished as an extension of the hotel

currently under development

Purchase consideration

Less fair value of net assets acquired
__________

Goodwill on acquisition

US$000

30850

20907

9943
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35.Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement continued

Acquisition of interest/additional interest in subsidiaries continued

ii continued

The fair value of assets and liabilities of the local company at the

date of acquisition are as follows

US$000

Fixed assets 308

Cash and cash equivalents
58

Other current assets 205

Current liabilities 141
Deferred tax liabilities 9278

Net assets acquired 20907

36.Financial guarantees contingencies and other charges

Financial guarantees

As at 31 December 2008 financial guarantees of the Company and the

Group were as follows

The Company executed proportionate guarantees in favour of

banks for securing banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries

and associates The utilized amount of such facilities covered by

the Companys guarantees and which also represented the financial

exposure of the Company at the balance sheet date amounts to

US$ 1537809000 2007 US$ 1025367000 for the subsidiaries and

US$23924000 2007 US$26430000 for associates

ii The Company executed guarantees
in favour of banks for securing

certain banking facilities granted to four non-wholly owned

subsidiaries while the non-controlling shareholders provided

proportionate counter guarantee to the Company under the

joint venture agreements The utilized amount of such facilities

covered by the Companys guarantee after setting off the amount

of counter guarantee from the non controlling shareholders and

which also represented the net financial exposure of the Company

at the balance sheet date amounts to US$ 3420000 2007

US$100260000 for two subsidiaries

iiiThe Company executed guarantees in favour of banks for securing

certain banking facilities granted to an associate while the major

shareholder of the associate provided counter indemnity to the

Company under the joint venture agreement The utilized amount of

such facilities covered by the Companys guarantees after setting off

the amount of counter indemnity from the major shareholder and

which also represented the net financial exposure of the Company

and the Group at the balance sheet date amounts to US$3792000

2007 US$29517000

ivThe Group executed proportionate guarantees in favour of banks

for securing banking facilities granted to certain associates The

Group also executed counter guarantee
in favour of the major

shareholder of an associate which had provided full guarantee

in favour of bank for securing banking facilities granted to the

associate The utilized amount of such facilities covered by the

Groups guarantees
fcr these associates amounts to US$42.41 6000

2007 US$46332000

Guarantees are stated at their respective contracted amounts The

Board is of the opinion that it is not probable that such guarantees will

be called upon

Notes to the Consoidated FinancaI Statements 27



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2008

36.Financial guarantees contingencies and other charges

continued

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2008 contingent liabilities of the Group were as

follows

The Group executed performance guarantee in favour of the

owner of hotel in Sydney for the financial performance of the hotel

under management contract The maximum cumulative amount

of
liability

under such guarantee is A$2425000 equivalent to

US$1678000 2007 A$4537000 equivalent to US$4080000

ii The Group executed performance guarantee in favour of the

Government of the Republic of Maldives for the development of

resort in Nialdives in accordance with an agreed work plan The

guarantee is valid until 31 May 2009 and will be discharged no

later than 30 days following the date of completion of the resort in

accordance with the agreement The maximum cumulative amount of

liability
under such guarantee is US$4375000 2007 US$4375000

iiiThe Group executed guaranteec for securing standby documentary

credit granted by banks in favour of certain building contractors

relating to the execution of construction works for hotel buildings

with the amount of US$39845000 2007 US$20000000 in favour

of local government authority in Mainland China for the acquisition

of the land use rights of site The Group also executed guarantees

for securing standby documentary credit granted by bank in favour

of an associate of up to US$ 6500000 2007 US$22000000 as

capital commitment to the development project These facilities are

uridrawti dS at December 2008

Other charges

As at December 2008 bank borrowings of subsidiary of

US$5 1702000 2007 US$52774000 are secured by the rights and

benefits of the insurance policies on the subsidiarys hotel building

vehicles machinery and furniture fixture and equipment with net book

amount of US$5775 1000 2007 US$586 3000
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37.Commitments

The Groups capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but not yet

incurred is as follows

2008 2007

Us$000 us$OoO

Existing properties roperty plant

and equipment and investment

properties

Contrcted hut not provided for 80813 18.624

Authorized but not contracted for 73552 56424

Development projects

Contracted but not provided for

Authorized but not contracted for

The Groups commitments under operating leases to make future

aggregate minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating

leases in respect of land and buildings are as follows

Not later than one year 26348

Later than one year
and not later

than five
years

Later than five
years

At December 2008 the Group had future aggregate minimum lease

rental receivable under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of

land and buildings as follows

Not later than one year

Later than one year and not later

than five years 23343 15269

Later than five
years

4828 351 II

dThe Company had entered into HIBOR and LIBOR interest rate swap

contracts for an aggregate principal amount of HK$4760000000 and

US$100000000 2007 HK$4760000000 and US$100000000 at

fixed interest rates between 4.28% to 4.70% per annum 2007 between

4.28% to 4.70% per annum to reduce its interest rate exposure These

contracts will be maturing between March 2010 through January 2014

38.Related party transactions

Kerry Group Limited KGL which owns approximately 48.46c of the

Companys issued ordinary shares as recorded in the register required to

be kept under Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance as at

December 2008 has significant influence over the Company

2008

us$000

24938

2007

US$000

19225

431397

1573282

2159044

590652

1628916

2294616

2008

us$000

2007

US$000

11190

33589

28475

173254

02944

531011

660303
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38.Related party transactions continued

Transactions with subsidiaries of

KGL during the year other than

subsidiaries of the Company

Receipt of hotel management and

reLated services and roydfty fees

Payment of project management
service and project consultancy

service fees

Reimbursement of office expenses

and payment of administration and

related expenses

Payment of office rental

management fees and rates

Purchase of edible oil

bTransactions with associates of the

Group during the year other than

subsidiary of KGL included under

item above

Receipt of hotel management and

related services and royalty fees

Receipt for laundry services

Financial assistance provided

to subsidiaries of KGL as at

December other than

subsidiaries of the Company

Balance of loan to associates of

the Group
Balance of guarantees executed in

fdvour of banks for securing bank

loans/facilities granted to associates

of the Group

Financial assistance provided to

associates of the Group as at

December excluding item

Balance of loan to associates of

the Group
Balance of guarantees executed in

favour of banks for securing bank

loans/facilities granted to

an associate of the Group

There are no material changes to

the terms of the above transactions

during the year

Key mmigement compencatin

Fees salaries and other short term

employee benefits

Post employment benefits

The following transactions were carried out with related parties

2008 2007

Us$000 us$000

2008

Us$000

2007

us$000

2560 2330

3550 4177

2545 1662

1422 254

359

11566 9920

816 843

above

83455

23924

97383

18491

7277

121

93520

26430

74748

19903

11520

115
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39.Group structure principal subsidiaries and associates

At 31 December 2008 the Company held interests in the following principal subsidiaries

Place of Percentage holding

establishment Paid up in the voting shares

Name operation issued capital Direct Indirect Nature of business Notes

Seanoble Assets Limited The British Virgin Islands Ordinary 100 Investment holding

HK$578083745

Shangri La Asia Treasury Limited The British Virgin IsLinds Ordinary HK$780 100 Group financing

Shangri-La China Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 00 Investment holding

HK$10000000

Kerry Industrial Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 Investment holding

Non-voting deferred

HK$ 0000000

Shangri-La Hotel Kowloon Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 00 Hotel ownership and

Non-voting deferred operation

HK$10000000

Shangri-La International Hotels Hong Kong Ordinary HK$5000 80 Hotel ownership and

Pacific Place Limited Non-voting deferred operation

HK$10000000

Shenzhen Shangri-La Hotel Limited The Peoples Republic US$32000000 72 Hotel ownership and 257

of China operation

Beihai Shangri La Hotel Ltd The Peoples Republic US$16000000 100 Hotel ownership and 67

of China operation

Shanghai Pudong New Area The Peoples Republic US$47000000 00 Hotel ownership and 247

Shangri-La Hotel Co Ltd of China operation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2008

39.Group structure principal subsidiaries and associates continued
At December 2008 the Company held interests in the following principal subsidiaries continued

Place of Percentage holding

establishment Paid up in the voting shares

Name
operation issued capital Direct Indirect Nature of business Notes

Shenyang Traders Hotel Ltd The Peoples Republic US$28334000 100 Hotel ownership and 67
of China

operation

Changchun Shangri La Hotel Co Ltd The Peoples Republic RN1BI 67000000 90 Hotel ownership and 57
of China

operation and real

estate operation

Jilin Province Kerry Real Estate The Peoples Republic RMB2S000000 90 Real estate development 57
Development Ltd of China and operation

Qingdao Shangri La Hotel Co Ltd The Peoples Republic US$79000000 100 Hotel ownership and 67
of China

operation and real

estate development

and operation

Dalian Shangri-La Hotel Co Ltd The Peoples Republic US$51666670 100 Hotel ownership and 67
of China operation and real

estate development

and operation

Xian Shangri La Golden Flower Hotel The Peoples Republic US$12000000 100 Hotel ownership and 47
Co Ltd of China

operation

Harbin Shangri La Hotel Co Ltd The Peoples Republic US$20767000 100 Hotel ownership and 67
of China

operation

Wuhan Kerry Real Estate The Peoples Republic US$6000000 92 Real estate development 57
Development Co Ltd of China and operation
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Nature of business

Hotel ownership and

operation

Real estate development

Hotel ownership and

operation

Hotel ownership and

operation

Hotel ownership and

operation and real

estate development

and operation

Hotel ownership and

operation

Hotel ownership and

operation

Hotel ownership and

operation

Hotel ownership and

operation

Name

Wuhan Shangri-La Hotel Co Ltd

Fujian Kerry World Trade Centre

Co Ltd

Fuzhou Shangri La Hotel Co Ltd

Zhongshan Shangri-La Hotel Co Ltd

Shangri La Hotel Chengdu Co Ltd

39.Group structure principal subsidiaries and associates continued

At December 2008 the Company held interests in the following principal subsidiaries continued

Place of

establishment

__________________________________
operation ________________

The Peoples Republic

of China

The Peoples Republic

of China

The Peoples Republic

of China

The Peoples Republic

of China

The Peoples Republic

of China

Paid up
issued capital

US$26667000

HK$ AO000000

US$22200000

US$237 10000

US$53340000

Percentage holding

in the voting shares

Direct Indirect

92

00

100

SI

80

80

100

95

75

Notes

57

367

67

57

67

67

67

367

367

Shangri La

Co Ltd

Hotel Guangzhou Pazhou The Peoples

of China

Republic US$60340000

Shangri La

Co Ltd

Hotel Shenzhen Futian The Peoples

of China

Republic US$71000000

Shangri-La Hotel Ningbo Co Ltd The Peoples

of China

Republic US$74000000

Shangri-La Hotel Wenzhou Co Ltd The Peoples

of China

Republic US$22499985
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Place of

establishment

operation

The Peoples Republic

of China

The Peoples Republic

of China

The Peoples Republic

of China

The Peoples Republic

of China

The Peoples Republic

of China

The Peoples Republic

of China

The Peoples Republic

of China

The Peoples Republic

of China

The Peoples Republic

of China

The Peoples Republic

of China

For the year ended 31 Decereber 2008

Nature of business

Hotel ownership and

operation

Hotel ownership and

operation

Hotel ownership and

operation

Hotel ownership and

operation

Hotel ownership and

operation

Hotel ownership and

operation

Hotel ownership and

operation

Hotel ownership and

operation

Hotel ownership and

operation

Hotel ownership and

operation

39.Group structure principal subsidiaries and associates continued

At 31 December 2008 the Company held interests in the following principal subsidiaries continued

Name

Shangri-La Hotel Xian Co Ltd

Shangri-La Hotel Guilin Co Ltd

Shangri-La Hotel Baotou Co Ltd

Shangri-La Hotel Huhhot Co Ltd

Shangri-La Hotel Nlanzhouli Co Ltd

Shangri La Hotel Zhoushan Co Ltd

Shangri La Hotel Hefei Co Ltd

Shangri-La Hotel Taiyuan Co Ltd

Glory Cheer Development

Qinhuangdao Co Ltd

Shangri La Hotel Ordos City Co Ltd

Paid up
issued capital

US$36800000

US$27670000

US$24400000

US$30670000

US$2 1492000

RM B25 747720

US$7300000

US$37500

RN18325e9e45

US$6000000

Percentage holding

in the voting shares

Direct Indirect

100

100

00

100

100

100

100

00

100

00

Notes

67

367

67

67

367

367

367

367

367

367
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39.Group structure principal subsidiaries and associates continued

At December 2008 the Company held interests in the following principal
subsidiaries continued

Place of

establishment

____________________________________
operation ___________________

The Peoples Republic

of China

Th Peoples Repiihlir

of China

The Peoples Republic

of China

Republic of Mongolia

Republic of Mongolia

The Philippines

The Philippines

The Philippines

Name

Sanya Shangri-La Hotel Co Ltd

Haikou Shangri La Hotel Co Ltd

Shangri-La Hotel Lhasa Co Ltd

Shangri La Ulaanbaatar LLC

Shangri-La Ulaanbaatar Hotel LLC

Makati Shangri-La Hotel Resort Inc

Edsa Shangri La Hotel Resort Inc

Mactan Shangri La Hotel Resort Inc

Percentage holding

in the voting shares

Direct Indirect

100

100

100

51

75

100

100

100

Paid up
issued capital

RM B680927400

US$3700000

US$ 11000000

US$5000000

US$5680000

Common

Peso 921948400

Common

Peso 792 28700

Common

Peso 272630000

Preferred

Peso 170741500

Common

Peso 0825000

Nature of business

Hotel ownership and

operation

Hotel ownership and

operation

Hotel ownership and

operation

Property Investment

Hotel ownership and

operation

Hotel ownership and

operation

Hotel ownership and

operation

Hotel ownership and

operation

Notes

367

367

367

Boracay Shangri-La Hotel Resort Inc The Philippines
100 Hotel ownership and

operation
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

39.Group structure principal subsidiaries and associates continued
At December 2008 the Company held interests in the following principal subsidiaries continued

Place of Percentage holding

establishment Paid up in the voting shares

Name operation issued capital Direct Indirect Nature of business Notes

Addu Investments Private Limited Maldives Rufiyaa 640000000 70 Hotel ownership and

operation

Yanuca Island Limited
Fiji Ordinary F$ 1262196 71.64 Hotel ownership and

operation

Shangri La Hotel Limited
Singapore Ordinary S$164663560 100 Investment holding

hotel ownership and

operation and leasing

of residential and

serviced apartments

Sentosa Beach Resort Pte Ltd Singapore Ordinary S$30000000 IOU Hotel ownership and

operation

Shangri-La Hotels Malaysia Berhad Malaysia Ordinary RM440000000 52.78 Investment holding and

hotel ownership and

operation

Shangri-La Hotel KL Sdn Bhd Malaysia Ordinary RM 50000000 52.78 Hotel ownership and

operation

Golden Sands Beach Resort Sdn Bhd Malaysia Ordinary RM6000000 52.78 Hotel ownership and

operation

Komtar Hotel Sdn Bhd Malaysia Ordinary RM6000000 .67 Hotel ownership and

operation
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39.Group structure principal subsidiaries and associates continued

At 31 December 2008 the Company held interests in the following principal subsidiaries continued

Place of Percentage holding

establishment Paid up in the voting shares

Name operation issued capital Direct Indirect Nature of business Notes

Pantai Dalit Beach Resort Sdn Bhd Malaysia Ordinary RM 135000000 64.59 Hotel and golf club

ownership and

operation

UBN Tower Sdn Bhd Malaysia Ordinary RM500000 52.78 Property investment

and office management

UBN Holdings Sdn Bhd Malaysia Ordinary RM45000000 52.78 Investment holding and

property investment

Traders Yangon Company Limited Myanmar Ordinary 59 Hotel ownership and

Kyat 1600000 operation

Shangri La Hotel Public Thailand Common 73.61 Hotel serviced

Company Limited Baht 1300000000 apartments and office

ownership and

operation

Shangri-La Hotels Paris SARL France EUR 40010000 100 Hotel ownership and 23

operation

Shangri-La Hotels Japan K.K Japan YEN 305000000 100 Hotel ownership and

operation

SLIM International Limited Cook Islands Ordinary US$1000 100 Investment holding
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

39.Group structure principal subsidiaries and associates continued
At 31 December 2008 the Company held interests in the following principal subsidiaries continued

Place of
Percentage holding

establishment Paid up in the voting sharesName
operation issued capital Direct Indirect Nature of business Notes

Shangri La International Hotel Hong Kong Ordinary 100 Hotel managementManagement Limited
HK$10000000

marketing consultancy

and reservation

services

Shangri-La Hotel Management The Peoples Republic US$140000 100 Hotel management 67Shanghai Co Ltd of China
marketing and

consultancy services

Shangri La International Hotel The Netherlands Ordinary EUR 815 100
Licensing use of

Management B.V

intellectual propey
rights

Note

Subsidiaries audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong

Subsidiaries audited by other member firms of PricewaterhouseCooper Hong Kong

Subsidiaries which are under various stages of real estate and hotel development and have not yet commenced business operations as at the balance sheet date

Co operative Joint Venture

Equity joint Venture

Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise

The amount of paid up/issued capital for subsidiaries incorporated in The Peoples Republic of China represented the amount of paid in registered capita
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Name

China World Trade Center Ltd

Beijing Shangri-La Hotel Ltd

Hangzhou Shangri La Hotel Ltd

Seacliff Limited

Beijing jia Ao Real Estate Development

Co Ltd

Beijing Kerry Centre Hotel Co Ltd

Shanghai Xin Ci Hou Properties Co Ltd

Shanghai ji Xiang Properties Co Ltd

Shanghai Pudong Kerry City Properties

Co Ltd

Tianjin Kerry Real Estate Development

Co Ltd

Kerry Real Estate Nanchang Co Ltd

Place of

establishment

operation

The Peoples Republic of China

The Peoples Republic of China

The Peoples Republic of China

The Peoples Republic of China

The Peoples Republic of China

The Peoples Republic of China

The Peoples Republic of China

The Peoples Republic of China

The Peoples Republic of China

The Peoples Republic of Lhina

The Peoples Republic of China

Percentage

holding in the

registered capital

by the Group

50

38

45

30

23.75

23.75

24.75

49

23.20

20

20

39.Group structure principal subsidiaries and associates continued

At December 2008 the Group held interests in the following principal associates

Nature of business

Hotel ownership and operation and

property investment

Hotel ownership and operation

Hotel ownership and operation

Hotel ownership and operation and

property investment

Real estate development and operation

Hotel ownership and operation

Real estate development and operation

Hotel ownership and operation and

property investment

Hotel ownership and operation and

property investment

Hotel ownership and operation and

property investment

Hotel ownership and operation and

property investment

Notes
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For the year ended December 2008

39.Group structure principal subsidiaries and associates continued
At 31 December 2008 the Group held interests in the following principal associates continued

Percentage

Place of holding in the

establishment registered capital

Name operation by the Group Nature of business Notes

Cuscaden Properties Pte Ltd Singapore 40.75 Hotel ownership and operation and

property investment

Tanjong Aru Hotel Sdn Bhd Malaysia 40 Hotel ownership and operation

PT Swadharma Kerry Satya Indonesia 25 Hotel ownership and operation

Fine Winner Holdings Limited Hong Kong 30 Hotel ownership and operation

Shine Up Holdings Limited Samoa 25 Aircraft ownership

Park Avenue Hotel Investors LLC United States of America 25.90 Hotel ownership and operation 23

Shdng Global City Properties Inc The Philippines 40 Land ownership

Notes

Associates audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong

Associates audited by other member firms of PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong

Associates which are under various stages of real estate and hotel development and have not yet commenced business operations as at the balance sheet date

The above tables list out the subsidiaries and associates of the Company as at 31 December 2008 which in the opinion of the Directors principally affected

the results for the year or form substantial portion of the net assets of the Group To
give

details of other subsidiaries and associates would in the opinion

of the Directors result in particulars of excessive length
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40.Hotel properties of subsidiaries and associates

Details of hotel properties of the Companys subsidiaries are as follows

Address

Shangri-La Hotel Changchun

569 Xian Road Changchun 130061

The Peoples Republic of China

Existing use Lease term

Hotel operation Medium lease

and commercial

and residential

rental

Island Shangri La Hong Kong

Pacific Place 88 Queensway Central

Hong Kong

Shangri La Hotel Shenzhen

East Side Railway Station

1002 jianshe Road Shenzhen 518001

The Peoples Republic of China

Shangri-La Hotel Beihai

33 Chating Rnad Reihai Guangxi 536007

The Peoples Republic of China

Hotel operation

Hotel operation

Hotel operation

Medium lease

Medium lease

Medium lease

Shngri-l Hotel Qingdao

Xiang Gang Zhong Lu Qingdao 266071

The Peoples Republic of China

Shangri-La Hotel Dalian

66 Renmin Road Dalian 116001

The Peoples Republic of China

Golden Flower Hotel Xian

Chang Le Road West

Xian 710032 Shaanxi

The Peoples Republic of China

Hotel operation

Hotel operation

Hotel operation

Medium lease

Medium lease

Medium lease

Pudong Shangri-La Shanghai

33 Eu Cheng Lu

Pudong New Area

Shanghai 200120

The Peoples Republic of China

Traders Hotel Shenyang

68 Zhong Hua Road He Ping District

Shenyang 110001

The Peoples Republic of China

Hotel operation Medium lease

Hotel operation Long lease

Shangri La Hotel Harbin

555 You Yl Road Dao Li District

Harbin 150018

The Peoples Republic of China

Shangri La Hotel Wuhan

No 700 Jianshe Avenue Hankou

Wuhan 430015

The Peoples Republic of China

Hotel operation Medium lease

Hotel operation Medium lease

Address

Kowloon Shangri-La Hong Kong

64 Mody Road Tsimshatsui East

Kowloon

Hong Kong

Existing use Lease term

Hotel operation Medium lease
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40.Hotel properties of subsidiaries and associates continued

Details of hotel properties of the Companys subsidiaries are as follows

continued

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Address

Shangri La Hotel Zhongshan

16 Qi Wan Road North

Eastern Area Zhongshan 528403

The Peoples Republic of China

Shangri-La Hotel Fuzhou

No Xin Quan Nan Road

Fuzhou 350005

The Peoples Republic of China

Shangri La Hotel Guangzhou

Hui Zhan Dong Road

Hai Zhu District

Guangzhou 510308

The Peoples Republic of China

Shangri La Hotel Chengdu

Binjiang Dong Road

Chengdu Sichuan 610021

The Peoples Republic of China

Shangri La Hotel Xian

38B
Keji Road

Xian 710075

The Peoples Republic of China

Shangri La Hotel Baotou

66 Mm Zu East Road

Qing Shan District Baotou 014030

Inner Mongolia

The Peoples Republic of China

Shangri La Hotel Huhhot

Xi Lin Guo Le South Road

Huhhot 010020 Inner Mongolia

The Peoples Republic of China

Futian Shangri La Shenzhen

4088 Ii han Road

Futian District

Shenzhen 518048

The Peoples Republic of China

Makati Shangri La Manila

Ayala Avenue corner Makati Avenue

Makati City Metro Manila 1200

The Philippines

Edsa Shangri La Manila

Garden Way Ortigas Center

Mandaluyong City 1650

Metro Manila

The Philippines

Existing use Lease term Address
Existing use Lease term

Hotel operation Long lease

Hotel operation Long lease

Hotel operation Medium lease

Hotel operation Medium lease

Hotel operation Medium lease

Hotel operation Medium lease

Hotel operation Medium lease

Hotel operation Medium lease

Hotel operation Medium lease

Hotel operation Medium lease
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40.Hotel properties of subsidiaries and associates continued

Details of hotel properties of the Companys subsidiaries are as follows

continued

Address Existing use Lease term Address
Existing use Lease term

Shangri-Las Mactan Resort Spa Cebu Hotel operation Medium lease Traders Hotel Penang Hotel operation Long lease

Punta Engano Road Magazine Road

Mactan Island Cebu 10300 Penang

The Philippines Malaysia

Shangri Las
Fijian

Resort Spa Yanuca Hotel operation Long lease Golden Sands Resort Penang Hotel operation Freehold

Yanuca Island Sigatoka Nadroga Batu Feringgi Beach

Fiji
11100 Penang

Malaysia

Shangri La Hotel Singapore Hotel operation Freehold

22 28 Orange Grove Road Shangri Las Rasa Ria Resort Hotel and golf Long lease

Singapore 258350 Dalit Bay Golf Club Spa Sabah club operation

Pantai Dalit 89208 Tuaran

Rasa Sentosa Resort Singapore Hotel operation Long lease Sabah

101 Siloso Road Sentosa Malaysia

Singapore 098970

Traders Hotel Yangon Hotel operation Medium lease

Shangri La Hotel Kuala Lumpur Hotel operation Freehold 223 Sule Pagoda Road

II jalan Sultan Ismail Yangon

50250 Kuala Lumpur Myanmar

Malaysia

Shangri-La Hotel Bangkok Hotel operation Freehold

Shangri Las Rasa Sayang Resort Hotel operation Freehold 89 Soi Wat Suan Plu residential and

Spa Penang New Road Bangrak Bangkok 10500 office rental

Batu Feringgi Beach Thailand

11100 Penang

Malaysia
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4O.Hote properties of subsidiaries and associates continued
Details of hotel propeies of the Companys subsidiaries are as follows

continued

Address
Existing use Lease term

Shangri La Hotel Chiang Mai Hotel operation Freehold

89/8 Chang Klan Road

Muang Chiang Mai 50100

Thailand

Details of hotel propeies of the
operating associates are as follows

Address
Existing use Lease term

China World Hotel Beijing Hotel operation Medium lease

jian Guo Men Wai Avenue

Beijing 100004

The Peoples Republic of China

Traders Hotel Beijing Hotel
operation Medium lease

jian Guo Men Wai Avenue

Beijing 100004

The
Peoples Republic of China

Shangri Las Kerry Centre Hotel Beijing

Guanghua Road

Chaoyang District

Beijing 100020

The Peoples Republic of China

Address
Existing use Lease term

Shangri-La Hotel Beijing Hotel operation Medium lease
29

Zizhuyuan Road

Beijing 00089

The Peoples Republic of China

Shangri La Hotel Hangzhou Hotel operation Medium lease
78 Beishan Road

Hangzhou 310007

The
Peoples Republic of China

Traders Hotel Singapore Hotel operation

IA Cuscaden Road

Singapore 249716

Shangri-Las Tanjung Aru Resort
Spa

Kotd Kinabalu

20 jalan Aru Tanjung Aru

88100 Kota Kinabalu Sabah

Malaysia

Shangri La Hotel Jakarta Hotel operation Medium lease

Kota BNI Jalan Jend Sudirman Kay

jakarta 10220

Indonesia

Hotel JEN Hong Kong Hotel
operation Long lease

No 508 Queens Road West

Western District

Hong Kong

For the year ended December 2008

Hotel operation Medium lease

Long lease

Long lease
Hotel operation
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41.Investment properties of subsidiaries and associates

Details of investment properties of the subsidiaries are as follows Details of investment properties of the operating associates are as follows

Shangri-La Residences Dalian

66 Renmin Road Dalian 116001

The Peoples Republic of China

The Office Tower at Shangri-La Centre

Chengdu

Binjiang Dong Road

Chengdu Sichuan 610021

The Peoples Republic of China

Shangri La Apartments Singapore

Anderson Road

Singapore 259983

Shangri La Residences Singapore

No IA Lady Hill Road

Singapore 258685

UBN Tower Kuala Lumpur

UBN Complex 10 jalan Ramlee

50250 Kuala Lumpur

Malaysia

UBN Apartments Kuala Lumpur

UBN Complex 10 jalan Ramlee

50250 Kuala Lumpur

Malaysia

Office and

commercial

Office and Freehold

corn mercial

rental

Address

China World Trade Center

jian Guo Men Wal Avenue

Beijing 100004

The Peoples Republic of China

Century Towers Beijing

18 Guang Qu Men Wai Avenue

Beijing 100022

The Peoples Republic of China

Shanghai Centre

1376 Nanjing Xi Lu

Shanghai 200040

The Peoples Republic of China

Beijing Kerry Centre

Guanghua Road

Chaoyang District

Beijing 100020

The Peoples Republic of China

Shanghai Kerry Centre

No 1515 Nanjing Road West

jingan District

Shanghai 200040

The Peoples Republic of China

Existing use

Hotel operation

and office

commercial

residential and

exhibition hall

space
rental

Residential rental Long lease

Hotel operation

and office

corn mercial

residential and

exhibition hall

space rental

Hotel operation

and office

commercial and

residential

rental

Office commercial Medium lease

and residential

rental

Address
Existing use Lease term

Residential rental Medium lease

Medium lease

Lease term

Medium lease

rental

Residential rental Freehold

Residential rental Freehold

Residential rental Freehold

Medium lease

Medium lease
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For the year ended December 2008

.Investment properties of subsidiaries and associates continued

Details of investment properties of the operating associates are as follows

continued

Tanglin Mall Singapore Commercial rental Long lease

163 Tanglin Road

Singapore 247933

Office and Freehold

commercial

rental

42.Events after the balance sheet date

In February 2009 non wholly owned subsidiary executed five

year US$50 million project loan agreement with International Finance

Corporation wholly owned subsidiary also executed new five-year

US$40 million unsecured bank loan agreement in the same month

On January 2009 the Group entered into connected transactions

with Kerry Holdings Limited KHL substantial shareholder of the

Company and Shang Properties Inc çSPI connected person of the

Company by entering into the Sale and Purchase Agreement to acquire

from KHL and its subsidiaries the entire issued share capital of certain

property holding companies and related loans and proposed to enter

into other agreements to dispose of approximately 6.05% equity interest

in Mactan Shangri La Hotel Resort Inc MSH wholly owned

subsidiary of the Company which owns the Shangri-Las Mactan Resort

Spa Cebu Shangri-La Mactan to SPI and its subsidiaries Upon

completion of all the agreements the Groups equity interest in MSH

will be reduced to approximately 93.95% and the Group will be entitled

to approximately 93.95% economic interests in certain Philippines

property holding companies which own the land sites where the

Shangri La Mactan is built in order to provide an economic hedge in the

land leasing expenses to be paid by the Group and to secure sufficient

land space in adjacent sites for future expansion and development of

Shangri La Mactan Under these transactions the Group will need to

make total payment of approximately US$29.4 million and MSH will

receive approximately US$8.7 million new capital funds The Group has

already paid approximately US$29.4 million to acquire the share capital

and loans in the property holding companies subsequent to the year

end The tranactiuns for the proposed dilution of approximately 6.05%

equity interest in MSH have not been completed as at the approval date

of these financial statements

On January 2009 the Group and the other joint venture parties

Kerry Properties Limited and Allgreen Properties Limited APL both

being connected persons to the Company and Kuok Brothers Sdn

Bhd entered into cancellation agreement to relinquish their rights to

acquire the land use rights of all the acquired sites in Tangshan City in

Mainland China consortium was formed by the joint venture parties

and jointly won the bids at the open bidding to acquire the land use

rights of three sites in 2008 The joint venture parties will need to share

total penalty of Renminbi 21 million approximately US$3.1 million

On February 2009 the same joint venture parties successfully won

the bids at another open bidding to acquie the land use rights of two

sites in the same city and entered into new master joint venture

agreement relating to the establishment of joint venture for the

acquisition holding and development of the land sites and terminated

the original master joint venture agreement The maximum total

investment shall be Renminbi 136 million approximately US$3 2.5

million and the Groups 20% share is approximately US$62.5 million

The acquired sites are designated for hotel and residential with ancillary

commercial use

Address Existing use Lease term

Tanglin Place Singapore

91 Tanglin Road

Singapore 2479
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42.Events after the balance sheet date continued

On March 2009 the Group entered into novation deed pursuant

to which the rights title and interests of APL under and in the master

joint venture agreement including but not limited to all APL Groups

5% rights title and interests in and under part of the land deposit

payment of Renminbi 4.5 million already contributed by APL Group for

land use rights of piece of land in relation to the acquisition holding

and development of land site in Nanjing City in Mainland China

will be transferred and assigned by novation to the Group at cash

consideration of approximately HK$5.2 million approximately US$0.7

million Pursuant to the master joint venture agreement entered

in 2008 each of the Group and ARL has 40% and 15% proposed

shareholdings in the proposed joint venture respectively The Groups

interest in the master joint venture agreement will be increased to 55%

following the completion of the novation and the Groups 55% share

of the maximum total investment in the project will be increased to

Renminbi 825 million approximately US$ 21 million The transactions

are subject to the Companys independent shareholders approval

43.Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 17

March 2009
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

The financial summary of the Group for the last five years are as follows

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

us$000 us$000 uS$000 uS$000 us$000

Results

Profit attributable to

Equity holders 165940 340863 202 173 50990 35

Non-controlling intei ets 17527 33362 17 156 6541 9005

Assets and liabilities

Total assets 6922711 6101010 5075678 4263067 3720141

Total liabilities 2671323 1915682 2100354 1632853 1554697

Total equity 425 1388 85328 2975324 2630214 21 65444
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THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action you should take you should consult

your stockbroker or other registered dealer in securities bank manager solicitor professional accountant or

other professional adviser

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in Shangri-La Asia Limited you should at once hand this

circular together with the accompanying form of proxy to the purchaser or transferee or to the bank

stockbroker or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser

or transferee

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no

responsibility for the contents of this circular make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and

expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole

or any part of the contents of this circular

SHANGRI-LA ASIA LIMITED
Incorporated in Bermuda with limited

liability

website www.ir.shangri-la.com

Stock Code 00069

PROPOSAL FOR GRANT OF GENERAL MANDATE

TO REPURCHASE SHARES

RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS AND

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Resolutions will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting of Shangri-La Asia Limited to be held at Island

Ballroom Level Island Shangri-La Hotel Pacific Place Supreme Court Road Central Hong Kong on

Wednesday 27 May 2009 at 1000 a.m to approve inter alia the matters referred to in this circular

The Notice convening the Annual General Meeting together with the form of proxy for use at the Annual

General Meeting are enclosed with this circular Whether or not you are able to attend the meeting you are

requested to complete the form of proxy in accordance with the instructions printed thereon and return it to

Tricor Abacus Limited the Companys branch share registrar in Hong Kong of 26th Floor Tesbury Centre

28 Queens Road East Wanchai Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the

Annual General Meeting

For identification purposes only

24 April 2009
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DEFINITIONS

In this circular the following expressions have the following meanings unless the context

otherwise requires

2008 Annual General Meeting the annual general meeting of the Company held at

1000 a.m on Friday 23 May 2008

Annual General Meeting the annual general meeting of the Company to be held at

1000 a.m on Wednesday 27 May 2009 at Island

Ballroom Level Island Shangri-La Hotel Pacific

Place Supreme Court Road Central Hong Kong or any

adjournment thereof

Baht Thai baht the lawful currency of Thailand

Board the Board of Directors of the Company

Bye-Laws the bye-laws of the Company as amended from time to

time

Company Shangri-La Asia Limited an exempted company

incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability the shares

of which are primarily listed on the Main Board of the

HKSE with secondary listing on the SGX-ST

Directors the directors of the Company

Group the Company and its subsidiaries

HKSE The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Hong Kong dollars the lawful currency of Hong Kong

Hong Kong the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the

Peoples Republic of China

KGL Kerry Group Limited

Latest Practicable Date 16 April 2009 being the latest practicable date prior to

the printing of this circular for ascertaining certain

information referred to in this circular

Listing Rules the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the

HKSE



DEFINITIONS

Notice notice dated 24 April 2009 convening the Annual

General Meeting copy of which is set out on pages 12

to 15 of this circular

Recognized Stock Exchange any stock exchange recognized by the Securities and

Futures Commission of Hong Kong and the HKSE for the

purpose of securities repurchases

SF0 Securities and Futures Ordinance

SGX-ST the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited

Shares the ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each in the share capital

of the Company

Share Repurchase Mandate general and unconditional mandate to be given to the

Directors to exercise the powers of the Company to

repurchase at any time until the next annual general

meeting of the Company or such earlier period as stated

in the Share Resolution the Shares up to maximum of

10 per cent of the fully paid-up issued share capital of the

Company at the date of the Share Resolution

Share Resolution the ordinary resolution referred to in item 6B of the

Notice

Takeovers Code the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers



LETTER FROM THE BOARD

SHANGRI-.LA ASIA LIMITED
Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability

website www.ir shangri-la.com

Stock Code 00069

Executive Directors

Mr KUOK Khoon Ean Chairman

Mr KUOK Khoon Loong Edward

President and Chief Executive Officer

Mr LUI Man Shing Deputy Chairman

Mr Madhu Rama Chandra RAO

Mr Giovanni ANGELINI

Non-Executive Directors

Mr HO Kian Guan

Madam KUOK Oon Kwong

Mr Roberto ONGPIN

Mr Alexander Reid HAMILTONt

Mr Timothy David DATTELSt

Mr WONG Kai Man BBS JP

Mr Michael Wing-Nm CHIUt

Mr HO Kian Hock

Alternate to Mr HO Kian Guan

Independent Non-Executive Directors

For identification purposes only

Dear Shareholders

Registered Office

Canons Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

Head Office and Principal

Place of Business in Hong Kong

21St Floor CITIC Tower

No Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

24 April 2009

PROPOSAL FOR GRANT OF GENERAL MANDATE
TO REPURCHASE SHARES

RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS AND

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this circular is to provide you with information relating to inter alia the

Share Repurchase Mandate to enable you to make an informed decision on whether to vote for

or against the Share Resolution to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting



LETTER FROM THE BOARD

GENERAL MANDATE TO REPURCHASE SHARES

The latest general mandate to repurchase Shares up to maximum of 10 per cent of the

fully paid-up issued Shares was granted to the Directors at the 2008 Annual General Meeting

The Share Resolution will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting to approve the

grant of the Share Repurchase Mandate to the Directors The Share Repurchase Mandate will

continue in force until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company or

any earlier date as referred to in item 6B of the Notice

Shareholders should refer to the explanatory statement contained in the Appendix of this

circular which sets out further information in relation to the Share Repurchase Mandate

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice of the Annual General Meeting is set out on pages 12 to 15 of this circular At the

Annual General Meeting ordinary resolutions to approve inter alia the Share Repurchase

Mandate will be proposed

form of proxy for use at the Annual General Meeting is enclosed with this circular

Whether or not you are able to attend the meeting you are requested to complete the form of

proxy in accordance with the instructions printed thereon and return it to Tricor Abacus

Limited the Companys branch share registrar in Hong Kong of 26th Floor Tesbury Centre
28 Queens Road East Wanchai Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed

for holding the Annual General Meeting Completion and return of the form of proxy will not

prevent you from attending and voting at the Annual General Meeting if you so wish

Pursuant to the Listing Rules any vote of shareholders at general meeting must be taken

by poil The chairman of the Annual General Meeting will therefore demand poll for each

resolution put to the vote of the Annual General Meeting pursuant to Bye-Law 70 of the

Bye-Laws

RECOMMENDATION

The Directors are of the opinion that the grant of the Share Repurchase Mandate is in the

best interests of the Company and its shareholders Accordingly the Directors recommend

shareholders to vote in favour of the Share Resolution to be proposed at the Annual General

Meeting

GENERAL INFORMATION

Your attention is drawn to the information contained in Appendix II and Appendix III of

this circular which set out details of the retiring Directors proposed to be re-elected at the

Annual General Meeting and the proposed directors fees including fees payable to members

of the Audit and Remuneration Committees for the year ending 31 December 2009

respectively

Yours faithfully

On Behalf of the Board of

Shangri-La Asia Limited

Kuok Khoon Ean

Chairman



APPENDIX EXPLANATORY STATEMENT ON THE
GENERAL MANDATE TO REPURCHASE SHARES

The following is the explanatory statement required to be sent to shareholders under the

Listing Rules to enable them to make an informed decision on whether to vote for or against

the ordinary resolution in relation to the Share Repurchase Mandate to be proposed at the

Annual General Meeting

SHARE REPURCHASE PROPOSAL

As at the Latest Practicable Date the issued share capital of the Company comprised

2885362678 fully paid-up Shares It is proposed that up to maximum of 10 per cent of the

fully paid-up Shares in issue at the date of passing of the Share Resolution to approve the Share

Repurchase Mandate may be repurchased by the Directors Subject to the passing of the Share

Resolution on the basis that no further Shares are issued prior to the Annual General Meeting

and ignoring other restrictions the Company would be allowed under the Share Repurchase

Mandate to repurchase up to maximum of 288536267 fully paid-up Shares on the HKSE or

on the Recognized Stock Exchange or on the SGX-ST

REASONS FOR REPURCHASES

The Directors believe that it is in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders

to have general authority from the shareholders to enable the Company to repurchase Shares

in the market Such repurchases may depending on market conditions and funding

arrangements at the time lead to an enhancement of the net asset value of the Company and/or

earnings per share of the Company and will only be made when the Directors believe that such

repurchase will benefit the Company and its shareholders

FUNDING OF REPURCHASES

In repurchasing Shares the Company may only apply funds legally available for such

purpose in accordance with its constitutional documents and the laws of Bermuda

There might be material adverse impact on the working capital or gearing position of

the Company as compared with the position disclosed in the audited consolidated financial

statements contained in the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2008

and taking into account the financial position of the Company as at the Latest Practicable Date

in the event that the proposed share repurchases were to be carried out in full at any time during

the proposed repurchase period

However the Directors do not propose to exercise the Share Repurchase Mandate to such

extent as would in the circumstances have material adverse effect on the working capital

requirements of the Company or the gearing levels which in the opinion of the Directors are

from time to time appropriate for the Company



APPENDIX EXPLANATORY STATEMENT ON THE
GENERAL MANDATE TO REPURCHASE SHARES

GENERAL

The Directors have undertaken to the HKSE that so far as the same may be applicable

the exercise of the power of the Company to make repurchases pursuant to the Share

Repurchase Mandate upon passing of the Share Resolution will be in accordance with the

Listing Rules and the applicable laws of Bermuda

None of the Directors nor to the best of their knowledge having made all reasonable

enquiries any of their associates as defined in the Listing Rules have present intention in

the event that the Share Resolution is adopted by shareholders of the Company to sell Shares

to the Company

No connected person as defined in the Listing Rules of the Company has notified the

Company of present intention to sell Shares to the Company or has undertaken not to do so

in the event that the Share Repurchase Mandate is approved

If as result of share repurchase shareholders proportionate interest in the voting

rights of the Company increases such increase will be treated as an acquisition of voting rights

for the purposes of the Takeovers Code As result shareholder or group of shareholders

acting in concert depending on the level of increase of shareholders interests could obtain

or consolidate control of the Company and become obliged to make mandatory offer in

accordance with Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code

As at the Latest Practicable Date KGL was directly or indirectly interested in

1415692102 Shares0t as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of

the SF0 which constituted approximately 49.06 per cent of the voting rights attaching to the

issued share capital of the Company If the Share Repurchase Mandate were to be exercised in

full KGL would assuming that there is no change in the relevant facts and circumstances hold

approximately 54.52 per cent of the voting rights attaching to the issued share capital of the

Company

It is considered that such increase may give rise to an obligation to make mandatory

offer as referred to above The Directors have no present intention to exercise the Share

Repurchase Mandate to such an extent as would result in such takeover obligations Save as

aforesaid the Directors are not aware of any consequences which would arise under the

Takeovers Code as consequence of any repurchases pursuant to the Share Repurchase

Mandate

Note Such Shares include deemed interest in Shares held by subsidiary of Shangri-La Hotel Public Company

Limited company listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand



APPENDIX EXPLANATORY STATEMENT ON THE
GENERAL MANDATE TO REPURCHASE SHARES

SHARE REPURCHASES MADE BY THE COMPANY

During the six months prior to the Latest Practicable Date the Company has not

repurchased any Shares whether on the HKSE or on the Recognized Stock Exchange or on the

SGX-ST or by private arrangement

MARKET PRICES

The highest and lowest prices at which the Shares have been traded on the HKSE during

each of the previous twelve months preceding the Latest Practicable Date were as follows

Shares

Highest Lowest

Year Month price price

HK$ HK$

2008 April 23.00 19.00

May 26.30 20.70

June 24.50 17.88

July
19.00 16.20

August 17.68 14.90

September 15.30 9.50

October 11.50 7.80

November 26.00 8.17

December 10.12 8.36

2009 January 10.52 8.33

February 9.45 8.20

March 9.26 7.32

April up to the Latest Practicable Date 11.08 8.73



APPENDIX II DETAILS OF RETIRING DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO BE
RE-ELECTED AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

In relation to the re-election of retiring Directors as referred to in item of the Notice

Mr LUI Man Shing Mr Giovanni ANGELINI Madam KUOK Oon Kwong and Mr WONG Kai

Man BBS Jp shall retire by rotation in accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Bye-Laws All

retiring Directors except Mr Giovanni ANGELINI and Madam KUOK Oon Kwong being

eligible offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General Meeting According to the

Bye-Laws all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation no later than the third annual

general meeting after the Directors are so elected under the Bye-Laws and are eligible for

re-election after such retirement

The following are the particulars of the retiring Directors offering themselves for

re-election which are required to be disclosed under Rule 13.5 12 of the Listing Rules

Mr LUI Man Shing

Mr LU aged 65 was appointed as an executive director of the Company in March 2002

and was elected as the deputy chairman of the Company in March 2007 He is the vice

chairman of Shangri-La Hotel Public Company Limited SHPCL listed on the Stock

Exchange of Thailand and was the managing director of SHPCL from February 2007 to

February 2009 Mr LU is also the chairman of QGX Limited company delisted from the

Toronto Stock Exchange on 17 October 2008 Mr LUI is also director of number of

companies within the Group and of Kerry Holdings Limited substantial shareholder of the

Company

Save as mentioned above Mr LUI does not have any relationships with any Directors

senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders as defined in the Listing Rules

of the Company

As at the Latest Practicable Date Mr LUIs interests in the Shares and underlying Shares

of the Company and its associated corporation within the meaning of Part XV of the SF0 are

as follows

Shares

Number of Shares Held

Class of Personal Family Corporate

Name of Company Shares Interest Interest Interest Total

Note

The Company Ordinary 833333 833333

SHPCL Ordinary 10000 10000

Note

These shares were held by Mr LUI as beneficial owner



APPENDIX II DETAILS OF RETIRING DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO BE
RE-ELECTED AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Underlying Shares Share options granted by the Company

Number of Option

Exercise Price per Shares held as at the

Date of Grant Option Share Latest Practicable Date

HK$

16 June 2006 14.60 60000

Mr LUI does not have any service contract with the Group The emoluments of the

executive directors of the Company are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee of the Board

with reference to the Groups performance and profitability as well as the remuneration

benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market conditions Mr LUI is entitled to receive

from the Group annual emoluments including fees base salary and retirement pension

contribution of approximately Baht 900000 and HK$3120000 In addition he will be

entitled to receive discretionary bonus which is payable at the discretion of the Group

Save as mentioned above there are no other matters concerning Mr LUI that need to be

brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company nor any other information required

to be disclosed pursuant to any of the requirements under Rule 13.5 12 of the Listing Rules

Mr WONG Kai Man BBS JP

Mr WONG aged 58 was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the

Company in July 2006 He is an accountant with 32 years of audit initial public offer and

computer audit experience He was member of the Growth Enterprise Market Listing

Committee of the HKSE from 1999 to 2003 He retired as an audit partner from

PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong on 30 June 2005 and is currently the director of two

charity foundations Victor and William Fung Foundation Limited and Li Fung 1906

Foundation Limited He is also an independent non-executive director of SUNeVision Holdings

Ltd listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the HKSE and SCMP Group Limited and

China Construction Bank Corporation both listed on the Main Board of the HKSE In addition

he serves in number of government committees and the board of certain non-governmental

organizations Mr WONG is fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants

United Kingdom and fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants He

obtained his Bachelor of Science degree in Physics from the University of Hong Kong and

Master of Business Administration degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong

Mr WONG does not have any relationships with any Directors senior management or

substantial or controlling shareholders as defined in the Listing Rules of the Company



APPENDIX II DETAILS OF RETIRING DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO BE
RE-ELECTED AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

As at the Latest Practicable Date Mr WONG does not have any interest in the Shares or

underlying Shares of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SF0

The Company has issued letter of appointment to Mr WONG pursuant to which Mr

WONG is appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company for term

commencing from September 2006 the date of his last re-election as Director and ending

at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting He is entitled to directors fee and fees as

member of the Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee payable to him by the

Company For the year ending 31 December 2009 directors fee of HK$150000 is proposed

to be paid to Mr WONG as non-executive director of the Company and fee of not exceeding

HK$100000 payable to him as member of the Audit Committee and fee of HK$50000

payable to him as member of the Remuneration Committee are also proposed to be paid to

Mr WONG

Save as mentioned above there are no other matters concerning Mr WONG that need to

be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company nor any other information

required to be disclosed pursuant to any of the requirements under Rule 13.5 12 of the Listing

Rules

10



APPENDIX III PROPOSED DIRECTORS FEES INCLUDING FEES PAYABLE

TO MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT AND REMUNERATION

COMMITTEES FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2009

In relation to the fixing of directors fees including fees payable to members of the Audit

and Remuneration Committees as referred to in item of the Notice the Directors

recommended that the directors fees for the financial year ending 31 December 2009 be fixed

at HK$150000 per annum payable to each non-executive director of the Company subject to

such terms including as to pro-rating for the year ending 31 December 2009 as the Directors

or duly authorized committee thereof may in their absolute discretion see fit

The Directors also propose that fees be payable to members of the Remuneration and

Audit Committees who are non-executive directors of the Company for their services

rendered in 2009 Details are set out below

fee of HK$50000 per annum be payable to each member of the Remuneration

Committee who is non-executive director of the Company for the services

rendered in 2009 subject to such terms including as to pro-rating for the year

ending 31 December 2009 as the Directors may in their absolute discretion see fit

and

ii fee of not exceeding HK$100000 per annum be payable to each member of the

Audit Committee who is non-executive director of the Company for the services

rendered in 2009 HK$50000 of which shall be paid as retainer and the balance

not exceeding HK$50000 shall be calculated by reference to the actual attendance

of such member at the Audit Committee meetings held during the year and subject

to such other terms including as to pro-rating for the year ending 31 December

2009 as the Directors may in their absolute discretion see fit
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

SHANGRI-LA ASIA LIMITED
Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability

website www.ir.shangri-la.com

Stock Code 00069

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of Shangri-La Asia

Limited the Company will be held at Island Ballroom Level Island Shangri-La Hotel

Pacific Place Supreme Court Road Central Hong Kong on Wednesday 27 May 2009 at

1000 a.m for the following purposes

To receive and consider the audited financial statements and the reports of the

Directors and the auditors for the year ended 31 December 2008

To declare final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2008

To re-elect those retiring Directors who have offered themselves for re-election

To fix directors fees including fees payable to members of the Audit and

Remuneration Committees

To re-appoint auditors and to authorize the Directors of the Company to fix their

remuneration

To consider as special business and if thought fit pass with or without amendments

the following resolutions as ordinary resolutions

THAT

subject to paragraph below the exercise by the Directors of the

Company during the Relevant Period as hereinafter defined of all the

powers of the Company to allot and issue additional shares in the share

capital of the Company and to make or grant offers agreements and

options which would or might require the exercise of such power be and

is hereby generally and unconditionally approved

the approval in paragraph above shall authorize the Directors of the

Company during the Relevant Period to make or grant offers agreements

and options which would or might require the exercise of such powers

after the end of the Relevant Period

12
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the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed

conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted whether pursuant to an

option or otherwise by the Directors of the Company pursuant to the

approval in paragraph above otherwise than pursuant to Rights

Issue as hereinafter defined ii the exercise of any option under any

share option scheme or similar arrangement for the grant or issue to

option holders of shares in the Company iiiany scrip dividend scheme

or similar arrangement providing for the allotment of shares in lieu of the

whole or part of dividend on shares of the Company in accordance with

the Bye-Laws of the Company and iv any specific authority shall not

exceed 20 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital

of the Company in issue as at the date of the passing of this resolution and

the said approval shall be limited accordingly and

for the purposes of this resolution

Relevant Period means the period from the passing of this resolution

until whichever is the earliest of

the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company

ii the expiration of the period within which the next annual general

meeting of the Company is required by the Bye-Laws of the

Company or any applicable laws of Bermuda to be held or

iii the revocation or variation of this resolution by an ordinary

resolution of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting

Rights Issue means an offer of shares open for period fixed by the

Directors of the Company to holders of shares on the register on fixed

record date in proportion to their then holdings of such shares subject to

such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors of the Company

may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or

having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws of or the

requirements of any recognized regulatory body or any stock exchange in

any territory outside Hong Kong

13
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THAT

the exercise by the Directors of the Company during the Relevant Period

as hereinafter defined of all powers of the Company to repurchase its

own shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited the HKSE
or on any other stock exchange on which the shares of the Company may

be listed and recognized by the Securities and Futures Commission of

Hong Kong and the HKSE for this purpose or on the Singapore Exchange

Securities Trading Limited subject to and in accordance with all

applicable laws and the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing

of Securities on the HKSE or that of any other stock exchange as

amended from time to time as the case may be be and is hereby

generally and unconditionally approved

the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company repurchased by

the Company pursuant to paragraph above during the Relevant Period

shall not exceed 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of the share

capital of the Company in issue as at the date of the passing of this

resolution and the authority pursuant to paragraph above shall be

limited accordingly and

for the purposes of this resolution Relevant Period means the period

from the passing of this resolution until whichever is the earliest of

the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company

ii the expiration of the period within which the next annual general

meeting of the Company is required by the Bye-Laws of the

Company or any applicable laws of Bermuda to be held or

iii the revocation or variation of this resolution by an ordinary

resolution of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting

THAT

Conditional upon the passing of resolution no 6B the general mandate granted

to the Directors of the Company and for the time being in force to exercise the

powers of the Company to allot shares be and is hereby extended by the

addition to the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital which may be

allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted by the

Directors of the Company pursuant to such general mandate of an amount

representing the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company

repurchased by the Company under the authority granted by the resolution set

14
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out as resolution no 6B provided that such amount shall not exceed 10 per

cent of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in

issue as at the date of the passing of this resolution

By Order of the Board

Shangri-La Asia Limited

Teo Ching Leun

Company Secretary

Hong Kong 24 April 2009

Head Office and Principal Place

of Business in Hong Kong

21st Floor CITIC Tower

No Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

Notes

Every shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting or at any adjournment thereof convened by this

notice the Meeting is entitled to appoint up to two individuals as his proxies to attend and vote instead of

him Where shareholder appoints two proxies to represent him the form of proxy must clearly indicate the

number of shares in the Company Shares which each proxy represents and which proxy is designated as

the voting proxy If two proxies are appointed only the voting proxy will be entitled to cast the shareholders

votes if both proxies purport to cast the shareholders votes in different manner and on the

exercise of discretion proxy need not be shareholder of the Company The number of proxies appointed

by clearing house or its nominee as defined in the Companys Bye-Laws is not subject to the aforesaid

limitation If shareholder fails to specify the number of Shares which each proxy represents and/or the name

of the voting proxy then subject to the absolute discretion of the Chairman of the Meeting to decide otherwise

the shareholder shall be deemed to have appointed the first-named proxy as his voting proxy and that such

first-named proxy shall represent all the Shares held by him

Subject to note above in relation to clearing house shareholder may only have one form of proxy valid

at any one time and if shareholder submits more than one form of proxy the last form of proxy received in

the manner described in note below shall be treated as the only valid form of proxy

Where there are joint registered holders of any Share any one of such persons may vote at the Meeting either

personally or by proxy in respect of such Share as if he were solely entitled thereto but if more than one of

such joint holders be present at the Meeting personally or by proxy that one of the said persons so present

whose name stands first on the registers of members of the Company in respect of such Share shall alone be

entitled to vote in respect thereof Several executors or administrators of deceased shareholder in whose name

any Share stands first will for this purpose be deemed joint holders thereof

In order to be valid the form of proxy together with the power of attorney or other authority if any under

which it is signed or notarially certified copy of that power or authority must be deposited at the

Companys branch share registrar in Hong Kong Tricor Abacus Limited at 26th Floor Tesbury Centre 28

Queens Road East Wanchai Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the

Meeting

The registers of members of the Company will be closed from Monday 25 May 2009 to Wednesday 27 May

2009 both dates inclusive during which no transfer of shares will be effected In order to qualify for the

proposed final dividend all share transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for

registration with the Companys branch share registrar in Hong Kong Tricor Abacus Limited at the above

address no later than 430 p.m on Friday 22 May 2009

For identification purposes only
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